
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
MEETING AGENDA

Fuller Meadow School

Nathan Media Center

143 South Main Street, Middleton, MA 01949
Tuesday, September 18, 2018

7:00 PM
This meeting is being recorded

1. 7:00 PM Warrants

Minutes: August 14, 2018 open session; August 14, 2018 executive session

Town Administrator updates and reports

2. 7:05 PM Public Hearing: Request from Attorney James Burke for a New License for a Restaurant Beer and Wine

Beverages Liquor License and Common Victualler License, located at 81 North Main Street,

Middleton, on behalf of Rizzo's Middleton, LLC., by owner and manager George Rozopoulos

3. 7:15 PM Application to change location of Middleton House of Pizza from 251 South Main St, Middleton MA
to 221 So Main Street, Unit C, Middleton MA for the existing Common Victualler License by Nektario
Demakes, Manager

4. 7:20 PM Application of New Common Victualler License for Starbucks Corporation, d/b/a Starbucks Coffee,

Manager Thomas Martinello Jr, 221-227 So Main Street, Middleton MA by DPB Consulting Services,

Daniel Brennan Jr

5. 7:30 PM Vote to appoint Richard Cardinale to the Bylaw Review Committee for a term expiring June 30, 2021

6. 7:20 PM Vote to appoint Sarah B. George to the Board of Registrars for a term expiring June 30, 2020

7. 7:25 PM Review and vote to accept and authorize the Fire Chief to expend FEMA-Assistance for Firefighters

Grant in the amount of $168,800

8. 7:30 PM Discuss Special Town Meeting tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, November 13, 2018, for the

purpose of acquiring land on which to build municipal buildings and funding to undertake site
planning

9. 7:40 PM Review and vote to adopt Fraudulent Financial Activities Policy

10. 7:35 PM Review and vote to adopt Travel Expense and Reimbursement Policy

11. 7:40 PM Vote to act on the recommendation of the Town Administrator and appoint an Assistant Town

Administrator/Human Resources Coordinator through June 30,2021

12. 7:45 PM Review and vote to adopt Town Administrator goals for FY 19

13. 7:55 PM Discuss and Vote the request for signage as you enter from Liberty Street facing in a
southerly direction before the intersection of Circle Street.

14. 8:00 PM New Business: Reserved for topics that the Chair did not reasonably anticipate

15. 7:55 PM Executive session under GL c. 30A, s. 21(a)(6), to consider the purchase, acquisition, or value of real

property off South M[ain Street and Boston Street where the Chairman declares discussion in open

session would have a detrimental effect on the position of the Town.
The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be

discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.



Minutes of the MIDDLETON BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Fuller Meadow School

Nathan Media Room

143 South Main Street, Middleton, MA 01949

August 14, 2018 7:OOPM

Present: Kosta Prentakis, Timothy Houten, Todd Moreschi, Rick Kassiotis

Absent: Brian Cresta

Others Present: Town Administrator Andrew Sheehan, Minutes Secretary Judi Stickney, Fire Chief Tom

Martin uk

Chairman Kosta Prentakis called the meeting to order at 7:03PM

7:OOPM

• Warrants: Town Administrator Andrew Sheehan provided a brief review of Warrant #1903, dated

8/2/18, for Payroll in the amount of $452,918; and Bills Payable in the amount of $1,793,581, as
well as Warrant #1904, dated 8/16/18, for Payroll in the amount of $494,828; and Bills Payable in
the amount of $3,116,088 (includes Masconomet assessment), and the Board took the following

action:

On a MOTION made by Houten, second by Moreschi, the Board of Selectmen VOTED

unanimously to approve both warrants, as presented.

• Minutes:

o July 17, 2018 Open Session

o July 17, 2018 Executive Session

After a brief review of available minutes, the Board took the following action:

On a MOTION made by Houten, second by Prentakis, the Board of Selectmen VOTED

unanimously to accept the minutes of July 17, 2018 Open Session and July 17, 2018 Executive

Session, as submitted. Moreschil abstained

• Town Administrator Updates and Reports: Town Administrator Andrew Sheehan provided the

Board with updates and information on the following:

o Lakeview Avenue Water Pressure: Sheehan advised that the booster pumps have been

installed.

o Cumberland Farms Walking Path: Sheehan advised the walking path is finished. He
thanked Cumberland Farms for completing the path as well as those in town who assisted

with the project.

o Retirements: Judy Gallery, assistant librarsry director, wish Judy a long and eventful

retirement. She will be volunteering for awhile at the library.

o Financial Management Policies Update: Town Accountant Sarah Wood has been

updating the town's financial management policies. Sheehan added that some of the

policies being updated include Petty Cash Policy, Cash Reimbursment Policy in the
coming weeks.

Middleton Board ofSelectmen Meeting Minutes

August 14, 2018 Page I



  

Middleton Board of Selectmen              Meeting Minutes                                                                                                      
August 14, 2018                                                                                                                                 Page 2 
 
 

o Construction Updates: North of the square, 177 North Main, which will be the future 
home of Salem Metals and Regal Fabrics. Further on the left side of North Main, 
contractor condominimus mostly rented out. Rizo’s Roast Beef, Essex and North Main 
coming in for common vic and liquor. There’s another bay in thgere, nothing yet.  

o Residential project: Essex Street, East and Peabody, continue to move along.  He will 
continue to update the Board on projects. 

o September 11, 2018 Meeting: Ascertainment Hearing for cable contracts with Verizon 
and Comcast. Sheehan provided the Board with a brief update on the Cable Advisory 
Meeting held earlier tonight and encouraged residents to provide comments and input 
on their cable service. 

o September 4, 2018 State Primary: Tomorrow is the last day to register to vote. There is 
additional information on the home page of the website.  

o Digitized Packets: Sheehan advised that they woud liketo do away with the paper 
packets.  

o Fire Prevention Grant: Chief Martinuk $3,000 fire prevention grant from FM Mobile.  
 

7:15 PM  Eagle Scout Project: Eagle Scout candidate, John Russo, from Middleton’s Troop 19, met with 
the Board to discuss his Eagle Scout project to renovate a playground behind Fuller Meadow School. 
Selectman Chair Prentakis noted that Troop 19 has had an impressive number of Eagle Scouts over the 
years. He introduced John Russo to the Board and Russo provided the Board with his background in 
scouting and details on his project for building an outdoor classroom behind Fuller Meadow School. Russo 
added that he is soliciting funds for the project, which will cost approximately $5,000. Russo is accepting 
donations to purchase benches and material to build the project. Russo answered the Board’s questions 
on his project and the Board encouraged anyone watching to contribute to the project.  
 
7:22 PM  Review and Discuss Main Street Grill's Compliance with Terms of its License: Selectman 
Chair Prentakis provided a brief history on Main Street Grill’s compliance with Terms of its license. Town 
Administrator Sheehan provided the Board with an update on Main Street Grill’s bill-paying issues, noting 
municipal and state agencies that are owed money from Main Street Grill. Sheehan added that the 
Department of Revenue has modified their agreement for payment schedule with Main Street Grill. After 
a brief discussion, the Board decided to invite Main Street Grill owners to the next meeting to discuss. At 
that time, they will schedule a public hearing if non-compliant 
 
7:26 PM  Review and Vote to Accept Deeds: Melissa Ogden of Mann & Mann PC, provided the Board 
with a brief presentation on the deeds for Lot B East Meadow Lane and Lot C Clinch Circle (Ridgewood 
Estates) to be held for conservation purposes in accordance with the subdivision approvals issued by the 
Planning Board. 
 On a MOTION made by Houten kassiotis to accept the deed on East Meadow Lane.  
 

Houten/Moreschi Lot C Clinch Circle 
 
 
7:30 PM  Recreation Commission Appointment: The Board met with Recreation Commission 
candidate James Desrochers to discuss his background and interest in serving on the Recreation 
Commission. After a brief discussion, the Board took the following action: 



  

Middleton Board of Selectmen              Meeting Minutes                                                                                                      
August 14, 2018                                                                                                                                 Page 3 
 
 

On a MOTION made by Kassiotis, second by Moreschi, the Board of Selectmen VOTED to appoint 
James Desrochers to the Recreation Commission for a term expiring June 30, 2021.  
 

7:31 PM  Vote to Appoint a Superintendent of Public Works:  
 

** Before discussion, Selectman Todd Moreschi recused himself from the meeting, due to 
              Moreschi’s relationship with the candidate.  ** 

 
Town Administrator Andrew Sheehan provided the Board with the process followed to bring them to the 
recommendation of briefly discussed the recommendation of the Town Administrator to appoint Ken 
Gibbons as the  Superintendent of Public Works. Mr. Gibbons met with the Board and  and took the 
following action: 

On a MOTION made by Kassiotis, second by Houten, the Board of Selectmen VOTED unanimously to 
act on the recommendation of the Town Administrator and appoint Kenneth Gibbons a 
Superintendent of Public Works through June 30, 2021. 

 
7:35 PM  Vote to Reappoint Election Clerk: The Town Administrator advised the Board that they need 
to reappoint Eileen Bakoian as Election Clerk, and the Board took the following action:  

On a MOTION made by Houten, second by Kassiotis, the Board of Selectmen VOTED unanimously to 
reappoint Eileen Bakoian as an Election Clerk with a term expiring June 30, 2021. 

 
7:36 PM  Review and Adopt Sick Leave Bank Policy: Town Administrator Andrew Sheehan provided 
the Board with a brief history on the Sick Leave Bank Policy, which was approved at the May 8th Annual 
Town Meeting. After a brief discussion, the Board took the following action: 

On a MOTION made by Houten, second by Kassiotis, the Board of Selectmen VOTED unanimously to 
adopt the Sick Leave Bank Policy, implementing Chapter 68-38.1 of the Middleton Code, as adopted 
under Article 30 at the May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting. 

 
After the vote, Town Administrator Sheehan advised the Board that they will notify all the bargaining units 
in town of the policy.  
 

** Selectman Todd Moreschi returned to the meeting at this time. ** 
 

7:42 PM  Review and Adopt Policy for Disposal of Surplus Supplies & Equipment: After a brief review 
of the proposed policy for disposal of surplus supplies and equipment, as presented by the Town 
Administrator, the Board took the following action:  

On a MOTION made by Moreschi, second by Kassiotis, the Board of Selectmen VOTED unanimously 
to adopt a policy for the disposal of surplus supplies and equipment, as presented by the Town 
Administrator.  

 
7:45 PM Vote to Declare Surplus:  The Board briefly reviewed a request from the Fire Chief to declare 
as surplus a 1932 Buffalo Pumper Fire Truck with an appraised value of $3,500-$4,000, and took the 
following action: 

On a MOTION made by Houten, second by Kassiotis, the Board of Selectmen VOTED unanimously to 
declare the 1932 Buffalo Pumper Fire Truck as surplus.  
 



  

Middleton Board of Selectmen              Meeting Minutes                                                                                                      
August 14, 2018                                                                                                                                 Page 4 
 
 

8:00 PM  Vote to Accept a Donation to the Middleton Food Pantry: The Board briefly reviewed the 
recent donation to the Middleton Food Pantry in the amount of $800 from the Fidelity Donor Advised 
Fund for the Jim Tully/Ellen Casey Giving Fund. After review, they took the following action: 

On a MOTION made by Kassiotis, second by Moreschi, the Board of Selectmen VOTED unanimously 
to accept the donation to the Middleton Food Pantry in the amount of $800 from the Fidelity Donor 
Advised Fund for the Jim Tully/Ellen Casey Giving Fund. 
 

Selectman Chair Prentakis thanked the donors for their generous donation. 
 
7:49 PM  New Business:  

• State Election on September 4th: Selectman Houten reminded everyone that the primary election 
is scheduled for the day after the long Labor Day weekend and encouraged everyone to get out 
to vote.  
 

7:50 PM  Executive Session:   
On a MOTION made by Prentakis, the Board of Selectmen VOTED unanimously by roll call vote to enter 
into Executive Session, under GL c. 30A, s. 21(a)(6), to consider the purchase, acquisition, or 
value of real property off South Main Street and Boston Street where the Chairman declares 
discussion in open session would have a detrimental effect on the position of the Town. 

Selectman Clerk Kassiotis called the roll call:  

Moreschi: Yes 
Houten: Yes 
Prentakis: Yes 
Kassiotis: Yes 
 
MOTION carried unanimously. 

9:17 PM  ADJOURN 
With no further business, on a MOTION made by Houten, the Board of Selectmen VOTED 
unanimously to adjourn at 9:17 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Judith A. Stickney, Minutes Secretary 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Richard Kassiotis, BOS Clerk 
 
 
 
Documents either distributed to the Board of Selectmen before the meeting in a packet or at the 
meeting: 



  

Middleton Board of Selectmen              Meeting Minutes                                                                                                      
August 14, 2018                                                                                                                                 Page 5 
 
 

 

1) Agenda: August 14, 2018 
2) Warrants: 

• #1903, dated 8/2/18, for Payroll in the amount of $452,918; and Bills Payable in the 
amount of $1,793,581  

• #1904, dated 8/16/18, for Payroll in the amount of $494,828; and Bills Payable in the 
amount of $3,116,088 

3) Minutes: 
• July 17, 2018 Open Session 
• July 17, 2018 Executive Session 

4) E-Mail from Town of Danvers to Town Administrator’s Office, Re: 245 S Main St, 8/13/18 
5) E-Mail from MELD to Town Administrator’s Office, Re: 245 South Main Street, 8/13/18 
6) Letter and attachments from Mann & Mann PC to Board of Selectmen, Re: Lot B, East Meadow 

Lane, Middleton, MA/Conservation Restriction, 7/18/18 
7) Letter and attachments from Mann & Mann PC to Board of Selectmen, Re: Lot C, Clinch Circle, 

Ridgewood Estates Subdivision, Middleton, MA/Conservation Restriction, 7/18/18 
8) Town of Middleton Talent Bank Application: Jim DesRocher: Recreation Commission 
9) Memo from Town Administrator to Board of Selectmen, Re: Public Works Superintendent 

Recommendation for Appointment, 8/8/18 
10) Reappointment Request: Eileen Bakoian: Election Clerk 
11) Document: Town of Middleton Board of Selectmen Sick Leave Bank Policy, Adopted August 14, 

2018 
12) Town of Middleton Board of Selectmen Policy for Disposal of Surplus Supplies and Equipment, 

Adopted August 14, 2018 
13) Fire Truck Appraisal from Capitol Construction Equipment Sales, 1932 Buffalo Pumper Fire Truck, 

Appraised Value: $3,500-$4,000 
14) Letter from COA Director to Board of Selectmen, Re: Middleton Food Bank Donation/Bostik, 

7/31/18 
15) Letter from Executive Office of Public Safety to Town Administrator, Re: Transition of the ECRECC 

to the State 911 Department, 8/1/18 
16) Copy of Letter from Governor Baker to Zachary Ingraham, Re: Governor’s High Five Award, 

7/16/18 
17) Waters, Wendall. Middleton firefighter Zachary Ingraham climbs World Trade Center in benefit, 

Wicked Local Danvers: 12 July 2018 
18) Letter from Topsfield Fire Department to Middleton Fire Chief, Re: Thank You for Coverage, 

7/16/18 
19) Town of Middleton Board of Appeals: Notice of Decision: 7 River Street LLC, Permit #18-1054, 

6/29/18 
20) Town of Middleton Board of Appeals: Notice of Decision: Michael & Lisa Fiore, Permit #18-1053, 

6/29/18 



  

Middleton Board of Selectmen              Meeting Minutes                                                                                                      
August 14, 2018                                                                                                                                 Page 6 
 
 

21) Commonwealth of Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission Notice of Hearing: 
Compliance Check: Mike’s Discount Liquors, Inc., DBA Mike’s Discount Liquors, License #88926-
PK-0704, 7/26/18 

22) 2018 Middleton Fall Elections Schedule 
23) Cable Advisory Committee Meeting Agenda and Meeting Documents, 8/14/18 

 



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
239 Causeway Street
Boston, MA 02114

www.mass.sov/abcc

APPLICATION FOR A RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

The following documentation is required as a part of your retail license application.

ABCC investigators reserve the right to request additional documents as apart of their investigation.

[x] Monetary Transmittal Form with $200 fee

You can PAY ONLINE or include a $200 check made out to the ABCC

[x] Retail Application (this packet)

|x] Beneficial Interest - Individual Form

For any individual with direct or indirect interest in the proposed licensee

Beneficial Interest - Organization Form

For any organization with direct or indirect interest in the proposed licensee

[x] CORI Authorization Form

For the manager of record AND any individual with direct or indirect interest in the

proposed licensee. This form must be notarized with a stamp*

Proof of Citizenship for proposed manager of record

Passport, US Birth Certificate, Naturalization Papers, Voter Registration

Vote of the Corporate Board

A corporate vote to apply for a new / transfer of license and a corporate vote to appointing the

manager of record, signed by an authorized signatory for the proposed licensed entity

|x] Business Structure Documents

If Proposed Licensee is applying as:
- A Corporation or LLC - Articles of

Organization from the Secretary of the

Commonwealth

- A Partnership - Partnership Agreement

- Sole Proprietor - Business Certificate

Purchase and Sale Documentation

Required if this application is for the transfer of an existing retail alcoholic beverages license

Supporting Financial Documents

Documentation supporting any loans or financing, including pledge documents, if applicable

[xl Floor Plan

Detailed Floor Plan showing square footage, entrances and exits and rooms

[X| Lease

Signed by proposed licensee and landlord. If lease is contingent upon receiving this license, a copy

of the unsigned lease along with a letter of intent to lease, signed by licensee and landlord

|xj Additional Documents Required by the Local Licensing Authority

* Excludes Officers and Directors ofNon-Profit Clubs



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission

239 Causeway Street

Boston, MA 02114
www. mass. sov/abcc.

Print Form

RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE APPLICATION
MONETARY TRANSMITTAL FORM

APPLICATION SHOULD BE COMPLETED ON-LINE, PRINTED, SIGNED, AND SUBMITTED TO THE LOCAL
LICENSING AUTHORITY.

ECRT CODE: RETA

Please make $200.00 payment here: https://www.paybill.com/mass/abcc/retail/

(PAYMENT MUST DENOTE THE NAME OF THE LICENSEE CORPORATION, LLC, PARTNERSHIP, OR

INDIVIDUAL)

EPAY CONFIRMATION NUMBER

A.B.C.C. LICENSE NUMBER (IF AN EXISTING LICENSEE, CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE CITY)

LICENSEE NAME

200.00

221002

ADDRESS

CITY/TOWN

Rizzo's Middleton, LLC

81 North Main Street

Middleton STATE |MA ZIP CODE 01949

TRANSACTION TVPE (Please check all relevant transactions):

Q Alteration of Licensed Premises [~] Cordials/Liqueurs Permit

Change Corporate Name Q Issuance of Stock Q New Stockholder

Q Change of License Type Q Management/Operating Agreement [~] Pledge of Stock

Change of Location Q More than (3) §15 Q Pledge of License

Q Change of Manager [x] New License Q Seasonal to Annual

Q Other

Q New Officer/Director Q Transfer of License

Transfer of Stock

Q Wine & Malt to All Alcohol

II 6-Day to 7-Day License

THE LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY MUST MAIL THIS TRANSMiTTAL FORM ALONG WITH
COMPLETED APPLICATION/ AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS TO:

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES CONTROL COMMISSION
239 CAUSEWAY STREET

BOSTON/ MA 02241-3396



Page 1 of 1

Your Payment Has Been Approved

Customer Name Rizzo's Middleton LLC

License Type Retail License Filing Fee

Method Of Payment Checking

Bank Account Number ****9982

Your Confirmation Number Is 221002.

Exit |j Make Another Payment || Printr

https://www.paybill.com/Common/PaymentMain.asp 8/9/2018



Page 1 of 1

Payment Confirmation

Customer Name Rizzo's Middleton LLC

License Type Retail License Filing Fee

Current Payment

Payment Amount $200.00

Bank Account Number ****99g2

Bank Account Type Business

Bank Routing Number 211370558

Bank Name SALEM FIVE CENTS SVGS BK

Name On Account Law Office of James J. Burke, LLC

E-Mail Address kgale@jamesburkelegal.com

I have authorized Commonwealth ABCC to initiate the entry to my account. I have an agreement
with Commonwealth ABCC under which I agreed to be bound by the NACHA Rules. This is a
similarly authenticated authorization that satisfies compliance with the Electronic Signatures in the
Global and National Commerce Act (15 USC 7001 et seq), which defines electronic records (as
contracts or other records created, generates, sent, communicated, received, or stored by
electronic means) and electronic signatures. Electronic signatures include, but are not limited to,
digital signatures and security codes. I understand I can revoke the authorization by notifying
Commonwealth ABCC within 60 days. I have signature authority to this account or have been
authorized by an individual who has signature authority to this account to authorize this entry.

E31 have read and accept the above terms and conditions

Please press Accept to charge your account, and to receive a confirmation number.

E^i^J?s!epl..] _^ai^_] [_Accept] [prlnt] CEXIt_]

https://www.paybill.com/Common/PaymentMain.asp 8/9/2018



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission

239 Causeway Street
Boston, MA 02114

www, mass, sov/abcc

APPLICATION FORA RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

Please complete this entire application, leaving no fields blank. If field does not apply to your situation, please write N/A.

1. NAME OF PROPOSED LICENSEE (Business Contact) |Rizzols Middleton LLC

This is the corporation or LLC which will hold the license, not the individual submitting this application, If you are applying for this license as a sole proprietor, not an LLC,

mrporatiQnorothgLleggLentiS/Jou may enter your personal name here.

12. RETAIL APPLICATION INFORMATION
There are two ways to obtain an alcoholic beverages license in the Commonweaith of Massachusetts, either by obtaining an existing
license through a transfer or by applying for a new license.

Are you applying for a new license (, New C Transfer
or the transfer of an existing license?

If applying for a new license, are you applying for this license
pursuant to special legislation?

C Yes (•No
Chapter

If transferring, please indicate the
current ABCC license number you

are seeking to obtain:
N/A

N/A Acts of N/A

If transferring, by what method
is the license being transferred?

$. LICENSE INFORMATION / QUOTA CHECK

;ity/Town

TYPE

Middleton, MA

§12 Restaurant

CATEGORY

)n/0ff-Premises

On-Premises

Vines and Malt Beverages

CLASS

Annual

4. APPLICATION CONTACT
The application contact is required and is the person who wil

First Name;

Title:

Email:

James Middle;

be contacted with any questions regarding this application.

Joseph

Attorney

jburke@jamesburkelegai.com

Prim

Last Name;

1 ryPhone:

Burke

978-548-4555

5. OWNERSHIP Please list all individuals or entities with a direct or indirect, beneficial or financial interest in this license,

An individual or entity has a direct beneficial interest in a license when the individual or entity owns or controls any part of the license. For example, if John Smith

owns Smith LLC, a licensee, John Smith has a direct beneficial interest in the license.

An individual or entity has an indirect beneficial interest if the individual or entity has 1) any ownership Interest in the license through an intermediary, na matter

how removed from direct ownership, 2) any form of control over part of a license no matter how attenuated, or 3) otherwise benefits in any way from the license's

operation. For Example, Jane Doe owns Doe Holding Company Inc., which is a shareholder of Doe LLC, the license holder, Jane Dae has an indirect interest in the

license.

A. All individuals listed below are required to complete a Beneficialinterest Contact - Individual form.
B. All entities listed below are required to complete a Beneficial Interest Contact - Organization form,

C. Any individual with any ownership in this license and/or the proposed manager of record must complete a CORI Release Form.

Name

George Rozopoulos

Title / Position

LLC Manager

% Owned

100

Other Beneficial Interest

N/A

For additional space, piease use next page



APPLICATION FOR A NEW RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

5. OWNERSHIP (continued)

Name

N/A

Title/Position % Owned Other Beneficial Interest

6. PREMISES INFORMATION
Please enter the address

Premises Address

Street Number:

City/Town:

Country:

s where the

81

alcoholic bev

Street Nam

Middleton

ira

V

;es are sold,

North Main Street

State:

United States

MA ZipCoi

Unit:

e: 01949

Description of Premises

Please

outdoor

ease provide a complete description of the premises, including the number of floors, number of rooms on eachfloo

itdoor areas to be included in the licensed area/ and total square footage.

Floor Number

1

2

Square Footage

2,350

1,000

Number of Rooms

1

1

Patio/Deck/Outdoor Area Total Square Footage

Indoor Area Total Square Footage

Number of Entrances

Number of Exits

Proposed Seating Capacity

Proposed Occupancy

, any

0

3,350

3

3

24

40

Occupancy of Premises

Please complete all fields in this section. Documentation showing proof of legal'occupancy of the premises is required.

Please indicate by what right the

applicant has to occupy the premises
Lease

Lease Beginning Term

Lease Ending Term

Rent per Month

Rent per Year

09/01/2018

09/01//2023

4,500.00

54,000.00

Landlord Name

Landlord Phone

AlkiKhloe Realty Trust

(978) 729-3669

Landlord Address
HAmherstRoad
Wilmington,MA01887

If leasing or renting the premises, a signed copy of the lease is required.

If the lease is contingent on the approval of this license, and a signed

lease is not available, a copy of the unsigned lease and a letter of intent

to lease, signed by the applicant and the landlord, is required.

Please indicate if the terms of the lease include payments based on the sale of alcohol: f- Yes C* No



APPLICATION FOR A NEW RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

7. BUSINESS CONTACT
The Business Contact is the proposed licensee. If you are applying as a Sole Proprietor (the license will be held by an individual,

not a business), you should use your own name as the entity name.

* Please see last page of application for required documents based on Legal Structure* .

Entity Name:

DBA:

Primary Phone:

Alternative Phone:

Rizzo's Middleton LLC

ne:

978-729-3669

978-777-0664

Email:

Legal Struct

Fax Number:

FEIN: 82-4414690

N/A

rozopouios@yahoo.com

jre of Entity LLC

Business Address (Corporate Headquarters)

Street Number: 114

City/Town:

Zip Code:

i/Vilmington

1887

Check here if your Business Address is the same as your Premises Address

Street Name: [Amherst Road

State: |MA

Country: [United States

Mailing Address

Street Number: [14

City/^Town:

Zip Code:

A/ilmington

1887

Q Check here if your Mailing Address is the same as your Premises Address

Street Name: (AmherstRoad

State: |MA

Country: [United States

Is the Entity a Massachusetts

Corporation? C Yes (• No

If no, is the Entity registered to

do business in Massachusetts?
(• Yes C No

If no, state of incorporation

Other Beneficial Interest

Does the proposed licensee have

other Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages

Name of License

Wines & Malt Beverage (Lowell)

3 a beneficial interest in any (S Yes C No
averages Licenses?

Type of License

§12 On Premises

License Number

03488-RS-0630

If yes, please complete the following table.

Premises Address

131-133 East Merrimac, Lowell, MA 01852

Prior Disciplinary Action:

Has any alcoholic beverages license owned

Date of Action

N/A -

Name of License

d by the proposed I

State City

censee ever been disciplined for an alcohol related violation?

Reason for suspension, revocation or cancellation



APPLICATION FOR A NEW RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

7. MANAGER CONTACT
The Manager Contact is required and is the individual who will have day-to-day, operational control over the liquor license.

SuffixSalutation Mr, First Name George Middle Name A. Last Name Rozopoulos

Social Security Number 027-64-9437 Date of Birth |01 -22-1979

Primary Phone:

Mobile Phone:

Alternative Phone:

978-729-3669

978-729-3669

978-770-0664

Email: lrozopoulos@yahoo.com

Place of Employment Rizzo's Lowell, Inc.

Fax Number N/A

Citizenship / Residency / Background Information of Proposed Manager

Are you a U.S. Citizen? (, yes C No

Have you ever been convicted of a state, C, Yes C No

federal, or military crime?

If yes, att;fch an affidavit that lists your convictions with an explanation for each

Have you ever been Manager of Record of a

license to sell alcoholic beverages?
(• Yes C No

If yes, please list the licenses
for which you are the current

or proposed manager:
Lowell: 03488-RS-0630

Do you have direct, indirect, or

financial interest in this license? (•Yes f" No

If yes, percentage of interest 100

If yes, please indicate type of Interest (check all that apply):

Q Officer Q Sole Proprietor

[~] Stockholder [X] LLC Manager

[X] LLC Member I' I Director

[~] Partner Q Landlord

Q Contractual Q Revenue Sharing

Management Agreement Q Other

Please indicate how many hours per week you intend to be on the licensed premises [50

Employment Information of Proposed Manager

Please provide your employment history for the past 10 years

Date(s) Position Employer Address Phone

2016-Present Owner/Manager Rizzo's Lowell, Inc. 14 Amherst Rd., Wilmington, MA 01 887 978-729-3669

2013-2016 Owner/Manager Rizzo's Roast Beef & Pizza, Inc. 3 Church St, Wilmington, MA 01887 978-414-1316

2010-Present Owner/Manager Rizzo's Roast Beef & Pizza, Inc. 7 Paradise Rd., Salem, MA 01970 978-745-2524

2005-2010 Owner/Manager Rizzo's Roast Beef & Pizza, Inc. 178 Lynn St., Peabody, MA 01960 978-531-2788

Prior Disciplinary Action of Proposed Manager

Have you ever been involved directly or indirectly in an alcoholic beverages license that was subject to disciplinary action? If

yes, please complete the following:

Date of Action

N/A
Name of License State City Reason for suspension, revocation or cancellation



APPLICATION FOR A NEW RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

9. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Please provide information about associated costs of

this license.

Associated Costs

A. Purchase Price for Building/Land

B. Purchase Price for any Business Assets

C. Costs ofRenovations/Construction

D. Purchase Price of Inventory

E, Initial Start-Up Costs

F. Other (Please specify)

G. Total Cost (Add lines A-F)

J/A

)

80,000.00

?0,000.00

3

200,000.00

Please note, the total iamount of Cash Investment (top right table)

plus the total amount of Financing (bottom right table) must be
equal to or greater than the Total Cost (line 6 above).

Please provide information about the sources of cash and/or

financing for this transaction

Source of Cash Investment

Name of Contributor

George Rozopoulos

Total

Amount of Contribution

45,000.00

200,000.00

Source of Financing

Name of Lender

North Shore Bank

Amount

175,000

Does the lender

hold an interest in
any MA alcoholic

beverages licenses?

No

If yes, please
provide ABCC

license number of

lender

Total:! 200,000.00

10. PLEDGE INFORMATION

Are you seeking approval for a pledge? f Yes (u No

Please indicate what you are seeking to pledge (check all that apply)

License [""] Stock / Beneficial Interest [~] Inventory

N/ATo whom is the pledge is being made:

Does the lender have a beneficial interest in this
license? • C Yes

Does the lease require a pledge of this license? f" yes

a No

(•No



ADDITIONAL SPACE

The following space is for any additional information you wish to supply or to clarify an answer you supplied in the application.

If referrencing the application, please be sure to include the number.of the question to which you are referring.

During 1996, I was pulled over for an excessive speeding charge while on my way to Hampton Beach, NH.

Other people were in the vehicle with me. Unbeknownst to me, one of the persons in the vehicle was in

possession of marijuana on his person. The matter was continued without disposition.



APPLICANT'S STATEMENT

[George Rozopoulos the: Dsote proprietor; D partner; D corporate principal; i$8 LLC/LLP member

Authorized Signatory

ofjRizzo's Middleton LLC , hereby submit this application for Retail Alcoholic Beverage License

Name of the Entity/Corporation Transaction(s) you are applying for

(hereinafter the "Application")/ to the local licensing authority (the "LLA") and the Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission (the

"ABCC" and together with the LLA collectively the "Licensing Authorities") for approval,

I do hereby declare under the pains and penalties of perjury that I have personal knowledge of the information submitted in the

Application, and as such affirm that all statement and representations therein are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

I further submit the following to be true and accurate:

(1) I understand that each representation in this Application is material to the Licensing Authorities' decision on the

Application and that the Licensing Authorities will rely on each and every answer in the Application and accompanying

documents in reaching its decision;

(2) I state that the location and description of the proposed licensed premises does not violate any requirement of the

ABCC or other state law or local ordinances;

(3) I understand that while the Application is pending, I must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the

information submitted therein. I understand that failure to give such notice to the Licensing Authorities may result in

disapproval of the Application;

'D I understand that upon approval of the Application, I must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the

Application information as approved by the Licensing Authorities, I understand that failure to give such notice to the

Licensing Authorities may result in sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted;

(5) I understand that the licensee will be bound by the statements and representations made in the Application, including,

but not limited to the identity of persons with an ownership or financial interest in the license;

(6) I understand that all statements and representations made become conditions of the license;

(7) I understand that any physical alterations to or changes to the size of, the area used for the sale, delivery, storage, or

consumption of alcoholic beverages, must be reported to the Licensing Authorities and may require the prior approval

of the Licensing Authorities;

(8) I understand that the licensee's failure to operate the licensed premises in accordance with the statements and

representations made in the Application may result in sanctions, including the revocation of any license for which the

Application was submitted; and

(9) I understand that any false statement or misrepresentation will constitute cause for disapproval of the Application or

sanctions includJflgssW?gcyT1o1ToTan71yense for which this Application is submitted,

Signature:

Title:

Date: ^l!fc(t%

Rizzo's Middleton LLC Owner and Manager



ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES CONTROL COMMISSION

BENEFICIAL INTEREST CONTACT - Individual (Formerly known as a Personal Information Form)

Please complete a Beneficial Interest- Individual sheet for ail individual(s) who have a direct or indirect beneficial interest, with

or without ownership, in this license. This includes people with a financial interest and people without financial interest (i.e.

board of directors for not-for-profit clubs). All individuals with direct or indirect financial interest must also submit a CORI

Authorization Form.

An individual with direct beneficial interest is defined as someone who has interest directly in the proposed licensee. For

example, if ABC Inc is the proposed licensee, all individuals with interest in ABC Inc are considered to have direct beneficial

interest in ABC Inc (the proposed licensee).

An individual with indirect beneficial interest is defined as someone who has ownership in a parent level company of the

proposed licensee. For example, if ABC Inc is the proposed licensee and is 100% owned byXYZ Inc, all individuals with interest

in XYZ Inc are considered to have an indirect beneficial interest in ABC Inc (the proposed licensee).

Salutation [Mr. First Name [George Middle Name |A. Last Name |Rozopoulos Sufflx

Title: Owner

Primary Phone:

Mobile Phone:

978-729-3669

Social Security Number

Email:

027-64-9437 Date of Birth 01/22/1979

978-729-3669

Alternative Phone: 1978-770-0664

rozopoulos@>yahoo.com

Fax Number N/A

Business Address

Street Number: |81

City/Town:

Zip Code:

Vliddleton

1949

Street Name:

Country:

North Main Street

State: |MA

[USA

Mailing Address

Street Number: |14

City/Town:

Zip Code:

A/ilmington

1887

D Check here if your Mailing Address is the same as your Business Address

Street Name: lAmherst Road

State: iMA

Country: [USA

Types of Interest (select all that applvl

Contractual Q Director Q Landlord

Management AgreementLLC Member

Partner Revenue Sharing [~] Sole Proprietor

LLC Manager

Officer

Stockholder D Other

Citizenship / Residency Information

Are you a U.S. Citizen? (s Yes C No Are you a Massachusetts Resident? (f Yes C No

Criminal History

Have you ever been convicted of a state, federal, or military crime? (• Yes c No If yes, please provide an affidavit

explaining the charges.



ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES CONTROL COMMISSION

BENEFICIAL INTEREST CONTACT - Individual (continued)

Ownership / Interest

Using the definition above, do you hold a direct (• Direct
or indirect interest in the proposed licensee?

C Indirect
If you hold a direct beneficial interest
in the proposed licensee, please list
the % of interest you hold.

If you hold an indirect beneficial interest in this license, please complete the Ownership / interest Table below.

100

Ownership / Interest

If you hold an indirect interest in the proposed licensee, please list the organization(s) you hold a direct interest in which, in

turn, hold a direct or indirect interest in the proposed licensee. These generally include parent companies, holding companies,

trusts, etc. A Beneficial Interest - Organization Form will need to be completed for each entity listed below.

Name of Beneficial Interest - Organization

N/A

FEIN

Other Beneficial Interest

List any indirect or indirect beneficial

Name of License

Rizzo's Lowell, Inc.

ficial or financial interest you have in any othi

Type of License

§12 On Premises

License Number

03488-RS-0630

'r Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages License(s).

Premises Address

129-131 East Merrimac Street, Lowell, MA 01852

Familial Beneficial Interest

Does any member of your immediate

Immediate family includes parents, siblinj

Relationship to You

N/A

family have ownership interest in any other Massachusetts Alcoholic

blings, spouse and spouse's parents. Please list below.

ABCC License Number Type of Interest (choose primary function)

Beverages Licenses?

Percentage of Interest

Prior Disciplinary Action

Have you ever been involved directly or indirectly

yes, please complete the following:
Date of Action

N/A

Name of License

directly in an alcoh

State City

>lic beverages license that was subject to disciplinary action? If

Reason for suspension, revocation or cancellation



AFFIDAVIT

Now comes George A. Rozopoulos of 14 Amherst Road, Wilmington, Massachusetts

01887, and on oath deposes and states the following:

I/ George A. Rozopoulos am a current applicant for a beer and wine license in the town

of Middleton.

While in high school, male and female friends of mine and I decided to take a. ride up to

Hampton Beach in my father's car,

On the way to the beach, I was stopped on Route 95 for speeding in excess of 25 mph
over the speed limit.

When confronted by the police/ it was discovered that one of the occupants was in

possession of some marijuana.

I was given a ticket for speeding, appeared in court/ plead guilty and paid the fine.

Signed under penalties of perjury this 9th day of August/ 2018.

George "A. Rozopj^ttlos

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
Essex County

On this 9th day of August, 2018, before me, the undersigned notary public,

personally appeared George A. Rozopoulos, proved to me through satisfactory evidence

of identification, which was y^hotographic identification with signature issued by a
federal or state government agency, a oath or affirmation of a credible witness, a

personal knowledge of the undersigned, to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are signed
on the preceding or attached document, who swore or affirmed to me that the contents of
the document are truthful and accurate to the l^t of his knowledge and belief,

jsnmJ.Burte
Nstey Me, esfflmsmalthsf Msssachusetts

My0emml86l9n.6)glra8>l8n,8,202l

J. Burke Notary Public:
Commission Expires: 01-8-21



APPLICATION FOR A NEW RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE

BENEFICIAL INTEREST - Oreanization

Please complete a Beneficial Interest - Organization sheet for all organization(s) who have a direct or indirect beneficial interest,

with or without ownership, in this license.

Example:

ABC Inc. is applying for a liquor license. ABC Inc. is 100% owned by XYZ Inc., which is 100% owned by 123 Inc. XYZ Inc. is

considered to have a direct beneficial interest in the proposed licensee (ABC Inc.) and 123 Inc. is considered to have indirect

beneficial interest in the proposed licensee (ABC Inc.). Both XYZ Inc. and 123 Inc. should complete a Beneficial Interest -

Organization Form.

Entity Name: [Rizzo's Middleton LLC

Primary Phone:

Alternative Phone:

978-729-3669

978-770-0664

FEIN: 182-4414690

Fax Number: 782-224-7607

Email: rozopoulos@yahoo.com

Business Address

Street Number: |81

City/Town:

Zip Code:

Vliddleton

1949

Street Name:

Country:

North Main Street

State; |MA

IUSA

Mailing Address

Street Number: |14

City/Town:

Zip Code:

Wilmington

1887

D Check here if your Mailing Address is the same as your Business Address

Street Name: [Amherst Road

State: |MA

Country; |USA

Publicly Traded

Is this organization publicly traded? c Yes (• No

Ownership / Interest

Using the definition above, does this
organization hold a direct or indirect interest in (• Direct f Indirect

the proposed licensee?

If this organization holds a direct beneficial
interest in the proposed licensee, please list

the % of interest it holds.
100

If you hold an indirect beneficial interest in this license, please complete the Owne.rs.l-iiB./.inigrest Table on the next page.



Ownership / Interest

If this organization holds an indirect interest in the proposed licensee, please list the organization(s) it holds a direct interest in

which, in turn, hold a direct or indirect interest in the proposed licensee. These generally include parent companies, holding

companies, trusts, etc. A Beneficial Interest - Organization Form will need to be completed for each entity listed below.

Name of Beneficial Interest - Organization

N/A

FEIN

Other Beneficial Interest

List any indirect or indirect beneficial

License(s).

Name of License

Rizzo's Lowell, Inc.

ficial or financial interest this entity has in an'

Type of License

§12 On Premises

License Number

03488-RS-0630

' other Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages

Premises Address

129-131 East Merrimac Street, Lowell, MA 01 852

Prior Disciplinary Action

Has this entity ever been involved directly

If yes, please complete the following:

Date of Action

N/A

Name of License

or indirectly in an c

State City

lcoholic beverages license that was subject to disciplinary action?

Reason for suspension, revocation or cancellation



MA SOC Filing Number: 201886068580 Date: 2/26/2018 10:44:00 AM

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
William Francis Galvin

Secretary of the Commonwealth, Corporations Division

One Ashburton Place, 17th floor
Boston, MA02108-1512

Telephone: (617) 727-9640

Minimum Fee: SSOO.OO

pertificate^fip^-ganization

Identification Number: 001314742

1. The exact name of the limited liability company Is: RIZZO'S MIDDLETON LLC

2a. Location of its principal office:
No. and Street; 81 NORTH MAD<I ST
City or Town: MIDDLETON State; MA Zip: Q]9W Country: USA

2b. Street address of the office In the Commonwealth at which the records will be maintained:

No. and Street:

City or Town:

14AMHERSTRD
WILMINGTON State: MA Zip: 01887 Country; USA

3. The general character of business, and If the limited liability company is organized to render professional
service, the service to be rendered:

LIMITED SEATING RESTAURANT IN MIDDLETON. MA

4. The latest date of dissolution, If specified:

5. Name and address of the Resident Agent;

Name: GEORGE ROZOPOULOS
No. and Street: MAMHERST RD

City or Town: WILMFNGTON State: MA Zip; 01887 Country: USA

1, GEORGE ROZOPOULOS resident agent of the above limited liability company, consent to my
appointment as the resident agent of the above limited liability company pursuant to G. L. Chapter 156C
Section 12.

6. The name and business address of each manager, if any:

Title

MANAGER

Individual Name
First, Middle, Last, Sufflx

GEORGE ROZOPOULOS

Address (no PO Box)

Address, City or Town, State, Zip Code

81 NORTH MAIN ST
MIDDLETON, MA 01949 USA

7. The name and business address of the person(s) In addition to the managers), authorized to execute
documents to be filed with the Corporations Division, and at least one person shall be named If there are no
managers.

Title Individual Name
First, Middle, Last, Sufflx

Address (no PO Box)

Address, City or Town, State, Zip Code



8. The name and business address of the person(s) authorized to execute, acknowledge, deliver and record
any recordabte Instrument purporting to affect an Interest in real property:

Title

REAL PROPEOTY

Individual Name
First, Middle, Last, Suffix

GEORGE ROZOPOULOS

Address (no PO Box)

Address. City or Town, State, Zip Code

81 NORTH MAIN ST
MIODLETON, MA 01949 USA

9. Additional, matters:

SIGNED IWDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY, this 26 Day of February, 2018,
GEORGE ROZOPOULOS

(The certificate must be signed by the person forming the LLC.)

02001 - 2018 Commonwealth of Massachusetts
All Rights Resarved



To the Massachusetts Secretary of State
Corporations Division

Re; Rizzo Vinnin Square LLC

We hereby consent to the company using the name Rizzo's Middleton LLC. This will not conflict
with our use of our name in any way and we therefore do not object to their use of th.e similar
name.

Sign(

George R^&'G^oulosjyW^ager
Rizzo Virgin Squar^-tLC



To the Massachusetts Secretary of State

Corporations Division

Re; Rizzo Lowell Inc

We hereby consent to the company using the name Rizzo's Middleton LLC. This wilt not conflict
with our use of our name in any way and we therefore do not object to their use of the similar
name.

Signed:

George Rozojioulos, President
Rizzo Lowetl Int .



MASOC Filing Number: 201886068580 Date: 2/26/201810:44:00 AM

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

I hereby certify that, upon examination of this document,'duly submitted to me, it appears

that the provisions of the General Laws relative to corporations have been complied with,

and I hereby approve said articles; and the filing fee having been paid, said articles are

deemed to have been filed with me on:

February 26,2018 10:44 AM

WILLIAM FRANCIS GALVIN

Secretary of the Commonwealth

A TRUE COPY ATTEST

WILLIAM FRANCIS GALVIN
SECRETARY QF THE COMMONWEALTHErazr"^'5ATE C7<-



Jec^cta/yo/'t^ Gommam^ea/t/i/

^State^ ^ou&e', ^Bostcw/, ^cissac/iu&etts^ OS^S

'WUliam Francis Galvin

Sectetaryofthe
Couunonwealtli

August 7,2018

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN;

I hereby certify that a certificate of organization of a Limited Liability Company was
filed in this office by

MZZO'S MIDDLETON LLC

in accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 156C on February

26,2018.

I further certify that said Limited Liability Company has filed all annual reports due and
paid all fees with respect to such reports; that said Limited Liability Company has not filed a
certificate of cancellation or withdrawal; and that said Limited Liability Company is in good
standing with this office.

I also certify that the names of all managers listed in the most recent filing are:

GEORGE ROZOPOULOS

I farther certify, the names of all persons authorized to execute documents filed with this

office and listed in the most recent filing are: GEORGE ROZOPOULOS

The names of all persons authorized to act with respect to real property listed in the most
recent filing are: GEORGE ROZOPOULOS

Processed By:sam

In testimony of which,

I have hereunto affixed the

Great Seal of the Commonwealth

on the date first above written.

Secretary of the Commonwealth



^ 7

FIRSTlpSWJCh
BANK

August 9,2018

Mr. George Rozopoulos
14 Amherst Road
Wilmington, MA 01887

Re: Loan Proceeds from Alky Realty Trust

Dear Mr. Rozopoulos:

Pursuant to your request, this is to document that ALKY Realty Trust
refinanced the property located on Sheppard Street in Lynn on or about
December 13, 2017 which resulted in $307,204.16 in cash out monies to
the beneficiaries of the trust. From these proceeds, you wrote a check on
February 26, 2018 made payable to Alki Kloe Realty LLC for $200,000 with
the description of "Deposit for 81 N Main St." We appreciate your business
and please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned if you have any
questions. I can be reached at 617-226-4486.

Very truly yours,

^y^s^\
George W.M3eorgenes
Vice President



LEASE A GREEMENT

RIZZCTS MIDDLETON, LLC
TENANT

ALKI KHLOE REALTY LLC
LANDLORD

AUGUST 1, 2018



LEASE AGREEMENT

Now come the Parties as described in Section 1 of this Lease Agreement ("Lease"),

and for the rent and consideration recited herein, do hereby agree to be bound to all of the
terms and provisions of this Lease as of August 1, 2018 ("effective date" or "date" of this

Lease).

1. PARTIES:

LANDLORD: AIki Khloe Realty LLC
81 North Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949

TENANT: Rizzo's Middleton LLC
14 Amherst Street
Wilmington, MA 01887

2. DEMISED PREMISES:
Demised Premises comprised of approximately 3,350 square feet located on the first

floor and second floor of right side unit of the building located at 81 Norfh Main
Street ("Unit"), Middleton, MA .

3. TERM:

(a) Original Term and Commencement Date, The term of this Lease shall

be for a period of 10 years commencing on September 1, 2018 and

terminating at 12;00 noon on August 31,2028.

(b) Occupancy. The Tenant may take occupancy of the Demised Premises
upon the completion of the improvements to be made by Tenant.
Tenant shall be allowed on the property at no cost to make

improvements on the property during the month of August, 2018.

(c) Renewal Option. The Tenant shall have the right to extend the term of
this Lease by two additional five (5) year terms, by providing Landlord
written notice of its intention to do so no later than June 1, 2028 and

June 1, 2023 respectfully. Base Rent for the option period(s) shall be
the then current fair market rent.

4. BASE RENTAL:

(a) The Tenant shall pay to the LANDLORD, without notice or demand and without
_„ __aI>-atemjent^_^e<lujctifui^et-frff,the_£olIo-wmg_anauaL^

monthly installments on the first day of each calendar month starting on the

("Commencement Date)" September 1, 2018 and continuing throughout the term
of this Lease:



Term Annual Base Rent Monthly Base Rent

Year 1-10 $ 54,000.00 $4,500.00

All rent is to be paid to and received by the LANDLORD at 81 North Main Street,
Middleton, MA 01949, or at such other place or places as the LANDLORD may designate
in writing, on the first day of each month. If the commencement date of this lease shall

occur on a day other than the first day of a month, the Tenant shall pay a pro rata share of

rent for the first and last month of the term hereof to enable all rent payments to be made

on the first day of the month.

This Lease shall be interpreted as a triple net lease, with the Tenant responsible for

all interior maintenance, repair, and operational costs of the Demised Premises, with

Tenant's responsibility including keeping in good repair and operation any and all

equipment and appliances within the Demised Premises, and being responsible for any and

all expenses relating to maintaining, repairing, and replacing light bulbs and lighting
fixtures, electrical systems, interior and exterior signs, drapes and window treatments,

carpeting and finished floor coverings, trim, walls, doors, any kitchen related equipment

and appliances, communications equipment and systems, interior plumbing fixtures and

systems, hot water, and interior cleaning. Tenant's costs shall include reimbursing the

LANDLORD for the insurance deductible for any losses or damage caused by Tenant, and

for any costs attributable to Tenant alone, or damages / maintenance expenditures caused

by the negligence of the Tenant.

5. ADDITIONAL RENT PAYMENTS AND CHARGES:

In addition to the Base Rent, the Tenant shall pay the LANDLORD the "Additional
Rent" as follows:

(a) Tax Adjustment (share of taxes). Tenant shall pay as additional rent
(hereinafter referred to as "Tenant's Tax Adjustment"), its proportionate share (65%) of

all real estate taxes, sewer rents or taxes in the nature of real estate taxes, including special
and general assessments, levied on 81 North Main Street, Middleton, MA; in the event

LANDLORD, or Tenant, at its own expense, shall file an abatement of real estate taxes and

receive an abatement or refund for any period of time Tenant is in occupancy and Tenant
has paid taxes that exceed its proportionate share, then LANDLORD shall send to Tenant

within ten (10) days of receipt of same, Tenant's pro rata share of such refund in excess of

taxes paid minus the legal expenses and other costs incurred in such activity. Further, if

such taxes are subsequently adjusted for any prior period affecting Tenant's occupancy

including LANDLORD'S or municipality's error, Tenant shall Jbe_jresp_onsible_forJts_

proportionate share of all such adjusted taxes.

Tenant's Tax Adjustment for the first and last lease years shall be adjusted on a pro



rata basis for the then tax year.

(b) Tenant's Expense Adjustment. Tenant shall pay, as additional rent (hereinafter

to be referred to as "Tenant's Expense Adjustment"), 65% of all costs of LANDLORD in
owning, servicing, operating, managing, maintaining, cleaning and repairing the Buildings
including the costs of all services required to be furnished by LANDLORD under this
Lease and including, without limitation, the costs of the following: (i) utilities consumed to
the extent not billed directly to TENANT and expenses incurred in the operation and
maintenance of the leased premises and facilities appurtenant thereto, including, without

limitation, oil, gas, electricity, water, sewer, snow removal and fire protection, sprinkler

maintenance, landscape maintenance, new landscaping and planting, trash disposal, the
costs of all labor incurred in connection with any of the foregoing, office supplies and

expenses, postage fees, telephone charges, and the costs of establishing and maintaining a
reserve account for repairs (including without limitation, fees paid to any governmental

authority for any of the foregoing), (ii) repairs or maintenance of any plumbing, utility, or

other mechanical systems or facilities servicing the leased premises, (iii) casualty, liability
and other insurance, and (iv) management fees. If LANDLORD, in its sole discretion,

installs a new or replacement capital item in the leased premises for the purpose of

reducing LANDLORD'S Operating Expenses, the cost thereof, as amortized by
LANDLORD in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals, with legal
interest on the unamortized amount, shall be included in LANDLORD'S Operating

Expenses, but not in excess of the operating expense savings generated by such items over
the balance of the Lease Term. LANDLORD'S Operating Expenses shall not include

payments of principal, interest or other charges on mortgages, repairs caused or
occasioned by fire and not covered by insurance (with the exception of the cost of repairing
or replacing any of TENANT'S personal property which shall remain the TENANT'S sole

responsibility), eminent domain costs, advertising and marketing costs, leasing
commissions. Any capital improvements other than cost reduction improvements shall be

amortized over the useful life and included in the Operating Expenses on that basis in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principals.

(c) Payment of Tax and Expense Adjustment. Tenant's Tax Adjustment is initially

anticipated to be $.65 per square foot, and Tenant Expense Adjustment is initially

anticipated to be $.65 per square foot on an annual basis, for a total monthly combined
Tenant's Tax and Expense Adjustment of $363.00 per month. Such amount shall be paid

beginning on the Commencement Date and shall be paid to LANDLORD in monthly
installments, coincidental with the monthly rental payment as stated above.

It is acknowledged by Tenant that all of LANDLORD'S actual expenses for a given
fiscal year in accordance with standard accounting practices shall not be determined until

sixty (60) days after the termination of LANDLORD'S fiscal year. Accordingly,
LANDLORD shall exercise good faith and diligence in establishing the projected monthly
expense adjustments for any given fiscal year and shall, within sixty (60) days after the
termination of a given fiscal year, readjust and recompyte said monthly "Tenant's Tax and

Expense Adjustment" for the following fiscal year. In the event that an arrearage or

average exists. Tenant or LANDLORD (as the case may be) shall pay same to the other

Party within ten (10) days of the receipt of such a statement, certified by LANDLORD.



(d) Late Charges and Fees. In the event Tenant fails to make any payment due

pursuant to or under this Lease with receipt by LANDLORD at LANDLORD'S address
within ten (10) calendar days of its due date, with TIME BEING OF THE ESSENCE, then
Tenant shall incur a late payment charge and fee for each such payment to be made equal

to three percent (3%) of such payment to be made.

(e) Rent. All rent to be paid pursuant to this Lease, including the Base Rent, the

Additional Rent, the Two Times Rental Rate (if Tenant holds over), and the late charges
and fees described above, shall all be referred to herein collectively and individually as the
"rent".

6. INITIAL PAYMENT AND SECURITY DEPOSIT: Tenant is required to prepay
the first month's Base Rent and Additional Rent payments.

7. SECURITY DEPOSIT: WAIVED

8. COVENANT^ OF THE TENANT:

(a) Use. The Tenant shall not use or occupy the Demised Premises for any purpose

other than as a pizza/sandwich type shop and its use and occupation thereof shall conform

to all applicable local, state, and federal ordinances, regulations, and laws, and the Tenant

shall indemnify and siave the LANDLORD harmless from and against all claims, demands,

liabilities, costs, and expenses, including reasonable counsel fees arising out of or by reason

of any breach or violation by the Tenant of any provision of this section, and that it shall

not do any unlawful act by which the insurance on the Demised Premises may be affected.

The Tenant shall not store, generate, or use any hazardous waste or substances, or any
hazardous or toxic materials on the Demised Premises, or on any of the common area.
"Hazardous substances" includes any and all substances which are toxic, ignitable,

reactive, corrosive, contain asbestos, polychorobiphenyls, petroleum, or other volatile

organic compounds.

(b) Maintenance and Security. The Tenant agrees to keep said premises in a neat,
orderly, and safe condition, and shall not allow them to suffer, strip or waste and shall be
responsible for maintaining and cleaning the Demised Premises in as good condition and

repairs as they are now or as may be put in hereafter; reasonable wear and tear and

damages by fire or other casualty excepted.

(c) Alteration, Decorations, and Fixtures. The Tenant shall not alter the Demised

Premises nor shall it install any partitions, equipment, machinery, or other property to the

Demised Premises so as to become part of the realty under the law of fixtures as applied in

New Hampshire, without the prior written consent of the LANDLORD and which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld except for the initial build out which has previously
JbeeiLapproved. Any such alterations or pmpjerty so mstalledjsjialljiec(un£_the_proper-ty_of-
the LANDLORD and shall not be removed from the Demised Premises without the consent

of the LANDLORD which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, or as directed by
LANDLORD such alterations or property shall be removed by Tenant at the expiration of



the term. The Tenant shall pay the LANDLORD for any damage to the Demised Premises
or other premises of the LANDLORD by reason of the installation or removal thereof.

(d) Liability. The Tenant shall indemnify and save the LANDLORD harmless from
and against any and all suits, claims, and demands of any kind or nature, by and on behalf

of any person, firm, association, or corporation, arising out of or based upon any incident,

occurrence, injury, or damage which shall or may happen on or about the Demised

Premises or any areas of egress and ingress immediately adjacent to the Demised Premises

from the Common Area, and from and against any matter, thing, occupation, or use of the
Demised Premises which was done or caused to be done by the Tenant, its agents, servants,

employees, licensees, and/or invitees.

(e) Assignment and Subletting. The Tenant shall not assign or sublet this Lease or

any part of the Demised Premises without the prior written consent of the LANDLORD,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, providing such Tenant is equal in ability
to perform under the terms of the lease. Any profit derived from the assignment or

subletting of the lease shall be to the benefit of the LANDLORD. Tenant shall have the
right to assign or sublet to subsidiaries or affiliates of the Tenant without LANDLORD'S
consent. In the event of an assignment or subletting of the Demised Premises, the obligation

of the Tenant shall not be relieved or diminished.

(f) Subordination and Power of Attorney. The Tenant agrees, any provisions of this

Lease to the contrary notwithstanding, that it shall subordinate the lien of this Lease to any

mortgage or mortgages which now exist or which may hereafter be placed upon the land

and buildings of which the Demised Premises are a part, and to any renewal, extension, or
modification of such mortgages. The Tenant shall execute and deliver, upon demand, to
the LANDLORD, at the LANDLORD'S expense, such instrument or instruments as may be

reasonably required to effect such subordination. In the event that Tenant shall fail or

neglect to execute, acknowledge, or deliver any such subordination instrument, the

LANDLORD, in addition to any other remedies, may, as the agent of the Tenant, execute,
acknowledge, and deliver the same, and the Tenant hereby nominates, constitutes, and
appoints the LANDLORD as the Tenant's property legal attorney-in-fact for such

purposes.

(g) LANDLORD'S Right to Enter. The Tenant agrees, any provision of this Lease to
the contrary notwithstanding, that the LANDLORD may enter the Demised Premises from

time to time, when reasonable under the circumstances, to inspect the Demised Premises

and to make any necessary repairs or replacements therein, and to allow the LANDLORD

to show the Demised Premises to prospective Tenants for a period beginning three (3)
months prior to the termination of the term of this Lease.

(h) Default. If the Tenant shall default in the observance or performance of any

conditions or covenants on Tenant's part to be observed or performed under or by virtue

of the provisions in any article or section of this Lease, including the default provisions of

Article 10, the LANDLORD, without being bound to do so and without thereby waiving
such default, may remedy such default for the account and at the expense of the Tenant. If

the LANDLORD makes any expenditures or incurs any obligations for the payment of



money in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees in

instituting, prosecuting, or defending any action or proceeding, such sums paid or
obligations incurred, with interest at the rate ofhvelve (12%) percent per annum and costs,

shall be paid to the LANDLORD by the Tenant.

(i) Aesthetics, Signs, etc. The tenant shall furnish, design, and maintain, at the

option of the Tenant at the Tenant's cost, an exterior sign, consistent with other signs of

other Tenants to identify the Tenant with sign on the building consistent with other signs.

(j) Insurance. The Tenant shall, throughout the term of this Lease and any renewal,

modifications, or extensions hereof, carry, at its expense, so called Tenant's comprehensive
liability insurance on the Demised Premises and its use and occupation thereof with an

insurance company authorized to do business in New Hampshire and acceptable to the

LANDLORD. Such insurance shall be carried in the name of and for the benefit of the
Tenant and the LANDLORD, shall be written on an "occurrence Basis", shall provide

coverage of at least $300,000.00 in case of death or injury to one person, at least

$500,000.00 in case of death or injury to more than one person, and at least $200,000.00 in

case of loss, destruction, or damage to property. Such insurance shall also cover Tenant's

fit-up items or improvements to the Demised Premises. If such insurance is not readily

attained by Tenant, LANDLORD may procure same and Tenant shall pay the cost thereof

within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of such premium notice covering at a minimum the
lease year in advance.

The Tenant shall furnish to the LANDLORD certification or proof of insurance at
least twenty (20) days prior to the commencement date of this Lease, and thereafter, at

least twenty (20) days prior to the expiration of the term or any modification or renewal of
'such policies.

(k) Attornment. In the event of a foreclosure by any mortgagee holding a mortgage

upon all or any part of the Demised Premises, the Tenant shall, upon written notice from

the mortgagee direct all payment due herein to the mortgagee as the assignee of the
LANDLORD for the balance then remaining of the term of this Lease; provided, however,

that Tenant's rights under this Lease shall not be diminished nor shall its responsibilities
be increased. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, LANDLORD

covenants and warrants that any mortgage, deed of trust, ground lease, or lease placed
thereon by LANDLORD during the Lease Term, or any extension thereof, provides or

shall provide that in the event any part of the Demised Premises shall be foreclosed, or as a

result of the exercise of any rights hereunder, the successors and/or assigns of the

LANDLORD'S interests in and to the Demised Premises shall recognize the validity and
continuance of this Lease and shall not disturb Tenant's possession of the Demised

Premises so long as Tenant shall not be in default under the terms of this Lease.

(1) Utilities, Equipment, etc. The Tenant shall pay the cost of all charges of utilities
to the Demised Premises, including, but not limited to and where made available, gas,

electrical, fuel, oil, telephone, water, sewerage, and other items used directly by the Tenant

if not already included in common expenses. Tenant agrees to maintain and keep in good

repair the heating and air-conditioning systems. If HVAC equipment needs to be replaced,



it will be at LANDLORD'S expense and will be treated as a capital improvement.

(m) Tenant's Estoppel Certificates. Tenant shall execute estoppel certificates as

may be required by prospective purchasers or subsequent mortgagees.

9. ADDITIONAL COVENANTS:

(a) Quiet Enjoyment, Utilities, Structural Repairs. The LANDLORD covenants,
warrants and represents that it has full right and power to execute and perform this Lease
and covenants that the Tenant, in meeting all of its obligations and responsibilities as

provided for herein, which includes the payment when due of all rent and other monetary

obligations specified herein, shall peaceably and quietly hold and enjoy the Demised
Premises and all rights, appurtenances and privileges thereto during the term of this

Lease. The Parties agree that the LANDLORD shall be in no way liable to the Tenant for
any interruption in the supply of heat, power, electricity, gas, water, sewerage, air
conditioning, cable, telephone, or other utilities occasioned by any accident, repair,

alteration, improvement, labor difficulty, or shortage of fuel, electricity, or other utilities

from the sources where usually obtained or for any other cause beyond the control of the

LANDLORD. The LANDLORD shall make all necessary repairs to the Demised Premise's
Unit's foundation, exterior roof, exterior walls, exterior water and septic (located outside of

the Demised Premise's building), with the Tenant responsible for all interior items, and all
exterior glass, windows, and doors of the Unit. The LANDLORD shall maintain the
common area and shall permit reasonable access to the Demised Premises provided,

however, the LANDLORD not be obligated to make any repairs or replacements

necessitated by the misuse, neglect, or abuse of the Tenant, its agents, servants, employees,
or business invitees within or about the Demised Premises.

(b) Disturbance or Damage. If the Demised Premises are damaged such that the
Demised Premises may be repaired or restored within one hundred (120) days from the

date of such damage, then this Lease shall continue in effect and LANDLORD shall
expeditiously repair or restore said Demised Premises within said one hundred twenty

(120) days as closely as practicable to their original size, shape, and condition, and until

such repairs or restoration shall have been accomplished, a portion of the rent shall abate

equal to the proportion of the Demised Premises rendered unusable by the damage and in
the event LANDLORD has not repaired or restored said premises within said one hundred

twenty (120) day period, then the Tenant may, at its option, terminate this Lease. The
LANDLORD may terminate this Lease if the cost of such repair or restoration shall exceed

the sum of the insurance payable to it and released to it by any mortgagee or mortgagees.
In the event the Demised Premises or the property for which they are a part shall be so

damaged as to require more than one hundred twenty (120) days to be repaired or

restored, or in the event the Demised Premises or the property of which they are a part

shall be totally destroyed by fire or other casualty, then the LANDLORD or the Tenant
may, at either of their option within fifteen (15) days of such notice, terminate this Lease,

andjf_such option is exercised, each party shall be relieved of any further_ahliga-timiuto_tlie__
other except for the pro rata return of any advance rent to the Tenant and the payment to
the LANDLORD of a pro rata share of any rent in arrears, which includes all Additional

Rent and other rent, fees, and charges provided for herein. Tenant shall not be required to



pay rent during any periods that the premises cannot be occupied by Tenant.

(c) Eminent Domain. If all the Demised Premises and all the property of which
they are a part shall be taken for public purpose by eminent domain, then this Lease shall

terminate as of the date on which the condemnor takes possession of the Demised Premises,

and the Parties shall be under no further obligation to one another hereunder except for

the pro rata return of any advance to the Tenant and the payment to the LANDLORD of a
pro rata share of any rent in arrears, including the Additional Rent and other rent, fees,

and charges provided for herein. If a portion of the Demised Premises shall be so taken so
as to deprive the Tenant of the substantial use thereof, then this Lease shall terminate as in

the preceding sentence. All damages awarded for any such taking, whether for whole or

part of the Demised Premises shall belong to and be the sole property of the LANDLORD,
whether such damages shall be awarded as compensation for diminishing the value of the

leasehold or otherwise, and the Tenant hereby assigns to the LANDLORD all its right,
title, and interest thereto provided, however, that the Tenant shall be entitled to receive

and retain any amounts which may be specifically awarded to it by reason of the loss

associated with reasonable moving expenses reimbursed by the condemnation authority.

The Tenant shall execute and deliver any document necessary or desirable to confirm the

LANDLORD'S rights hereunder.

10. TENANTS DEFAULT

(a) Events of Default. Tenant shall be deemed in default under any of the
provisions, terms, or conditions of this Lease if the Tenant shall breach and/or fail to

perform any of the following:

(i) Fail to pay any installment of rent (including the Base Rent, Additional
Rent and any Additional Rent adjustments), HVAC charge, charges, fees, reimbursements,

damages or other payment required to be made by the Tenant hereunder within twenty-

one (21) days after the date on which it is due and after five (5) days from the date in which
a notice is sent by LANDLORD to Tenant by First Class, U.S. Mail, with time being of the
essence in the payment of all such amounts due herein;

(ii) Faithfully, diligently and completely perform or observe any other
covenant or condition of this Lease (other than payment of rent) and such default remains

unremedied for twenty-one (21) days after written notice thereof has been given to the

Tenant by the LANDLORD, if such default may be cured within said fifteen (15) day
period. Otherwise, within a reasonable period of time thereof (and not to exceed thirty (30)
days unless for weather considerations);

(iii) Tenant makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; files a

voluntary petition in bankruptcy or requests any relief under bankruptcy or from a

bankruptcy court, including any and all business reorganizations; is adjudicatecLmsolvemL

or bankrupt; petitions or applies to any tribunal for any receiver or any trustee of or for

the Tenant or for any substantial part of its property, commences any proceeding relating
to the Tenant or any substantial part of its property under any reorganization,



arrangement, readjustment of debts, dissolution or liquidation law or statute or any

jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, or there is commenced against the Tenant

any such proceeding which remains undismissed for a period of sixty (60) days, or any

order approving the petition in any such proceeding is entered, or the Tenant, by any act,

indicates its consent to or acquiescence in any such proceeding or the appointment of a

receiver of or trustee for the Tenant or any substantial part of its property or suffer any

such receivership or trusteeship to continue undischarged for a period of sixty (60) days; or

(iv) Fails to complete any improvement or fit up to the Demised Premises,

based on allowances provided to the Tenant by the LANDLORD, or based on promised fit

up by the Tenant, or fails to complete said improvements substantially in accordance with

the Plans and Specifications approved by the LANDLORD.

(b) LANDLORD'S Remedies: Once Tenant is in default of any of its obligation
hereunder, the LANDLORD is entitled, at its option, to do any, some, or all of the

following:

(i) Immediately or at any time thereafter, without demand or notice, enter

the Demised Premises or any part thereof, in the name of the whole, and repossess the same
as the LANDLORD'S former estate and expel the Tenant and those claiming through or

under the Tenant and remove their effects forcibly, if necessary, without being deemed

guilty of any manner of trespass and without prejudice to any remedies which might be

otherwise used for arrears of rent or preceding breach of covenant in order to protect the

Premises or to mitigate damages. Upon such entry, Tenant covenants that the Tenant shall

remain liable to the LANDLORD for all outstanding amounts, and for all interest charged
thereon, along with an amount equal to the total rent (including Base Rent, Additional

Rent, and Additional Rent adjustments) reserved for the balance of the term plus repair

expenses and the costs of releasing the Demised Premises (renovation and repair fees and
costs, broker fees, advertising, Tenant fit up costs and fees of the new Tenant, and
marketing fees and costs), less the net amount which the LANDLORD realizes from the

reletting of the Demised Premises, plus any and all reasonable attorney's fees and costs
incurred by the LANDLORD in enforcing any of its rights and powers under this Lease.

(ii) Proceed with an eviction of Tenant's right to possession of the Demised
Premises in accordance with the statutory laws and remedies of the State of New

Hampshire and to regain possession of the Demised Premises to sell or to re-let same in an
effort to protect the Demised Premises and to mitigate damages as recited herein, and
collect from the Tenant reimbursement for LANDLORD'S legal fees and litigation costs.

(iii) Commence one or more actions at law or equity for reimbursement of

all LANDLORD'S expenses, costs and for payment of all damages incurred and/or arising
out of Tenant's default and/or breach of this Lease, including all of the LANDLORD'S legal
_fees and litigation costs, including expert's costs and fees, and in addition thereto, for all

rental payments (including Base Rent, Additional Rent, adjusted Additional Rent),
charges, fees, and interest presently due and owing and that shall become due and owing
for the full term of this Lease in accordance with the LANDLORD'S remedies hereunder

10



and remedies available to LANDLORD at law or in equity. As used in this section and

elsewhere, the term "Additional Rent" shall mean the value of all considerations other than

Base Rent agreed to be paid or performed by the Tenant hereunder in accordance with

Section 4. herein.

If LANDLORD brings suits or legal action against Tenant to collect any
outstanding amounts, and if the remaining term of the Lease Agreement is less than six (6)

months from the date that a final judgment is rendered by a court of competent

jurisdiction, then LANDLORD is entitled to receive as part of any court award the
remaining rental and additional rent payments from the Tenant. Said acceleration is

meant to anticipate the costs of a second suit for the remaining installments due under the

Lease and is meant to minimize costs by including the remaining rental payments in any

judgment rendered within six (6) months of the expiration of the term of this Lease
Agreement. In the event that the Demised Premises is leased during this six (6) month
period, then the LANDLORD shall credit any rent received from this remaining period
(less costs of releasing) to the Tenant.

(iv) Relet the Demised Premises from time to time, upon such terms as it

may deem fit, and if a sufficient sum shall not be thus realized to yield the net rent required

under this Lease, the Tenant agrees to satisfy and pay all deficiencies as they may become

due during each month of the remaining term of this Lease, or the LANDLORD may
require the Tenant to pay to it as damages such lump sum as will suffice to make the

LANDLORD whole for the balance of the term of this Lease (and the parties agree to use a
5% savings rate / investment rate for any such computation to derive the present value of

the required differential in lease payments).

(v) Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to require the LANDLORD to
await the date whereon this Lease, or the term hereof, would have expired had there been
no default or breach by the Tenant or no such termination or cancellation. The Tenant

expressly waives service of any notice of intention to re-enter and waives any and all right
to recover or regain possession of the Demised Premises or to reinstate or redeem this

Lease as may be permitted for, by, or under any statute or law now or hereafter in force

and effect. The rights and remedies given to the LANDLORD in this Lease are distinct,
separate, and cumulative remedies, and no one of them, whether or not exercised by the
LANDLORD, shall be deemed to be to the exclusion of any of the others herein or by law

or equity provided.

(vi) Nothing contained in this section shall limit or prejudice the right of the
LANDLORD to prove and obtain, in proceedings involving the bankruptcy or insolvency

of the Tenant, the maximum allowed by this Lease as a result of any statute or rule of law
at the time in effect. The LANDLORD shall have the right to immediately sell all of the
personal property remaining in the Demised Premises owned by the Tenant and/or to

which it has a security interest concermng^ and to use t^

as a credit to the amounts owed the Tenant to the LANDLORD, after deduction of

LANDLORD'S reasonable administrative fees it may charge in the sale and disposal of

Tenant's property.

11



(c) Mitigation of Damages:

(i) The Tenant shall have the primary responsibility to insure that the
Demised Premises are re-Iet for the remaining term of this Lease in the event Tenant is in

default, or anticipates the failure of being able to pay rent for the full term of this Lease.

The Tenant will cooperate with the LANDLORD and shall undertake all reasonable
activity to mitigate LANDLORD'S damages and to provide an acceptable substitute Tenant
under the terms and conditions recited herein;

(ii) In all cases, and notwithstanding the Tenant's primary responsibility to
relet the Demised Premises, the LANDLORD may exercise reasonable diligence to relet the

Demised Premises by contracting with a licensed real estate broker with a proven record

and with a reasonable standard fee schedule with all such fees to be paid by the Tenant,
unless it is clear from the Tenant's communications to the LANDLORD, including monthly

updates, that the Tenant is actively marketing the Demised Premises for lease through a

local qualified real estate broker professional with expertise in the particular market use of

the Demised Premises.

11. LANDLORD'S DEFAULT: In no case shall the LANDLORD be deemed to be in
default under this Lease, unless the Tenant shall have first given notice in writing, within

ten (10) days following the occurrence or the date of its reasonable discovery, specifying the
nature of the default complained of and the LANDLORD shall have failed to cure said
default within a reasonable period of time after such notice (with thirty days deemed
reasonable, weather permitting, except for emergency conditions). Any default by
LANDLORD and any action against the LANDLORD will be independent from Tenant's
covenant to make rental payments and related payments, including fees and charges, under
the terms of this Lease.

12. DELAYS: In any case where either party hereto is required to do any act other

than the making of any payment of rent or other monetary sum due LANDLORD

hereunder, the time for performance thereof shall be extended for a period equal to any

delay caused by or resulting from any act of God, war, civil commotion, fire casualty,
governmental regulations, or other causes beyond such party's reasonable control, whether
such time be designated by a fixed date, a fixed time, or a "reasonable time".

13. EXPIRATION, TERMINATION AND HOLDING OVER: Upon the expiration
date or any earlier termination of this Lease or any renewal or extension thereof, with time

being of the essence, Tenant shall at its own expense: i) promptly surrender and deliver the
Demised Premises to LANDLORD in a clean condition and in the same condition as existed
as of the date of the Tenant's initial occupation of the Demised Premises along with all

improvements made to the Demised Premises (damage by fire or other casualty covered by

insurance excepted), reasonable wear and tear excepted, ii) have removed all of its

personal property (furniture, files, equipment as long as all rent and related fees and

charges have been paid), and any alterations, installations, work, or additions to the
Demised Premises made by Tenant and which are required to be removed by

12



LANDLORD, and iii) restore the Demised Premises in the same condition at the time the
Tenant took occupancy of the Demised Premises, reasonable wear and tear excepted,
including ensuring all appliances and systems are in good working order and condition,

making all repair and repainting as may be necessary to restore the Demised Premises,

including the cleaning and/or replacement of carpeting (as required by the condition of the
carpeting) to the same condition as at the commencement of this Lease, reasonable wear
and tear excepted. The Tenant shall fully repair and restore the Demised Premises with

respect to any damage caused by Tenant, whether resulting from removal of Tenant's

personal possessions or improvements, or from its use of occupancy, or otherwise. The
Tenant shall fully pay and satisfy any and all costs and expenses for any damage caused by

any such removal, and fully pay any and all sums to LANDLORD remaining to be paid by
Tenant under the terms of this Lease. If for any reason, the Tenant has failed to restore the

condition of the Demised Premises on or before the expiration date or earlier termination

date of this Lease, and the LANDLORD is required to make repairs, re-carpet, repaint

some or all of the Demised Premises, or to undertake any other substantive repairs, then

the Tenant shall be liable for at least one additional full month's Base Rent and Additional
Rent rental payment to cover an additional month period in which the Demised Premises

needs to be made ready for release.

If Tenant remains in possession of the Demised Premises or any part thereof after
the described date of the expiration of the term of the Lease or of any subsequent renewal

or extension thereof, or after five (5) days following any earlier termination of the Lease by

LANDLORD, LANDLORD may exercise any and all of its remedies available at law or
equity as to such holding over, and/or any or all of the remedies set forth in this Lease as to
Tenant's default, and in addition thereto the Tenant agrees, and shall automatically pay on

the first day of each month held over, an increased rental rate for the Demised Premises to

the LANDLORD equal to two (2) times the rate of the total monthly installment of Base
Rent plus Additional Rent charged for the last month of the Lease and is to include all
other charges described in this Lease (collectively all such rental and other payments
referred to herein as "Two Times Rental Rate"), with said holding over period subject to
the same terms and conditions as those set forth in this Lease other than as to the length of

Term and Rent (since this shall be the Two Times Rental Rate) and this Lease provision
shall survive and be enforceable by LANDLORD notwithstanding such expiration or other
termination of this Lease. The Tenant further agrees to reimburse the LANDLORD for all

of the LANDLORD'S damages, legal fees and costs, including any litigation costs, incurred

from the Tenant's holding over beyond the expiration date or earlier termination date of

the Lease.

Nothing in this Lease or in the previous provision shall be deemed to extend the

Lease Term willingly by the LANDLORD beyond the expiration date set forth in this
Lease, nor grant any right to Tenant or any other person to use, occupy, or remain in
possession of all or any part of the Demised Premises beyond said date of expiration of this

Lease or any earlier termination thereof. Throughout this Lease and any renewal or

extension thereof, Tenant shall, unless caused by or due to the negligence or willful act of

LANDLORD, defend, hold harmless, and indemnify LANDLORD against any and all
claims, causes of action, damages, judgments, losses, liability, costs, expenses, reasonable

13



attorney's fees, and penalties arising from or out of any act, event, damage, omission,

destruction, loss, injury, negligence, or occurrence in, at, or about the Demised Premises, or
the use or occupancy of Tenant of all or any part thereof, or occasioned wholly or in part

by any act, omission, or negligence of Tenant, its agents, contractors, invitees, quests,

employees, servants, Tenants, concessionaires, or others under its direction or control, or
with respect to this Lease relating to the failure of the Tenant to vacate the Demised

Premises upon the expiration date, or earlier termination date of this Lease as set forth

herein.

Any property remaining upon termination or after the expiration date of the term,

shall be removed at the cost and expense of the Tenant by the LANDLORD, and may
either be sold, destroyed, and/or disposed of by any other manner or form at the discretion

of the LANDLORD. The LANDLORD shall in no event be liable for any property of the
Tenant remaining in the Demised Premises after the expiration or termination date of the

Lease, and has the full right, power, and title to dispose of all such property left by the
Tenant as the LANDLORD sees fit. The LANDLORD shall be repaid by the Tenant for all
disposal, storage, or other fees relating to Tenant's property within twenty (20) days from

the date a request for payment has been sent to the Tenant by the LANDLORD.

14. GENERAL TERMS: Any written notice, request, or demand required or permitted

hereunder shall, until either party shall notify the other in writing of a different address, be
properly given if sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the

LANDLORD at the address stated in Section 1. of this agreement, and to the Tenant at the
address of the Demised Premises; or given in hand by one party to the other and the other

party acknowledges receipt of such notice from the other party in writing; or sent by

facsimile, acknowledged by fax, with the original document sent by U.S. First Class Mail on

the day of the fax. This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties
hereto, their heirs, successors, administrators, and assigns. Any consent, express or

implied, by the LANDLORD to any breach by the Tenant of any covenant or condition of
this Lease shall not constitute a waiver by the LANDLORD of any prior or succeeding
breach by the Tenant of the same or any other covenant or condition of this Lease.

Acceptance by the LANDLORD of rent or other prepayment with knowledge of a breach
or default under any term hereof by the Tenant shall not constitute a waiver by the
LANDLORD of any breach or default. This Lease shall be construed and interpreted in

accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire, and the parties to this Lease

agree to litigate any matter pursuant to or arising from this Lease only in the courts of New

Hampshire. Both parties waive their rights to a jury trial, and agree that any litigation of

any matter pursuant to this Lease shall be decided by a judge. This Lease may be fully
executed by both parties in two (2) or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original and all collectively but one and the same instrumeut. Tenant acknowledges the

legal consequences of this Lease Agreement in negotiating with the LANDLORD and
acknowledges that the LANDLORD has recommended that the Tenant review this
Agreement and related Exhibits with Tenant's legal representative^orcojunsel prior t^^^
execution of this Agreement. Tenant further acknowledges and represents that the

individual executing this Lease Agreement on behalf of Tenant is duly authorized to enter

into this Agreement and to bind the Tenant to the terms herein. The Tenant, for the

14



consideration of this Lease, hereby waives all rights of exemption relating to and/or in

continuing in occupancy of the Demised Premises, by virtue of the Bankruptcy provisions
of the United States Code, including without limitation, 11 U.S.C. 522. In the event that

the Tenant is or becomes a Debtor under Title 11 of the United States Code, then the

Tenant hereby consents to the granting to the LANDLORD relief from any and all
automatic stays pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, and further agrees that it shall not

object to any motion of the LANDLORD requesting relief from any such automatic stays,

and further agrees that it shall vacate the Demised Premises within hvo days from the date

of the LANDLORD'S request to do so.

15. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION: The LANDLORD and Tenant hereby release each
other (and each person and legal entity claiming through each of them) from any and all
liability or responsibility to the other (and each person and legal entity claiming through
the other) by way of subrogation or otherwise for any loss or damage to property caused by

fire or any of the extended coverage casualties covered by insurance, or by sprinkler

leakage, even if such fire, other casualty, or such leakage shall have been caused by the

fault or negligence of the other party or anyone for whom such party may be responsible

provided, however, that its release shall be applicable and in force and effect only with

respect to loss or damage occurring during such time as the releasor's insurance policies

shall contain insurance coverage and a clause or endorsement to the effect that any such

release shall not adversely affect or impair the coverage of said policies or prejudice the

right of the releasor to recover thereunder. If extra costs shall be chargeable therefore,

each and the other party, at its election, may pay the same but shall not be obligated to do
so.

16. COMMON AREAS: Tenant shall have the right to use the common areas in terms
of ingress and egress to the building, in conjunction with other Tenants and business

invitees, and has the right to use parking areas per approved plans and walkways as they
may exist from time to time which are open to the general public. Tenant shall have no

authority, express or implied, to use the common area for its own exclusive use or for

advertising or storage purposes.

The Tenant and LANDLORD have caused this Lease to be executed as follows with an

effective date as listed on the first page of this Lease;

TENANT: RIZZO'S

George Rozopoulos, IVIanager

LANDLORD:ALMKHLQEREAj^VLLC

By: /<
Ge^rgeij^ozopoulos, Manager

15



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission

LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY REVIEW RECORD

Q For Reconsideration

Middleton

ABCC License Number City/Town Date Filed with LLA

TRANSACTION TYPE (Please check all relevant transactions):

New License

Transfer of License

Ij Change of Manager

Change of Beneficial Interest

a

D
D

Change Corporate Name

Change of DBA

Alteration of Licensed Premises

Change of Location

D
D

D

Pledge of Collateral a.e. ucense/siock)

Change of Class d.e. Annual / Seasonal)

Change of License Type d.e. club/ restaurant)

Change of Category d.e. All Alcohoiwine, Malt)

D
D
D
D

Change Corporate Structure d.e. corp / ixa

Change of.Hours

Issuance/Transfer ofStock/New Stockholder

Management/Operating Agreement

'APPLICANT INFORMATION

Name of Licensee- Rizzo's Middleton LLC D/B/A

ADDRESS: 181 North Main Street CrWTOWN; |Middleton STATE IMA ZIP CODE 101949

Manager George Rozopoulos

§12 Restaurant Annual All Alcoholic Beverages

Type
(i.e, restaurant, package store)

Class
(Annual or Seasonal) (i.e. Wines and Malts / All Alcohol)

Granted under yes n No
Special Legislation?

If Yes, Chapter

of the Acts of (year]

LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY DECISION

Please indicate the decision of the
Local Licensing Authority: Approves this Application

Please indicate what days and hours
the licensee will sell alcohol:

:Sun-Wed: 11 a.rn.-9p.rn.

Thurs-Sat; 11 a.m.-10 p.m.

If Approving With Modifications, please indicate below what changes the LLA is making:

Please indicate if the LLA is
lowngrading the License

category (approving only Wines
>nd Malts if applicant applied for All
Mcohol):

Changes to the Premises Description

Patio/Deck/Outdoor Area
Total Square Footage

Seating Capacity

Indoor Area
Total Square Footage

Number of Entrances

Number of Exits

Floor Number Square Foolage Number of Rooms

Abutters Notified: yes n No n DateofAbutter
Notification

Date of
Advertisement

'lease add any

additional remarks or
:onditions here:

Check here if you are attaching additional documentation

The Local Licensing Authorities By:
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission

Ralph Sacramone
Executive Director

Date APPROVED by LLA



A^CORCy INSURANCE BINDER
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

02/27/18

THIS BINDER IS A TEMPORARY INSURANCE CONTRACT, SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS SHOWN ON PAGE 2 OF THIS FORM.

William J. Lynch Insurance Agency
92 High St.
2nd Floor
Danvers, WIA 01923

COMPANY

Lloyds of London

DATE
EFFECTIVE

08/09/18 12:01
x AM

PM

BINDER #

2563
DATE EXPIRATION TIME,

08/28/18
X. 12:01 AM

NOON

(^,Nfo,Ex_t}: 978.750-0044 fAS, No): 978-750-8808

CODE: SUB CODE: 1] THIS BINDER IS ISSUED TO EXTEND COVERAGE IN THE ABOVE NAMED COMPANY

PER EXPIRING POLICY #: TBA
AGENCY
CUSTOMER ID: 2792
INSURED AND MAILING ADDRESS

Alki Khloe Realty LLC
George Rozopoulos-Member
81 North Main St
IVIiddteton,MA01949

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I VEHICLES I PROPERTl' (Including Location)

Commercial Building at 81 N Main St, Middleton, MA 01949
125% Repl Cost Coverage on Building
Policy Premium $2261.20 is Paid in full
Policy Period 2/28/18-8/28/18

J_

COVERAGES

TYPE OF INSURANCE

PROPERTTPERTY CAUSES OF LOSS

BASIC I I BROAD |X| SPEC

GENERAL LIABILIFl'

xl COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS MADE I Xl OCCUR

VEHICLE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS ONLY

NON-OWNEDAUTOS ONLY

VEHICLE PHYSICAL DAMAGE p^p

COLLISION:

OTHER THAN COL;
GARAGE LIABILITr

ANY AUTO

EXCESS UABILITT

UMBRELLA FORM

OTHER THAN UMBRELLA FORM

WORKER'S COMPENSATION
AND

EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY

OTHER

SPECIAL
CONDITIONS /

;IAL
31TIONS /
:R

COVERAGES

COVERAGE / FORMS

Building Coverage

RETRO DATE FOR CLAIMS MADE:

ALL VEHICLES I I SCHEDULED VEHICLES

RETRO DATE FOR CLAIMS MADE:

DEDUCTIBLE

1,000

LIMITS
COINS %

100

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGETO
RENTED PREMISES

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL &ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accidant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE

MEDICAL PAYMENTS

PERSONAL INJURY PROT

UNINSURED MOTORIST

ACTUAL CASH VALUE

STATED AMOUNT

AUTO ONLY- EA ACCIDENT

OTHER THAN AUTO ONLY:

EACH ACCIDENT

AGGREGATE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

SELF-INSURED RETENTION

PER STATUTE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

FEES

TAXES

ESTIMATED TOTAL PREMIUM

AMOUNT

600,000

$ 1,000,000

$ 50,000

$ 5,000

$ 1,000,000

$ 2,000,000

$ 1,000,000

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

?

$

i.

$

$

$

$

$

$

i,

$

NAME & ADDRESS

North Shore Bank
ISAOA ATIMA
PO Box 5490
Norwell, MA 02061

AODmONALINSURE& -

LENDER'S LOSS PAYABLE x
I OSS PAYFF _\ __ LMQBIGAGEE—

2nd Mortgagee
LOAN #:

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

^J^/.^y^

ACORD7S(2016/03)
Page1of2 © 1993-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission

LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY REVIEW RECORD

For Reconsideration

Middleton

ABCC License Number City/Town Date Filed with LLA

TRANSACTION TYPE (Please check all relevant transactions):

D-

a'

D'

New License

Transfer of License

Change of Manager

[[ Change Corporate Name

Q Change ofDBA

]I Alteration of Licensed Premises

Change of Beneficial Interest || Change of Location

D

n
D

Pledge of Collateral (i.e. Ucense/stock)

Change Of Class (i.e. Annual/Seasonat)

Change of License Type d.e. dub / restaurant)

Change of Category d.e. All Akohol/Wine, Malt)

D
D
D

Change Corporate Structure d.e. Corp / LLC)

Change of Hours

Issuance/Transfer of Stock/New Stockholder

Management/Operating Agreement

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Name of Licensee Rizzo's Middleton LLC D/B/A

ADDRESS: |81 North Main Street CITY/TOWN: [Middleton STATE IMA ZIP CODE |01949

Manager George Rozopoulos

§12 Restaurant Annual All Alcoholic Beverages

Type
(i.e. restaurant, package store)

Class
(Annual or Seasonal)

Cateaoi
(i.e. Wines and Malts /All Alcohol)

Granted under Yes I—I No
Special Legislation?

If Yes, Chapter

of the Acts of (year)

JCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY DECISION

Please indicate the decision of the
Local Licensing Authority: Approves this Application

Please indicate what days and hours
the licensee will sell alcohol:

Sun-Wed: 11a.m.-9p.m.

Thurs-Sat: 11 a.m.-10p,m,

IFApproving With Modifications, please indicate below what changes the LLA is making:

Please indicate if the LLA is
downgrading the License
Category (approving only Wines
and Malts if applicant applied for All
Alcohol):

Indoor Area

Changes to the Premises Description Total Square Footage

Patio/Deck/Outdoor Area
Total Square Footage

Seating Capacity

Number of Entrances

Number of Exits

Square Foolaye Number of Rooms

Abutters Notified: yes F1 No Fl DateofAbutter
Notification

Date of
Advertisement

Please add any
additional remarks or

conditions here:

Check here if you are attaching additional documentation

-Thel-ocal-LicensingAuthorities-By:——— --- ————— - - -
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission

-———————Ra Iph-Saera m one-—-——
Executive Director

J
Date APPROVED by LLA



Town ofMiddleton
Memorial Hall

48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts

01949-2253
978-774-3589

www.middletonma.gov

Common Victualler/General License Application

ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED AND A TELEPHONE NUMBER PROVIDED

1. Licensee Name: /A itUW^-c^ ("t&OS^ oC pi'Z.'Z^ J:rt<_

2. Name of Manager: A^t,^^v~\^ t)em<^\<j£S

3. Social Security Number/FID Number: ^Cs- 3 '7^ U^t/^

4. Business Address: 3l^. I Soo+U ,Ma>i^ C+'r<*e-V-

5. Home Address: €> S k «. ?<:'ii •& 13' T>r* 'Peg V) ^ y M A 0 i ci fc 0

6. Telephone Numbers (Please provide all numbers by which you can be reached):

Business Phone: <m '-111 4T77

Cell Phone: ^~lK 3^"- "74'7 7

Home Phone:

7. Email Address: rr\^o p 3.3 ( © fj|rmt I . COH^

8. Registered Voter? / Yes _No

9. Are you a U.S. Citizen? )(. Yes _No

10. Court and Date of Naturalization (if applicable)
(Submit proof of citizenship anct/or naturalization such as Voter's Certificate, Birth Certificate or
Naturalization Papers)

10a. Where?

11. Identify your criminal record: (Massachusetts/Any other state/Federal): Have you had any arrests or
appearance in a criminal court or have you been charged with a criminal offense regardless of final
disposition; (Must check either Yes or No)

_Yes X No

If yes, please describe offense(s) specific charge and disposition (fine, penalty, etc.)

Page 1 of 2
Revised 4/24/18



Town ofMiddleton
IMemorial Hall

48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts

01949-2253
978-774-3589

www.middletonma.gov

11. Prior experience in the restaurant/food establishment industry: X Yes _No
If yes, please describe:

m^rU^W dcxXf of Pi<-~£^ ^^CtrS.

12. List all employment for the last five years:

13. Hours per week to be spend on the licensed premises: (o 0

14. Days and Hours of Operation: Sur»-<Scx^ / 0 • ( °

15. Seating Capacity: ^-l

16. Do you own/lease premises? ^ _Yes _No

If Leased:

16a. If Yes, From Whom? WK P'P£>t>er'^-ieS

16b. Terms of Lease? _ fe»0 pr\o<ni^^S
(Please provide a copy of lease agreement)

I hereby swear under the pains and penalties of perjury that the information I have given in this application is true
to the best of my knowledge and belief.

^./^ ^-Qrf.o T)^!^^^ <°S
Printed Name of Owner

By: ffk!K3{SO ,( ^ex^rJL^ _ Date: ^ l6h]^t8

Revised 4/24/18

(Signature)

Page 2 of 2



Insurer:

MA Retail Merchants WC Group Inc.
PO Box 859222-9222
Braintree. MA 02185
(Carrier Code: 34355)

1. The Insured:
Mailing Address:

Middleton House of Pizza,
251 Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949

PRODUCER: Agent# 523
Georgetown Insurance Agency, Inc

10 West Main St
Georgetown, MA 01833

Carrier Policy #: 014005034023117
Carrier Prior Policy #: 014005034023116

Inc.

Fein: 263794646

Other workplaces not shown above:
NO OTHER WORKPLACES FOR THIS POLICY

Type of Business: Corporation
Risk ID:

2. The policy period is from 12:01 a.m. on 1/01/2017 to 12:01 a.m. on 1/01/2018

at the insured's mailing address.

A. Workers Compensation Insurance: Part One of the policy applies to the Workers
Compensation Law of the states listed here:

MA

B. Employers Liability Insurance: Part Two of the policy applies to work in each
state listed in Item 3.A. The limits of our liability under Part Two are:

Bodily Injury by Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease
Bodily Injury by Disease

C. Other States Insurance:

$_

$_

$_

500
500
500

.000

.000

.000

each accident

policy limit
each employee

D. This policy includes these endorsements and schedules:
WCOOOOOOC(01/15) WC000414C07/90) WC000422B(01/15) WC2003C)!(04/84) WC200302(05/86)
WC200303B(07/99) WC200306B(06/13) WC200405(06/01) WC200601A(07/08)

4. The premium for this policy -will be determined by our Manuals of Rules,
Classifications, Rates and Rating Plans. All information required below is subject

to verification and change by audit.

Classifications Code
No.

Premium Basis
Total Estimated

Annual Remuneration

SEE SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS

Total Estimated Annual Premium $ 1.317.00
Minimum Premium $ 267.00 Expense Constant $

Rate Per

$100 of
Remuneration

Estimated
Annual

Premium

.00 Deposit Premium $ .00



Town ofMiddleton, Massachusetts
Revenue Enforcement and Protection Certification (TLEAP)

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 62C, Section 49A, I hereby
certify under the penalties of perjury that I to my best knowledge and belief, have
filed all State tax returns and paid all state taxes required by law.

Name of Company: KJ/UtVo^ 4o^S^ of ?iZ7A

Address: ^ 1 5w\V^ r^c.^^ Sjre&V

Title of Person Signing: Tr £.«^ U rs r

Signature of Individual or Corporate Name: /?^^Q '^)p^^^

Printed Name of Above: ^A/cJ<4-a^to "b^r^^k^S

Contact Telephone Number: ^ 1 ^ • 3 ^ S~~ 7 ^ 7 7

Date: 7 / 6(3 ,3.01$

Social Security Number or Federal Identification Number: ^(s '-31^ 4^ l/G

Email Address: ^^> \'v\\^ o P ? 3.1 (^ ^ wo<» \ C-c (>-»



COMMERCIAL.LEASE
Peter Demakes

Middleton House of Pizza

So. Main St Middleton, Ma 01949
978-265-2903 / 978-774-4045
E Mail: psd.2011@aol.com

PARTIES: 7 River St LLC/ WDK Realty Trust, Warren Kelly, Manager/Trustee, 10 Perkins
Rd, Middleton, MA 01949, hereinafter referred to as "LESSOR" which expression shall include

its heirs, administrators, executors and assigns, wherever the context permits, does hereby lease to

Middleton House of Pizza , Peter Demakes OfMiddleton personally, hereinafter called the
"LESSEE", which expression shall include its successors and assigns, wherever the context so

permits, and the LESSEE hereby leases the following described premises:

1. DESCRIPTION OF LEASED PREMISES: 221 So. Main St, Unit 3 Middleton, Massachusetts,
consisting of approximately 2,100 net square feet of retail space. The LESSEE shall be provided with

employee and customer parking, as available, in the parking lots adjacent to the building.

2. RENTAL TERM: The term of this lease shall be for 60 months, commencing on September 1
2018 and ending on Sept 1,2023.

3. RENT: Yielding and paying the yearly base rent as follows, with monthly payments due on the first day
of each month:

Year One Sept 2018-2019: Yearly sum $58,800.00
Monthly Payments in advance of $4,900.00

Year two Sept 2019-2020: Yearly sum $61,800.00
Monthly Payments in advance of $5,150.00

Year three Sept 2020-2021: Yearly sum $62,400.00
Monthly Payments in advance of $5,200.00

Year four Sept 2021-2022: Yearly sum $63,000.00
Monthly Payments in advance of $5,250.00

Year five Sept 2022-2023: Yearly sum $63,600.00
Monthly Payments in advance of $5,300.00

4. ADVANCE RENT/SECURITY DEPOSITi The LESSEE agrees to pay the LESSOR the first,
Last and Security Deposit in the amount of $14,700.00 Plus two months CAM @ $2,030.00
Total amount due upon execution of lease $16,730.00

5. COMMON AREA COSTS: Tenant shall be liable for CAM [Common Area Maintenance]
which shall include taxes, plowing, maintenance , management, common water, common

lighting& septic Estimated at $5.80 sq./ft. Total monthly charge $1,015.00
6. Additional fee will be charged for Grease trap pumpine at a rateM50% ofthe punmcost.

Estimated CAM Expenses
Estimated taxes $30,000.00
Estimated landscape / snow removal @ $18,000.00
Estimated maintenance $4,000.00
Estimated Common utilities $12,000.00
Estimated Septic maintenance $9,000.00
Insurance $2,000.00
Estimated management $8,600.00
Estimated total Common Area cost $83,600.00

Monthly CAM Charge $5.80 sq. /ft.



7. SERVICES FURNISHED TO LEASE PREMISES:. The Lessee agrees to pay for separately
metered heat and electrical services. and water furnished to the Leased Premises,

LESSEE shall also be responsible for trash removal.

8. USE OF LEASED PREMISES: The Leased Premises shall only be used for retail food service of pizza,
sandwiches. No premium Coffees, blended coffee drinks, smoothies or breakfast sandwiches are permitted
to be served all other proposed uses shall be subject to the written consent of the LESSOR, and the
LESSOR shall have sole and complete discretion to give or withhold such consent.

9^ Lessee acknowledges that this lease is a direct lease from the 7 River St LLC /WK Reality Trust

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: The LESSEE acknowledges that no trade or occupation shall be
conducted in the Leased Premises or use made thereof which will be unlawful, improper, noisy or
offensive, or contrary to any law or any municipal by-law or ordinance in force in the town in which the

Leased Premises are situated.

11. MAINTENANCE:

LESSEE'S OBLIGATIONS: The LESSEE agrees to maintain the leased premises in good
condition. Lessee agrees to perform regular preventive maintance on the heat and air condition

unit. Reasonable wear and tear, damage by fire and other casualty are accepted.

Lessee agrees to maintain unit entry and exit access in front of lessees unit free from snow and

ice. If Lessee fails to do so Lessor may remove snow and ice at lessee's expense.

LESSOR'S OBLIGATIONS: The LESSOR agrees to keep and maintain in satisfactory order,
condition, and repair (1) the roof of the building, (2) the exterior walls and structures of the
building including all plumbing, mechanical, and electrical systems and fixtures installed by the
LESSOR, and (3) sidewalks, curbs, and grounds adjacent to the ground floor of the building. If
maintenance is required because of the LESSEE, the LESSEE will pay the cost of same upon
demand of the LESSOR. LESSEE must pay for an annual service contact on the HVAC
equipment.

12. SUBORDINATION: This lease is subject and subordinate to any and all mortgages, deeds of tmst and
other instruments in the nature of a mortgage, lien or liens on the property, now or at any time hereafter,

which the Leases Premises are a part. Without limitation of any of the provisions of this lease, in the event
that any mortgagee, or its assigns, shall succeed to the interest of LESSOR or any successor of the
LESSOR, then this Lease shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect and LESSEE shall and does
hereby agree to attom to such mortgages, or its assigns as its LESSOR, provided, always, however, that

such mortgagee or assigns shall recognize the LESSEE as tenant under the terms and conditions of this
Lease or any modification, extension, or amendment of this Lease.

13. INSURANCE: LESSEE shall maintain in full force and effect, at his own cost and expense,
comprehensive general liability insurance indemnifying the LESSOR against all claims, loss or liability due
to bodily injury and property damage to any person or property in or on the Leased Premises or the areas
adjacent thereto and used in the LESSEE'S business with coverage of at least $300,000.00 in respect to
injury or damage to one person and at least $300,000.00 in respect to injury or damage by any one
occurrence and at least $100,000.00 in respect to damage to property, in each case providmg for notice to
LESSOR prior to cancellation. LESSEE shall furnish LESSOR with certificates of such insurance by the
commencement of the term.

14. ASSIGNMENT/SUBLETTING: LESSEE shall not assign this Lease or any interest therein or sublet the
whole or any art of the Leased Premises without prior written consent of the LESSOR, which permission
shall not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding such consent, LESSEE shall remain liable to
LESSOR for the payment of all rent and for the full performance of the covenants and conditions of this
lease.



15. DEFAULT: In the event that:

A. The LESSEE shall default in the payment of any installment of the rent or sum herein specified and such
default shall continue for five (5) days after the due date of such payment; or

B. The LESSEE shall default in the observance or performance of any other of the LESSEE'S

covenants, or obligations hereunder and such default shall not be corrected within thirty (30) days
after written notice thereof; or

C. The LESSEE shall be declared bankrupt or insolvent according to the law, or, if any assignment

shall be made of the LESSEE'S property for the benefit of creditors, then the LESSOR shall have
the right thereafter, while such default continues, to re-enter and take complete possession of the

Leased Premises, to declare the term of this lease ended, and remove the LESSEE'S effects,

without prejudice to any remedies which might be otherwise used for arrears of rent or other

default. The LESSEE shall indemnify the LESSOR against all loss of rent and other payments,
which the LESSOR may incur by reason of such termination during the residue of the term.

If the LESSEE shall default, after reasonable notice thereto, in the observance or performance of any

conditioning or covenants on LESSEE'S part to be observed or performed under virtue of the

provisions in any Section of this lease, the LESSOR, without being under any obligation to do so and
without thereby waiving such default, may remedy such default for the account and at the expense of

the LESSEE. If the LESSOR makes any expenditures or incurs any obligations for the payment of
money in connection with any default hereunder by the LESSEE, including but not limited to,
reasonable attorney's fees in instituting, prosecuting or defending any action of proceeding, such sums

paid or obligations incurred, with interest at the rate often percent (10%) per annum and costs, shall

be paid to the LESSOR by the LESSEE as additional rent. Any default by the Lessee gives the Lessor
all rights to terminate the lease as written with notice to the Lessee at which time the Lessee shall

remove property and vacate premise within 30 days.

16. LESSOR'S ACCESS: Lessor shall have reasonable access to unit for safety and emergency
reasons.

17. INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY: The LESSEE shall save the LESSOR harmless from all
loss and damage occasioned by the use or escape of water or by the bursting of pipes or by any nuisance
made or suffered on the Leased Premises, unless such loss is caused by the neglect of the LESSOR.

It is understood and agreed that the LESSEE assumes all risk of damage to its own property arising
from any cause whatsoever, including without limitation, loss by theft or otherwise, unless caused by

an act or neglect of the LESSOR.

18. HAZARDOUS WASTE: LESSEE shall not introduce on or transfer to the Leased Premises or
the property of which the Leased Premises form a part any hazardous materials (as hereinafter
defined); nor dump, flush or otherwise dispose of any hazardous materials indo the drainage,

sewage or waste disposal systems servicing the Leased Premises or the property of which the

Leased Premises are a part; nor generate, store, use, release, spill or dispose of any hazardous

materials in or on the Leased Premises or the property of which the Leased Premises are a part; or

transfer and hazardous materials from the Leased Premises to any other location; nor commit or

suffer to be committed in or on the leased Premises or the property of which the Leased Premises

are a part; any act which would require any reporting or filing of any notice with any
governmental agency pursuant to any statutes, laws, codes, ordinances, rules or regulations



present or future, applicable to the Leased Premises or the property of which the Leased Premises

are a part or to hazardous materials (hereinafter collectively called "Environmental Laws").

LESSEE agrees that if it or anyone claiming under it shall generate, store, release, spill, dispose of or
transfer to the Leased Premises or the property of which the Leased Premises are a part any hazardous

materials, it shall forthwith remove the same, at its sole cost and expense, in the manner provided by
all applicable Environmental Laws, regardless of when such hazardous materials shall be discovered.

Furthermore, LESSEE shall pay any fines, penalties or other assessments imposed by and

governmental agency with respect to any such hazardous materials and shall forthwith repair and

restore any portion of the Leased Premises or the property of which the Leased Premises are a part

which it shall disturb in so removing any such hazardous materials to the condition which existed

prior to LESSEE'S disturbance thereof.

LESSEE agrees to deliver promptly LESSOR any notices, orders or similar documents received from

any governmental agency or official concerning any violation of any Environmental Laws or with

respect to any hazardous materials affecting the Leased Premises or the property of which the Leased

Premises are a part.

For purposes of this Lease, the term "hazardous materials" shall mean any include any oils, petroleum

products, asbestos, and any other toxic or hazardous waste, materials and substances which are

defined, determined or identified as such in any Environmental Laws or in any judicial or
administrative interpretation of Environmental Laws.

The obligations of LESSEE contained in this Section 17 shall survive the expiration or termination of
the LEASE. LESSEE agrees and acknowledges that the Leased Premises are served by sanitary
septic system, and LESSEE agrees not to introduce any substance into said septic system that may

damage or otherwise inhibit the functioning of said system.

19. SURRENDER: The LESSEE shall at the expiration or other termination of this Lease remove
all LESSEE'S goods and effects from the Leased Premises (including, without hereby limiting the
generality of the foregoing, all signs and lettering affixed or painted by the LESSEE, either inside
or outside the Leased Premises). LESSEE shall deliver to the LESSOR the Leased Premises and
all keys, locks, thereto, and other fixtures other than trade fixtures connected therewith and all

alterations and additions upon the Leased Premises, in good condition, damaged by fire or other

casualty only accepted. In the event of the LESSEE'S failure to remove any of LESSEE'S
property from the premises, LESSOR is herby authorized without liability to LESSEE for loss or
damage thereto, and at the sole risk of LESSEE, to remove and store any of the property at

LESSEE'S expense, or to retain same under LESSORS control or to sell at public or private sale,

without notice any or all of the property not so removed and to apply the net proceeds of such

sale to the payment of any sum due hereunder, or to destroy such property.
20. ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS: The LESSEE shall not make structural alteration or additions

to the Leased Premises, but may make nonstructural alterations provided the LESSOR consents

thereto in writing, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. All such
allowed alterations shall be at LESSEE'S expense and shall be in quality at least equal to the
present construction. LESSEE shall not permit any mechanics' liens, or similar liens to remain

upon the Leased Premises for labor and material furnished to LESSEE or claimed to have been
furnished to LESSEE in connection with work of any character performed or claimed to have

been performed at the direction of the LESSEE and shall cause any such lien to be released of
record forthwith without cost to LESSOR. Any alterations or improvements made by the

LESSEE shall become property of the LESSOR at the termination of occupancy as provided
herein.



21. FIRE, CASUALTY. EMINENT DOMAIN: Should a substantial of the Leased Premises, or of
the property which they are a part, be substantially damaged by fire or other casualty, or be taken
by eminent domain, the LESSOR may elect to terminate this lease. When such fire, casualty, or

taking renders the leased Premises substantially unsuitable for their intended use, a just and

proportionate abatement of rent shall be made, and the LESSEE may elect to terminate this lease

if:
A. The LESSOR fails to give written notice within thirty (30) days of intention to restore

Leased Premises, or

B. The LESSOR fails to restore the Leased Premises to a condition substantially suitable for
their intended use within ninety (90) days of said fire, casualty or taking.

C. The LESSOR reserves, and the LESSEE grants to the LESSOR, all rights which the
LESSEE may have for damages or injury to the Leased Premises for any taking by eminent
domain, except for damage to the LESSEE'S fixtures, property, or equipment.

22. NOTICE: All notices required or to be given hereunder shall be in writing and deemed duly given when
delivered by hand or by Federal Express or comparable express delivery service or when mailed by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage and registration or certification charges
prepaid, addressed as follows:

If to the LESSEE: If to the LESSOR
7 River St LLC/WDK Reality Trust
lOPerkinsRd
Middleton, MAO 1949

All rent shall be made payable to: "WDK Reality Trust"
Executed, in duplicate, this day of 2018.

Lessee: Social #

Peter Demakes & Nektario Demakes Personally
Middleton House of Pizza Inc

6 Sheffield Dr.
Peabody,Ma01960

LESSOR: 7 River St LLC/WDK Reality Trust

SIGNED:
Warren D. Kelly, Manager/Trustee

Witness:



ADDENMENTS^

Lessor shall provide Lessee with the following:

• Two free months of rent to complete Unit buildout

• Unit walls shall be sheet rocked with primer and once coat of neutral paint
color

• Basic HVAC done to retail specifications. Additional HVAC FOR
RESURAUNT DEMAND SHALL BE PAID FOR BY Lessee.

• Lessor shall provide a 200 Amp Electrical Service. Wiring of all equipment
shall be done at the expense of the Lessee as well as any upgrade to the
200 amp service.

• One completed Handicap Bath to include painted wall, handicap rails,
suspended ceiling, lighting, flooring

• Underground plumbing to add an additional bath if required.

• Flooring allowance of $6,000.00 [no mortared tile flooring shall be
allowed]

• Lighting Allowance of $2,000.00

• One panel on the street Pylon sign [size to be determined] Sign to be
approved by Lessor and paid for by Lessee

• Lessor shall provide an exterior grease trap for Lessee which shall be
maintained on a monthly basis by the Lessee at Lessees expense.

• Lessee must install at Lessees expense an inside grease trap.

• Lessee shall be restricted to a maximum of 30 seats inside for dining

• Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to approve Lessees
Buildout design.

• Lessee shall provide layout to Lessor for all floor drains, mop sinks, gas
service and plumbing needs. Lessee shall pay for all plumbing &
installation of these items.

• No paper signs, neon or lit signs are allowed in window without Lessors
approval.





; s
 .
5
°
' 
?

I 
li

t
he

 I
II

n
il §F

B:
I 

§^
3
 
R



CONSULTING SERVICES
50 Holt Road, Andover, MA (508) 380-8460

August 22, 2018

Middleton Town Hall
Attn: Middleton Board of Selectmen
48 S Main St, L-

Middleton, MAO 1949
978-777-3617

RE: STARBUCKS COFFEE-CV License
221 SOUTH MAIN ST., MIDDLETON, MA 01949

To Whom It May Concern,

Please find enclosed review package for the new Starbucks Coffee.

Enclosed
Common Vie Application
Insurance documents

Copy of the lease
Review Fee of $100.00

^ ^ha^l^
If you have any questions or require any additional information please do not
hesitate to call, 603-505-5633.

Respectfully,
Daniel Brennan Jr

dpb Design Consultants
50 Holt Road, Andover MA 01810
603-505-5633

dpbpermits@gmail.com



TownofMiddleton
Memorial Hall

48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts

01949-2253
978-774-3589

www. midd.letonma.gov

Common Victualler/General License Application

ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED AND A TELEPHONE NUMBER PROVIDED

1 Licensee Name: STARBUCKS CORPORATION- DBA- STARBUCKS COFFEE

2. Name of Manager: Thomas Martinello, Jr

3. Social Security Number/FID Number: 91-1325671

4. Business Address: 221-227 SOUTH MAIN ST

5. Home Address: 124 Chestnut St. North Reading, MA 01864

6. Telephone Numbers (Please provide all numbers by which you can be reached):

Business Phone:_

Cell Phone: 781-521-3807

Home Phone: 781-521-3807

7. Email Address: TomMartinello@yahoo.com

8. Registered Voter? X Yes _No

9. Are you a U.S. Citizen? _X_Yes _No

10. Court and Date of Naturalization (if applicable) NA
(Submit proof of citizenship and/or naturalization such as Voter's Certificate, Birth Certificate or
Naturalization Papers)

10a. Where? NA

11. Identify your criminal record: (Massachusetts/Any other state/Federal): Have you had any arrests or
appearance in a criminal court or have you been charged with a criminal offense regardless of final
disposition; (Must check either Yes or No)

_Yes

If yes, please describe offense(s) specific charge and disposition (fine, penalty, etc.)

NA

Page 1 of 2
Revised 4/24/18



TownofMiddleton
Mtemorial Hall

48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts

01949-2253
978-774-3589

www.middletonma.gov

11. Prior experience in the restauranffood establishment industry: X Yes _No
If yes, please describe:

Starbucks Coffee Company 04/01/2014 - Present

Prior - Food runner / Waiter at the TD Garden

12. List all employment for the last five years:

Starbucks Coffee Company 04/01/2014 - Present

13. Hours per week to be spend on the licensed premises: 40 hours

14. Days and Hours of Operation: 7 DAYS PER WEEK 5AM- 11 PM

15. Seating Capacity: 45 INSIDE -10 PATIO

16. Do you own/lease premises? _^ Yes _No

If Leased:

16a. If Yes, From Whom? 7 RIVER STREET LLC

16b. Terms of Lease? 10yrs
(Please provide a copy of lease agreement)

I hereby swear under the pains and penalties of perjury that the information I have given in this application is true
to the best of my knowledge and belief.

STARBUCKS CORPORATION -AGENT DANIEL BRENNAN
Printed Name of Owner

Date: 08/21/18

^03-^0^-^3 J

Page 2 of 2
Revised 4/24/18



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Department of In dustrial Accidents

Office of Investigations
1 Congress Street, Suite 100

Boston, MA 02114-2017
www. mass.gov/dia

Workers' Compensation Insurance Affidavit: General Businesses

SUIiMiS^I

ADplicant InfQrmation^ Please Print Leeiblv

Business/Organization Name: STARBUCKS COFFEE

Address: 2401 UTAH AVENUE SOUTH

City/State/Zip: SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98134 Phone #: (206)318-1575

Are yfiK an employer? Check the appropriate box:

1.181 I am a employer with 150,000+ employees (full and/
or part-time).*

2. D I am a sole proprietor or partnership and have no

employees working for me in any capacity.

[Mo workers' comp. insurance required]

3. D We are a corporation and its officers have exercised

their right of exemption per c. 152, §1 (4), and we have

no employees. [No workers' comp. insurance required]**^

4. D We are a non-profit organization, staffed by volunteers,

with no employees. [No workers' comp. insurance req.]

Business Type (required):
5. U Retail

6. \/[ Restaurant/Bar/Eating Establishment

7. Q Office and/or Sales (incl. real estate, auto, etc.)

8. [_| Non-profit

9. D-Entertainment

10.Q Manufacturing

11.D Health Care

12.D Other.

*Any applicant that checks box #1 must also fill out the section below showing their workers' compensation policy information.
**lfthe corporate officers have exempted themselves, but the corporation has other employees, a workers' compensation policy is required and such an

organization should check box #1 .

I am an employer that is providing workers' compensation insurance for my employees. Below is the policy information.

Insurance Company Name: XL Specialty Insurance Co.

Insurer's Address;

City/State/Zip:

70 Seaview Avenue

Stanford, CT 06902-6040

Policy # or Self-ins. Lie. # RWD5000339-05 . Expiration Date: 01-OCT-2018

Attach a copy of the workers' compensation policy declaration page (showing the policy number and expiration date).

Failure to secure coverage as required under Section 25A ofMGL c. 152 can lead to the imposition of criminal penalties of a

fine up to $1,500.00 and/or one-year imprisonment, as well as civil penalties in the form of a STOP WORK ORDER and a fine

of up to $250.00 a day against the violator. Be advised that a copy of this statement may be forwarded to the Office of

Investigations of the DIA for insurance coverage verification.

I do hereby certify, under the pains and penalties of perjury that the Information provided above is true and correct,

Sienature: _V-A^Z—^- • Date: 06/28/18

Phone #: 603-505-5633

Official use only. Do not write in this area, to be completed by city or town official.

Permit/License #City or Town:

Issuing Authority (circle one):
1. Board of Health 2. Building Department 3. City/Town Clerk 4. Licensing Board 5. Selectmen's Office

6. Other

Contact Person: Phone #:_

www.mass.gov/dia



9/27/2017 Memorandum of Insurance

Memorandum of Insurance

MEMORANDUM OF INSURANCE DATE
27.Sep.2017

Fhis Memorandum is issued as a matter of information only to authorized viewers for their internal use only and confers no rights upon any viewer of this
Memorandum. This Memorandum does not amend, extend or alter the coverage described below. This Memorandum may only be copied, printed and
iistributed within an authorized viewer and may only be used and viewed by an authorized viewer for its internal use. Any other use, duplication or
listribution of this Memorandum without the consent of Marsh is prohibited. "Authorized viewer" shall mean an entity or person which is authorized by
:he insured named herein to access this Memorandum via https://online.marsh.com/marshconnectpublic/marsh2/public/moi?client=2061. The information
:ontained herein is as of the date referred to above. Marsh shall be under no obligation to update such information.

PRODUCER

Marsh USA Inc.

;"Marsh")

NSURED

itarbucks Corporation, et al*

? 0 Box 34067
Seattle
Washington 98124-1067
United States

COMPANIES AFFORDING COVERAGE

o. A Greenwich Ins. Co./XL Specialty Insurance Company

'anadian Branch (Canada GL)

a. B XL Insurance America Inc. / XL Specialty Insurance

company
o. c XL Specialty Insurance Co.

o. D Zurich American Ins. Co. / Zurich Ins. Co. Ltd. (Canada)

o.E

o. F

COVERAGES

co
LTR

(\
(\

1^

B
B

<-
*w-

r-

D

D

D

(EMORANDUM MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
•ERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

TVPEOF
INSURANCE

iENERAL LIABILITY

commercial
General Liability
)ccurrence

LUTOMOBILE

JABILITY

\ny Auto

iXCESS LIABILITY

Jmbrella Form

;ARAGE UABILITY

VORKERS

;OMPENSATION/
iMPLOYERS

JABIUTY

FHE PROPRIETOR]
' PARTNERS/
EXECUTIVE
3FFICERS ARE
Included
JS PROPERTY

:ANADA
'ROPERT/
:ANADA BOILER
ii MACHINERY

POLICY NUMBER

IG05000342-05
:A00002814LI17/<

^AD500034105

JS00076664LI17^
:A00004594LI17/s

WD5000339-05
ZWR5000340-05

PPR2850979-19

3828744

3828744

POLICY
EFFECTIVE

DATE
n-OCT-2017
U-OCT-2017

)1-OCT-2017

31-OCT-2017
31-OCT-2017

31-OCT-2017
31-OCT-2017

31-OCT-2017

31-OCT-2017

31-OCT-2017

POLICY
EXPIRATION

DATE
)1-OCT-2018
)1-OCT-2018

ll-OCT-2018

)1-OCT-2018
U-OCT-2018

U-OCT-2018
)1-OCT-2018

U-OCT-2020

n-OCT-2020

)1-OCT-2020

LIMITS
LIMITS IN USD UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED

jENERAL AGGREGATE

•RODUCTS-COMP/OP
LOG
•ERSONAL AND ADV
NJURY
EACH OCCURRENCE

•IRE DAMAGE (ANY ONE
•IRE)
/[EDEXP(ANYONE
•ERSON)

:OMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

iODILY INJURY (PER
'ERSON-)
iODILY INJURY (PER
ICCIDENT)
•ROPERTY DAMAGE

iACHOCCURENCE

AGGREGATE

WTO ONLY (PER
ACCIDENT)

USD 5,000,000

USD 2,000,000

USD 1,000,000*

USD 1,000,000*

USD 1,000,000*

Not Covered

USD 2,000,000

USD 20,000,000

USD 20,000,000

)THER THAN AUTO ONLY:
iACH ACCroENT

^GGREGATB

VORKERS COMP LIMITS

iL EACH ACCIDENT

iL DISEASE-POLICY
JMTT
iL DISEASE-EACH
iMPLOYEE

USD 1,000,000

USD 1,000,000

USD 1,000,000

"ER OCCURRENCE

•EROCCURRBNCE

'ER OCCURRENCE

USD 1,500,000

USD 1,500,000

USD 1,500,000

The Memorandum of Insurance serves solely to list insurance policies, limits and dates of coverage.
Any modifications hereto are not authorized.

DATE

https://online.marsh.com/marshconnectpublic/marsh2/public/moi/luVp/z1/jZBdS8MwFIZ_TS_tybp2K4JlkYGdmxPGaJsbSbOsDeSjJGkFf71pRS-cm-bqf... 1/4



Town ofMiddleton, Massachusetts

Revenue Enforcement and Protection Certification fREAP)

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 62C, Section 49A, I hereby

certify under the penalties of perjury that I to my best knowledge and belief, have
filed all State tax returns and paid all state taxes required by law.

Name of Company: STARBUCKS CORPORATION -DBA-STARBUCKS COFFEE

Address: 2401 UTAH AVENUE SOUTH, SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98134

Title of Person Signing: PERMIT/LICENSE EXPEDITOR

Signature of Individual or Corporate Name: STARBUCKS CORPORATION \^

Printed Name of Above: DANIEL BRENNAN

Contact Telephone Number: 603-505-5633

Date: 08/21/18

Social Security Number or Federal Identification Number: 91-1325671

Email Address: DPBPERMITS@GMAIL.COM



arescneouLE."r

Emin-

_2_

FURNL BY

FLAT BLACK MTOp_Z8_

73XG51N laaoxicsoMu • FUT BLACSK Mrooza

FFtEESTAtJDtNG-aiiXSSINBISXlSSOMM-FUTl
SLACK MTBMB

CONTROL BOX

BjXE_RACKHOOP^
DTWAYFINGINO GRAPHIC ORDER PQIMT
STARMTTCTN-WHrTE

wnrre

OREEN

SLACKMTOasa
OT ORQERPOINf CANOPY FREESTAMDIKG. -
FLAT BLACK MT002S
OT WAYFINDIN3 ORAPH1C GIR6CTIONAL
OOUBLEARROW-WHrre

iLoor

UMBRELU - BASE 85LB 43KG . FLArBLACK

-BLACKCAMVASFnOGI

;B

33

.L_

?c

!B

ac

ec

ac

GC

LL_
QC

GC

SB~ sc-

QC

:ERENCE PAINT P935FOH
[pecincATioNs

'EPLUANUFAC1UBER6

>ER MANUFACTURER'S
NSTRUCTtONE.

1LUS 3/4 SAIL MAJESTIC PANEL
:INISH: BLACK POWOEfl-COATED
ALUMINUM

EXTERIOR OGNA(

SESISNIDJMUIffl - DESCNPT10N (FURN.aY
,B»U.E.DI«.

ilONADE-1

14106

ilQNAQE-'
1&W1

I-_DISK_SF ILLUMINATED FLUSH ~ ]&&
>EVOLUED.BOIN-1S25MM

ifWETHflLL

1_

U.UMINATEO ARROW SEfllES-tCIN 1;7CMM

SIGM • DRIVE THRUILLUMINATEO ARROW
SERIES FLUSH MOUNTED -fW -ABIN );UOMM
31QM- OTDIRECTIOIdALIL.LUk/.IMATEO
^RRGWSEn!EBWrrHLOQO"4SlNH70MM

3!QN. DT CLEARANCE BAR ARROW SERIES
'REESTAMDINB

31QN-WORDMARKSTARBUCKS FLUSH
i<OUNTeD-1GINZ05UtM

is

3B

iT

RESPONSIBILITY LEGEND
OENEfiALCONTRACTOR
tANOLORO
STARBUCKS

; SCHEDULE. "6"

irer.B^

,B

iT

COMMENTS

WON DISPLAYS GO TO COOflOI^TCFiNALSGT Iip WITH VENDOR
•L TO PPOUIOS eLECTRICALAIMO BLOCKINSAS REOlJIFtED. REFER'•oww
4ILTON DISPLAYS QC TO COOROINATE FINALSET UP WrTH
.^O PROVIDE eLECTOICALANt) BLOCKINO AS R&IUIFIEC
11LJON 01SPLAVS SC TO CQOROINATE FIWtLSET UP W1THVEN;
,^ TO PROVIDE ELECTFUCALAND BLOCKING AS ReQU!Fl£D. REFER
roa/A-soai.

:tTLTON DISPLAYS GC TO COORDINATE FINAL'SET UPWTH'VENOOR'
-TO PFlOVIOE ELECTRICAL AND BLOCKING AS REQLHREO. QREEN
30LOR.

WJ£?IGNASE UNDER SEPARATE PERMn-, SHOWN
PQFI nEF£Ra!GEAMO COO flOlMATION ONLY.

MOTElAFICHrTECTURAL SffE PLAN PREPARED BASED
3N LL DRAWlNSS RECEIVED ON OyCS^DIB

ARCHITECTURAL
SITE PLAN NOTES

^^^^r^s^r^j^^ ^

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN®^ ^ =

A. REFERTOEXTER10RELEVATIONSONSHEE
FOR BUiLOINQ SUNAQE LOCATION AND [
REFEFtTO ELECTRICAL PUNS FOR £LECT
REQUIREMENTS.

ORIVE.THSU EQUIPMENT INCLUOIMG VEHICLE
DETECTION tWP, WIRELESS COMMUNICATION AND
MONrrORS CODRBINATEO BY STARBUCK6
CONSTRUCTION MflNAQER. REFEfl TO ELECTRICAL
SPECIFICATIOMS FOR ELECTFtlCAL REQUIREMENTS.

D, UNDLORD TO PROVIDE C" (150MM) THICK CONCRETE
PAVINflTHE LENQTO OF THE DRH/E-THRU LANE,
EXTEMTTO INCLUDE ORIVE.THFIU WINDOW

LCQNTRAGTOfiTOAPPLYCONCReTE
TO ALLCXTERIGFl CONCRETe PATIO AMD
W SURFACES.

SHEET NOTES
PROVIDE PROTECTIVE BOLLARDS ON SOTM S106S OF DfTEFBOR
El-eCTFItCAUUTILTT/ SEW1CE ADJACENT TO VEMCULAR TRAf-FIC.
EXAMPLES INCLUDE FIRE STAITO PIPE, GAS AND ELECTRICAL
METERS, srre TRANEFOHMESS. ETC..

. ALL CONCFtETE FOOTIN6S (DIRECTIONALS, MENU BOARD.
MONUMENT SIONG, PfiE MEMU BOARD, CLEARANCE BAR,ORDER
POINT CANOPY, ETC.1 TO BE POUREO IN INTERORAL BLACK OFI
APPROVED COLOB BY STASBUCKS DEBIQW/CON5TRUCTIOM
TEAkA

ETARBUCKG GtCNAQE yENDOFtTQ COOfiOINATE APPROVAL9
AND PERMFTS FOR EOTERBR SIQNAGE SEPARATELY A8
REOUIREQ. NOT INCLUOEO IN TENANT BUILDOUTAPPUCA710U.

U. TO PfiOVIDE ELECTRICAL OUTLFT AND HOSE BIB AT BOTH THE
PATIOAND WOFIKROOM SERVICE DOOR AS WDCATED. SEE
BCTEWR ELEVATIONS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

PROVIDE ELECTRCAL,

MQICATE3 DIQffAL OBDER SCREEN AND CANOPY. LLTO PROVIOE
ELECTfllCALA FOOTING. HEDER TO DOS CONTROL BOX DETAILS
FOR MORE INFOF1MAT10N.

if LL, UNDER SEPARATE PEf

5. UNOLORDTO MSTALL EXTERIOR SHELF, DRT/E-TMRU WINDOW
AND HEATtQ BLACK AIR CURTA!N AS 1NBICATEO. REFER TO 3rTE
DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

;E RACK PER STARBUCKS

a. LANDLORD TO INSTALL TEN/^ PROVIDEO VEHICLE DETECTOR
LOOP ® CEMTERLINE OF OROEft POINT A ORIVE.THRU WINOOW.
REFER TO SEE OETAILS FOR MORE MFOfltAATIOM,

ZO. INDICATES EXTENTS OF CONCRETE DRIVE.TMRU LANE PROViDED
Bf LANDLORO AS [NQICATED, EKTENDS TO BE WIDTH OF DRIVE.
THRU LAME (ND LESS THAN W) AND EXTENDS FROM ia'<-
BEFOREORDERI'OINT TO 1ZI.O" AFTER DTWMDOW.

21. LANDLORD TO FSOVIOE 1'<- CLEARANCE FROM EXTERIOR FINISH
FACE TO FACE OF CURB ATORIVE-THRU BUMP OUT AS
INDICATED, REFER TO SFTE DETAILS FOR FURTHER
CLARAFICATTON,

22. STNPfNG TO TRASH ENCLOSURE BY LANDLORD.

23. GREASE TRAP 8Y LAMOIOTD WOW SEPARATE PEFIMF
BUBMFTAL. [JWOLQfiO TO VERIFY THAT STAflBUCKS ANO CFPf
REOUIREMENfTS ARE MET. COORDINftTE FINAL LOCAT10M Wtffi
LANDLORD'S MEPDWQS.

24. EXTENT OF STARBUCKS PATIO, PER LANDLORD WORK LETTER.

25. sn-E PLAN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. LANDLORD TOOBTAIN ALL
APPROVALS ANppERMFTS TOR SITE WORK AND COOflCMNATC
AIL FOOTINS LOCATIONS PER STAftBUCKS SITE PLAN.

Zfl. INDICATES ADA PARKING LOCATION. PER U. Cn/ILORAWtNQS,

ALL STRIPING AND OIRECT10NAL ARROWS BY LL

FTP. MONUMENT SIGN©^

STARBUCKS COFFEE
COMPANY

2401 UTAH AVENUE SOUTH
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98134

(206)318-1575

THESe DflAWINQS AND SPEGIFCATU^SAftE
COMFISENTIALAND SHALL R&MAIN THE SOLE
PROPERWOf GTARGUCKS COftPORATION.

WHICH 16 THE OWNER OF THECOPYRIOHT IN
THIS WORK. THEY SHALL NOT BE

REPRODUCED UN WHOLE OR IN PAFH), SHARED |
WffH THIRD PAflTtES OR USEO TO ANY MANNER

! OM OTHER PROJECTS OR EX-EMSKiNS TO TMB j
PROJECT WfTHOUT THE PRIOR WRrTTEN

CONSENT OF STARBLJCKS CORPORATfON.
THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFtATBNS ARE

NTENOED TO DCPRESS DEEISNINT6MT FOR A
PROTCTTVPCAL STARBUCKS STORE (WHCH IS

SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT ANYTIMei AND GO
NOTHER.ECTACTUALsn'ECONDmONS.

NEITHER PARTY SHALL HAVE ANY OBLIGATION
• NOR LtABILITV TO THE OTHER (EXCEPT STATES

ABOVE) UNTIL A Wflm-ENAOFIEEMEW IS
FUU.V gXECtireD BY BOTH PARTIES,

TARDUCK8 TEMPLATE VERSUN

flRCHITECTS

£ min
STORE #:
PROJECT #:
ISSUE GATE:
DESIGN MANAGEF
LEEDOAP:
PRODUCTION
1MECKED BY;

1EETTIT1£;
IARCHITECTURALSITE
I PLAN

A-1001



GENERAL NOTE

?p|

NOTE THAT WORK AS SHOWN AMD OESCTIBEO OH THIS SHEET
IS aCHEMATtC IN NATURE ANO 13 KW INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY. PLEASE REFER TO THE RELEVANT SHEETS
FOR COMPLETE INFORMATION ANO EXACT EXTENT OF WORK
FOR EACH (TEMUSTEC.

STARBUCKS <3C AND OONSTRUCTtON MANA06R TO VERIFY
EXtSTINS TSNAW SPACE DtMeNSlONS PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION. NOTIFY AOfl IF EHSCPEPANCES ARE FOUND,

SCOPE OF WORK SUMMARY

1. LANDLORD TO PROVIDE AND MSTALL EXTEFItOR I
BIBS AMD OUTLETS AS INOICATED ON EXTEFHOR
ELEVATIONS.

, NEW EQUIPMENT AS

.NEWFUflWTURGAS

C TO INSTALL NEW C1SAPH1CS AS

It. STARBUCKS QC TO INSTALL NEW WALL CLAODII
IMOICATEDONWALL FINISH PLAN AND LMTERIOR
ELEVATIONS.

WAtNSCOT AS INDICATED ON WAU. RNEH ,
PIANS.

13. STARGUCKS QC TO INSTALL NEW WAU. FINISHE
THROUGHOUT ASINDICATGD ON INTERIOR ELEVATIONS J
WALL FiNISH PLAN.

16. STARBUCKS GC 70 INSTALL NEW CEILING FINISHES AS
INDICATED ON REFLECTED CEILING AND DIMENSIONED
CEIUNG PLANS,

)7. STARBUCKS QC TO PATCH, PRIME AND PAINTWALL,
CEIUNGS AND/OH SOFFITS AS INDICATED OM REFLECTED
CEILING PLANS AND INTERIOR EL£VATIONS.

1 B. STARBUCKS GC TO tNSTAU. NEW EL£CTfllCAL OUTLETS
AS INDICATED W PENETBATfON PLAN.

19. STAR8UCKS GC INSTALL NEW DOORS AS INDICATED.

2;,(3CTOCOOfi01NATE'
SuaCOKTRACTOR FOR AU- FIRS PROTECTION SYSTEWIS AS
HBOUISEO BY LOCAL FIRE MARSHAL

£3. LANOIORO TO FURMSM AND IMSTAtl. ALL SITE PLAN
IMPROVEMF.NTS PER TEMAMTSCONSTRUCTtON
DOCUMENTS. AND ALL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS
AN&COOKi.

St. lANOt.ORO TO FURNISH AND iMSTALL (2) 'SQUARE Cr OR
EOUAL (WFTH PfllOR APPROVAL BY TENANT) NEIHA P8<,
TYPE 1/(M AMP RATED MAIN ELECTRICAL PANELS.

SB. LWOLOfTO T& FURNISH AND INSTALL DOOnS. DOOR
HARDWABE AND WINDOWS PER TENANTS CONS7
DOCUMENTS.

27. lANOLORO TO PROVIDE NEW HVAC ROOFTOP UNITS AND
STRUCTURAL SUPPORTS PER APPLKMDLE CODES S>
TENANTS SPeCIFtCATIONS/CONSTfiUCTfOM DOCUMENTS.

SB. LANDLORD TO SUPPLY ANO MSTAU. SECUfifrY LISHT AT
REAR ENTRANCE WFTH AMIWMUM OF 5000 LUMENS AND
PAflKfNG LOT POLE LISHTS AT A MINIMUM OF 1JS R'C PER
TENANT'S CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.

^uMrr m

^jrta^T
EL

'^y

E

^^l^i-^JJU-^^

SCOPE OF WORK PLAN•-J-

^

STARBUCKS COFFEE
COMPANY

2401 UTAH AVENUE SOUTH
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98134

(306) 318-1575

THESE DRAWINQSAND SPECIFICATIONS ARE
CONFIDEWTAL AND SHALL FIEMWN THE SOLE
PROPEFtTY OF STARDUCKS CORPORATION,

WHICH tS THE OWNER OF THE COPffllGHT IN
THISWQRK. THEY SHALL NOT BE

• (tM WHOLE Oft IN PAFff), SHARED!

ON OTHER PROJECTS Qfl SfTENSKINS TOTHtS |
PROJECT WtTHOUT THE PRfOfl WRrTTEN

CONSENT OF STARBLtCKS CORPORATION.
THESE DRAWINGS AND SPEaFICATIONS ARE
MTeHDEO TO EXPRESS DGSIGN INTENT KWA
PROTonPlCAL STARBUCKS STORE (WHfCH IS

SUBJECT TO CKANQE AT ANYTIME) AND I
NOT REFLECT ACTUAL sm I

NSTHER PARTY SHALL HAVE ANY OBLIGATION
NOR 1.1ABIUTV TO THE OTHER (EXCEPT STATED

ABOVE) UNTtLAWRnTEN AGReDulEHTT IS
FUU.Y EXECUTED BY BOTH PARTIES,

5TARBUCKST6MPIATE VERSION IS

BKA
ARCHITECTS

Boston * Brockton

LLJ '-

ŝ§^°^
Omill
i°iyiogg Sg&g
H=^g t§EJ2|^?| i^ii15^1

STORE #:
PROJECT #:

54813
803U-001

LEEOOAi
PRODUCTION DESISNEft; M. BARAfiO
CHECKED 8Y; X. BCT-TENCOUFIT

RwirionSobBdul.

SHEET TFTLE:
SCOPE OF WORK PLAN

SCALE-AS SHOWN

G-0006



\ '-

\ /

COMMERCIAL LEASE

221 SOUTH MAIN STREET

MIDDLETOW, WIASSACHUSETTS

between

7 River Street LLC

and

STARBUCK8 CORPORATION

SLARBUCKS



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

1. PREMISES.................................................................................................................................. 1

1.1 Premises....................................................................................................................................... 1

2. TERM.......................................................................................................................^

2.1 Term,............................................................................................................................................. i

2.2 Delivery.........................................................................................................................................1

2.3 Lease Year..................................................................................................................................2

2.4 Extension......................................................................................................................................^

3. RENT....................................................................................................................................................2

3.1 Base Rent......................................................................................................................................2

4. CONDiTION OF THE PREIVffSES, POSSESSfON, AND TENAWr ALLOWANCE,....,.......,.....,.........3

4.1 Condition of the Premises..............................................................................................................3

4.2 Landlord's Obligations ...................................................................................................................3

4.3 Delay in Delivery of Possession...................................................................................................4

4.4 Tenant Allowance .......................................................................................................................4

4.5 Independent Measurement of the Premises..................................................................................5

4.6 Landlord's Building Plans...............................................................................................................5

5. USE.................................................................................................................................................

5.1 Use.................................................................................................................................................5

5.2 Compliance with Law..................................................................................................................... 5

5.3 Operations.............,........................,...,..,..,...............................................................................—..6

5.4 Exclusivity......................................................................................................................................6

5.6 New Construction Contingency ...................................................................................................6

5.7 Ongoing Cotenancy Contingency.................................................................................................. 7

6. MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS, AND ALTERATIONS..............................................................................?

6.1 Tenant's Obligations...................................................................................................................-.7

6.2 Landlord's Obligations...................,...............................................-........."........-........................... 7

6.3 Swreritier........,..............................-........,...........".--.."-"--"..---"-------------.—^^^^

6.4 Landlord's Rights ................................................................"...-.............•.-............-.......•..-••••••-••8

6.5 AlterationsandAdditions.............................................................---.....—-..-—•—..--..-—•—-—•8

6.6 Ownership and Removal of Improvements, Fixtures, Equipment and Furnishings.......................9

7. INSURANCE; INDEMNIFICATION.............................................................................................. 10

7.1 Tenant's Insurance.................................................-.......-.."-.--—•.-.—•••.•-•••••-.-••----••••10

7.2 Landlord's Insurance................-...........................--........•...••-•----•-•-••••••••••••••••—••---••••••——••••10

7.3 Waiverof Subrogation ....................................-....-...-•.....-...•-•-••••••••••••••••••••••••••"'•••-••-•-•••••••••11

7.4 Indemnification by Tenant..........................................,.............................-....•....••....••"-..•••••-••. 11

7.5 Indemnification by Landtord...................................-....................•-.--•.•-••.•••••••.••••••••-••••••••••1 1

8. ENVIRONMENTAL UABILiri'....................................................................................................12

8.1 Environmental Law ............................................-........-..............••••..-•.••.••..-•"••-•-••••--••••••••• 12

8.2 Hazardous Substance..........................................-.-.....-...•••....-•••••...-•••••••--••--.-••----•---12

8.3 Landlord's Covenants ................-...........................-.-..-.-....-•..-••••-••.-•--"••--•-•--•••---••12

8.4 Tenant's Use of Any Hazardous Substance...................................................................13

8.5 Indemnities...............................................................•....•....••.•••••••••••••••••-•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••13

9. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION .........................................„....................>.....-................................... 14

9.1 Material Damage.................-.........................-....-.-•..•...•••-•-••••-•••-••••---••••••••-•••-•-•••---•--•--•14

9.2 Repair After Damage .......................,....................................-.•-.-.•--.•-•-•••-•-••-••--••••••••••••••••••••••••-14

9.3 Uninsured Damage...........................................-..............-..•....-••-••...-•••••-....•••••••••.--•••••••••-••••14

9.4 Damage During Final Two Years.........................................-..--.....---..-..--.----"---14

9.5 Intentionally Deleted ........,................................................-.......--.--....--...-......-.-••....-•••••....-••-•-•••••u

9.6 Abatement of Rent.......................................................-........-...-......-...-....--.•••.-.-••.•.-•••••-• 15

10. PROPERTYTAXES.......................................................-....................-.........-...................-."-.•...•-

10.1 Definition of "Real Property Taxes"...........................................-.....--..........-...-.-••.....".--•15

10,2 Payment of Real Property Taxes.....................................-...."-.--—•••••••••-.-—-•-•--• 

I

R:\Starbucks Coftee Co\SRUX FORMS^To Oe CnnverteACommercial Lease Form 07-2016 clean.iiocx mARBUCKS



11. UTILITIES........................................I.........................................................................................15

11.1 L/tilffes....................................................................................................................................... 15

11.2 Alternative Energy Systems...................................................................................................... 16

11.3 Easement............................................................................................................................... 16

11.4 Financing............................................................................................................................,.,..16

12. TENANT'S PRO RATA SHARE OF COMMON AREA OPERATING EXPENSES, INSURANCE AND
TAXES.....................,...................................,............................................,...........:........,..^^

12.1 General Defin'rt'ions....................................................................................................................17

12.2 Definition of Tenant's Pro Rata Share....................................................................................... 17

12.3 Tenant's Payment..................................................................................................................... 17

12.4 Reconciliation............................................................................................................................ 18

12.5 Exclusions from Operating Expenses...................................................................................... 18

12.6 Recorxis...................................................................................................................................... 19

12.7 Dispute Resolution..................................................................................................................... 19

13. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEFTING..............................................................................,,............,......19

14. DEFAULTS; REMEDIES....................................................................................................................20

14.1 Tenant's Defaults....................................................................................................................... 20

14.2 Remedies in Default.................................................................................................................20

14.3 Landlord Defaults and Remedies ..............................................................................................20

15. CONDEMNATION..............................................................................................................................21

15.1 Condemnation of Premises....................................................................................................21

15.2 Condemnation of the Property................................................................................................... 21

15.3 Condemnation of the Building and/or the Shopping Center......................................................21

15.4 Restoration....................................,................................................,......................—................21

15.5 Award.......................................................................................................................................22

16^ SIGNAGE...................................................................................................................................

17. PERMIT CONTINGENCY.................................................................................................................-23

18. OUTDOOR SEATING .....................................................................................................................23

19. TENANT'S RIGHT OF EARLY TERMINATION............................................................................... 23

20. TENANTS USE OF COMMON AREAS.............................................................................................24

21. PARKING AND ACCESS.................................................................................................................24

22. TRASH REMOVAL.......-.......-...................-...................................................................................-.....24

23. GENERAL PROVISIONS................................................................................................................24

23.1 Estoppel Certificate............................................................................................................24

23.2 Landlord's Interests.......................................................................................................-24

23.3 Authority,..................................................................................--..---.-.---....-.-.--.•.-.-.--.-----25

23.4 Severability ..........--.....-..-.....................................--..-....-----.....•--..--••..--••..-••••---.•••--••--•••.--••••-25

23.5 Time of Essence .......................................-........-.•.••.•.-...••••..-•••••••••"••••••••••••••"•••••••••••••••••••••••••25

23.6 Interpretation..............................................-......................••..-..••-•••••••.••••..•••••••.."•••••-••••••••••••••••25

23.7 Incorporation of Prior Agreements; Amendments .............................................:...'.................... 25

23.8 Vfeivers.......................--..............................-••...-....•-....-..-•-...•.-•••••••.-••••••••••-•••••••-••••••--•--•25

23.9 Recording...........................................................................-....-.."••.-...••••.....••••..•..••••-•••••-•••••25

23.10 Holding~0ver....-....».^^...^.».....-—..-..--.......--......-....-—..-...."-.....-.."-...-

23.11 Cumulative Remedies.....,......................-..........-........-...---..-...-.....-..-•••...••••-••..•••••----••-•• 26

23.12 Binding Effect; Choice of Law.....................-.................—...............••...-..•...-.—------.26

23.13 Subordination, Nondisturbance and Attornment..,...................................................................26

23,14 Landlord's Access..............................................................................-•-•-.--•-••-••••••26

23.15 Only Landtord/Tenant Relationship.......................................................................-.-.26

23.16 Attorneys'Fees...................................................-..-.....•..••...-••"•••••••••-••..•••••••..••••-<------26

23.17 Force Majeure.....,...,.................................--.......-........-...••...••-••••••••-•••••••••••••••••••••••••••-••••••--27

23.18 Confidentiality of Lease........................................................-...................•-..-....-•...-... .•••..-•.-27

23.19 Brokers.................................................................................................

11
RASlarbucks Coffee CoVSBUX FORMSVru Be ConverteACummcreial Lease Fomi 07-2016 clain.docx STARBUCKS



24. QUIET ENJOYiWENT.........................................................................................................................28

25. NOTICES............................................................................................................................................28

26. EXHIBITS ...........................................................................................................................................28

Ill
R:\Starhucks Coffee Co\SBUX FQRMSVTn Be ConveneACommereial l^ase Form 07-2016 dean.docx STARBUCKS



COMMERCIAL LEASE
THIS COMMERCIAL LEASE ("Lease"), is made and entered into as of C^Qr^ a2(o , 2018

(the "Effective Date"), by and between 7 River Street LLC a Massachusetts limited liability company with
a mailing address of 10 Perkins Way, Middleton, MA 01949, ("Landlord") and Starbucks Corporation,
a WasMngtori coTp&Tateyn V'TenanV^.

1. PREMISES.

1,1 PREMISES. Landlord is the owner of a multi-tenant retail building located at 221
South Main Street, Middleton, Massachusetts (the "Building") situated upon the real property legally
described in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein (tfie "Property"), wFiich
Building and Property are together referred to herein as the "Shopping Center"), tn consideration of the
mutual promises, covenants, and conditions herein set forth, Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and
Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, for the Term (defined below) of this Lease, a certain unit located in
the Building containing approximately 2,310 square feet of Gross Leasable Area (as defined below) as -
shown by cross-hatching on Exhibit B attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein (the
"Premises"). In addition, Tenant shall have the right to operate a drive-through facility containing one
drive-through lane as shown on Exhibit B-1 (and a pass-through lane if required by any applicable laws,
rules, or regulations). For purposes of this Lease, the "Gross Leasable Area" of the Premises shall be
measured in accordance with BOMA standards (from the exterior surface of the exterior walls to the
center of any shared walls), and shall not include the drive-through area, any outdoor seating area,
common areas or any other areas exterior to the Premises.

"Gross Leasable Area" shall mean the number of gross square feet of all leasable floor
area contained within the Building intended primarily for the exclusive use by an occupant for any length
of time, including, without limitation any common areas, but excluding the two (2) rear spaces intended for
industrial purposes and any buildings structures or uses undertaken in the fenced in portion of the
Property located betwnri tiw BuWdmg. Suc,^ Gross L'easabte A>T&a s'naU be shaU be measuTed from the
exterior face of exterior walls, the line along the front of the such premises where it abuts the sidewalk or
other Common Area (which line is commonly known as the "lease.line"), and the center line of any wall
that such premises shares with other leasable areas within the Building.

2. TERM.

2,1 TERM. The "Initial Term" shall mean ten (10) Lease Years, commencing on the
Rent Commencement Date (as defined in Section 3.1 below), and ending on the last day of the tenth
(10th) Lease Year, unless sooner terminated or extended as provided herein. For purposes of this Lease,
the word Term" shall mean the Initial Term and any Extension Term (as defined in Section 2.4.1 below),
and the "Expiration Date" shall mean the last day of the last Lease Year of the Term. Promptly after the
Rent Commencement Date. Landlord and Tenant shall execute a certificate in the form of Exhibit F
stating the actual Commencement Date (as defined in Section 2.2. below), the Rent Commencement
Date/and the Expiration Date. Landlord's failure or refusal to execute and deliver such certificate to Tenant
within ten (10) days after receipt thereof shall constitute an acknowledgment by Landlord that the factual
statements contained therein are true and correct without exception and may be relied upon by Tenant.

2.2 DELIVERY. The "Commencement Date" shall mean the date on which all of the
following conditions have been satisfied, or waived by Tenant in writing:

(a) Landlord has completed Landlord's Work (as defined in Section 4.2);

(b) Landlord has delivered actual possession and control of the Premises to Tenant;

(c) Landlord and Tenant have executed and delivered a written notice of delivery and acceptance of
the Premises in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D;

1 © 20Q1 Starbucks Corporation

RAStarbucks Coffee CoSBUX FORMS\Ta Be ConvenKltCommercial Lease Foroi 07-2016 clcait.ddCT Revii



(d) Landlord has delivered a fully executed copy of this Lease to Tenant; and

(e) Landlord has removed all Hazardous Substances from the Property in accordance with the
provisions of Article 8 hereof.

Landlord shall deliver the Premrses to Tenant, rrr ffise conditton callect for in st^bsections (a) through (e)
above on September 1,2018 (the "Scheduled Delivery Date"). Tenant, in its sole discretion, may elect
to accept delivery of the Premises prior to the aforesaid date, but is not required to do so. Tenant's
election to accept delivery of the Premises prior to the Scheduled Delivery Date (or any other changes to
the Scheduled Delivery Date) must be in writing and signed by a duly authorized signatory of Tenant in
order to be effective,

2.3 LEASE YEAR. For the purpose of this Lease, subject to the two additional
provisions set forth beiow in this Section 2.3, the term "Lease Year" shall mean and refer to that period
of twelve (12) full consecutive calendar months beginning with the first full calendar month of the Term
and each subsequent period of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months during the Term. If the Term
commences on a day other than the first day of a calendar month, then the initial fractional month of the
Term plus the next succeeding twelve (12) full calendar months shall constitute the first Lease Year of the
Term. If the last day of the first Lease Year falls between September 1 and January 31, then the first
Lease Year shall be extended to end on the last day in February and each subsequent Lease Year shall
begin on March 1.

2.4 EXTENSION.

2.4.1 Tenant shall have the option to extend the Term for four (4) consecutive
five (5) year period(s) (each an "Extension Term") upon the same terms and conditions as contained in
this Lease. The Base Rent for each Extension Term shall be as set forth in Article 3 below. To exercise
an extension option. Tenant shall give Landlord notice ("Tenant's Extension Notice") at least one
hundred eighty (180) days prior to the then-current Expiration Date (the "Extension Deadline").
Tenant'$ Extension Notice shall be effective to extend the Term without further documentation.

3. RENT.

3.1 BASE RENT. Tenant shall pay to Landlord at Landlord's address provided in
Section 25 of this Lease, or to such other person or at such other place as Landlord,may designate in
writing, rent as follows ("Base Rent"):

$ Per Square Monthly
Foot Per Year instajlment Annual Rent

Extension Term(s):
11-15 ^KNNIBNNNNNNNNINNUa(NIBl»NNNNNKNNN»flB»Sfi(SB%<xxxx
16-20 ^XiBWIXMNKNNNNNXam»i»ia(MWWyW^<(^2%^

'MWMMMUMWMUMUUUUWtMWIMMMMMMMMMMU]

rUMUNNMUUUUUUttllMIfUitUltUiatNltMttUttttMNllKmilXi

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Tenant shall begin to pay Base Rent and all other charges hereunder on the date (the
"Rent Commencement Date") that is the earlier to occur, of (a) the date Tenant opens for business In
the Premises or (b) ninety (90) days after (he fafer of (i) the Commencement Date and (ii) the date of

2 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
RASiarbucks Coffee Co\SBUX FORMSVIo Be ConvenedVCommcrcial Lease Form 07-2016 clean.docx Revis^fil^



Tenant's receipt of all Government Approvals pursuant to Article 17 hereof, and shall continue to pay
Base Rent in monthly installments on or before the first day of every month thereafter during the Term.
Base Rent and Annual Additional Rent (and any other charges due) for any period during the Term less
than one calendar month shall be prorated on a daily basis based on a three hundred sixty-five (365) day
year. Landlord has executed and delivered a W-9 taxpayer identification form to the Tenant. Except for
paying Base Rent, Annucrf Additional Rent and the other charges expressly provided elsewhere in this
Lease. Tenant has no obligation to pay Landlord any other amounts. Landlord acknowledges and agrees
that Tenant, at Tenant's option, shall have the right to pay amounts due under this Lease to Landlord via
electronic funds transfer, and that Landlord shall cooperate with Tenant, if necessary, to establish that
manner of payment by Tenant.

If any installment of Base Rent or payment of Add'rtional RenT is paid after frie date the same was due, it
shall bear interest from the due date at the prime commercial rate published in the Wall Street Journal, as
it may be adjusted from time to time, plus four (4.00%) percent per annum, but in no event more than the
maximum rate of interest allowed by law, the payment of which shall be Additional Rent. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, for fhe first time in any calendar year that Tenant has failed to pay any such monthly
installment of Base Rent or Additional Rent, such interest charge shall not apply unless Tenant has failed
to make such payments within ten (10) days of receipt of Landlord's written notice of such delinquency.
Landlord shall not be required.to give Tenant such notice more than once in any calendar year prior to
assessing such interest charge.

4. CONDITION OF THE PREMISES, POSSESSION, AND TENANT ALLOWANCE.

4.1 CONDITION OF THE PREMISES. Landlord shall cause the Property, including the
Premises, drive-through lane, and parking spaces, to be designed and constructed as shown on Exhibits
B and B-1. Landlord represents and warrants that, as of the Commencement Date, Landlord's Work, the
Common Areas, and all parts of the Premises, including, without limitation, sidewalks, parking areas,
driveways, all structural elements, the foundation, roof, roof membrane and roof system, exterior walls,
plumbing, electrical, and other mechanical systems (a) are complete and comply with all federal, state,
and local laws, codes, rules and regulations, including, without limitation, grease traps, and alt
handicapped accessibility standards, such as those promulgated under the Americans With Disabilities
Act ("ADA"); and (b) are seismicalty and otherwise sound and in good, workable, and sanitary order,
condition, and repair at the time of delivery of the Premises to Tenant. Landlord shall correct any latent
defects promptly after Tenant notifies Landlord of any such defect. Landlord represents and warrants that
it has disclosed to Tenant any condi.tuons. QC restrictions, uacludiojg, without lnni.tatkin, emironmental
contamination, restrictions on utilities, or exclusive use restrictions within Landlord's knowledge that would
adversely affect Tenant's store design, permitting, construction, or use of the Premises as contemplated

by this Lease.

4.2 LANDLORD'S OBLIGATIONS. At no cost to Tenant, Landlord shall provide to
Tenant ff'na( plans of the Prermses that have been approved by afi applwabte gowsfmment err(((tes in an
industry standard electronic or digital format. Landlord shall complete all items described on Exhibit C
attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, and any work necessary to bring the Premises
into the condition required under Section 4.1 (collectively, "Landlord's Work") at its sole cost and
expense in a good and workmanlike manner before delivering the Premises to Tenant. Landlord's Work
shall also include obtaining, at Landlord's sole cost, all permits and/or government approvals for the
construction and operation of Tenant's dnve-ttirough fac'iffiy as described on Exhibits B-1 and C.
Promptly upon execution hereof, Landlord shall provide Tenant with a copy of Landlord's construction
schedule. Landlord shall notify Tenant in writing at least ten (10) days prior to the date that Landlord
anticipates that the Premises will be ready for Tenant's occupancy and Tenant shal^arrange promptly to
inspect the Premises. At the time of Tenant's inspection, Landlord shall provide to Tenant a certificate of
occupancy indicating compliance. Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a written punch list of all incomplete or
faulty items of construction or mechanical installation, and any necessary mechanical adjustments and
finish work needed to bring the Premises into the condition required under this Article.

3 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
K:\Starbucks Coffee Cu\SilUX l.-ORJMSVTo He CunvenudVCommercial Lease Form 07-2016 clean.docx RevisQt]dfll(



if the Premises is in the condition required under this Article on the Scheduled DeSjvery
Date but subject only to minor punch list items, Tenant shall accept delivery of the Premises and require
Landlord to complete Ihe punch list items within fourteen (14) days after the date Tenant accepts the
Premises. If the Premises is not in the condition required under this Article on the Scheduled Delivery
Date then Tenant may notify the Landlord in writing, at its option, either: (a) delay acceptance of
possession until the Premises are in the condition required under this Article and pursue its remedies
under Section 4.3', or ^b) acwpt. possessiori vA \\v: PTwrAses and tompteAe aU Larailord's WorV» necessary
to bring the Premises into the required condition. If Tenant elects to proceed under the subsection (a),
Tenant may enter the Premises to begin performing Tenant's work (at Tenant's cost and expense)
without prejudicing Tenant's rights and remedies under Section 4.3. If Tenant elects to proceed under the
subsection (b), then Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for the actual cost of such work and any additional
amounts Landlord agreed to pay Tenant pursuant to other written agreements such as the Landlord Work
Modification Letter attached hereto as Exhibit E, pfus an administrative surcharge of fifteen percent
(15%) of the amount otherwise due Tenant, to compensate Tenant for its employees' time, within thirty
(30) days of receipt of an invoice for such sums. Tenant's and its contractor's reasonable determination
of the cost of such work shall be final and binding on Landlord and Landlord acknowledges that Landlord
can control the cost by performing the work under this Article in a timely manner. If Landlord does not
reimburse Tenant as required by this Section 4.2, then Tenant may offset such sum against Base Rent
and all other charges payable by Tenant under this Lease until such sum has been fully recouped.

4..3 DELAY IN DELIVERY OF POSSESSION. Landlord shaft satisfy al! conditions listed
in Section 2.2 (a) through (e) above on or before the Scheduled Delivery Date. Landlord acknowledges
that Tenant intends to start construction of Tenant's improvements on the Scheduled Delivery Date, and
that a delay beyond such date will cause Tenant to suffer certain losses which are difficult to quantify
including, by way of illustration and not of limitation, lost profits, construction delay costs and employee
wages. If the Commencement Date does not occur within twenty one (21) days of the Scheduled
Delivery Date (the "Extended Delivery Date") for any reason other than Force Majeure Event (regardless
of the fact that Tenant may have elected to enter the Premises to perform Tenant's work prior to
Landlord's Work being completed), then Tenant, as compensation in the form of liquidated damages,
shall be errtiUed to one (I) day of free Base R;en,t. and AnnuaA AddlUowaJl Rent iw each day of delay
accruing from the Extended Delivery Date to the actual Commencement Date; provided, however, that if
such delay is caused by a Force Majeure Event (as defined in Section 23.17 below), the Extended
Delivery Date shall be deemed further extended by a period during which said Force Majeure Event shall
cause such delay, not to exceed an aggregate of sixty (60)days. Landlord and Tenant agree that the
foregoing free rent determination is a liquidated damages remedy to compensate Tenant based on
Landlord and Tenant's best estimate of the dai(y damages, rncfudrng but not (nnrted to tost sates and
business opportunity that Tenant will incur as a result of Landlord's failure to deliver the Premises timely,
and such amount is not to be deemed a penalty. If the Commencement Date does not occur within one
hundred twenty (120) days after the Scheduled Delivery Date for any reason whatsoever. Tenant, at its
option, may terminate this Lease by written notice to Landlord. The termination date shall not be subject
to extensions for any reason whatsoever (including, without limitation, delays described in Section 23.17
of this Lease), if Tenant elects to terminate Iftis Lease, Landlord shall reimburse Tenant an amount equal
to all of Tenant's expenses incurred in connection with this Lease, including, without limitation, site
selection and lease negotiation costs and expenses (including the allocated cost ofin-house personnel),
up to an aggregate of Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) for such expenses. Landlord shall
also return all monies previously deposited by Tenant, if any.

4.4 TENANT ALLOWANCE. In addition to Landlord's obligations under Sections 4.1 and
4.2 above, Landlord shall provide Tenant with an improvement allowance in the amount of Twenty
Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) (the "Allowance") which shall be paid in full by Landlord to Tenant upon
Tenant's opening for business in the Premises. The Allowance shall not be reduced by costs incurred by
Landlord in constructing the Premises or the Shopping Center and can be modified only by an
amendment to this Lease that has been duly executed by Landlord and Tenant. If Landlord has not paid
Tenant the Allowance within thirty (30) days after Tenant opens for business in the Premises, then Tenant
may offset the unpaid amount, against Base Rent and all other charges (at Tenant's discretion) due under
this Lease until the Allowance is fully offset. In addition, if Landlord shall fail to pay the Allowance when

4 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
R:\Smrbucfcs Coftee Co^SBUX FORMSWo Be ConvencdtCommercial [.ease Form 07-2016 dean.docx ReviSQtvlj^ll



the same is due and payable, such unpaid amounts shall bear interest at the greater of twelve percent
(12%) per annum or the prime interest rate charged by Wells Fargo Bank plus three percentage points
(but in no event to exceed the maximum lawful rate) from the date the unpaid amount was initially due, to
and including the date of payment.

4.5 INDEPENDENT MEASUREMENT OF THE PREMISES. At any time during the first
six (6) months of the Term, Tenant (in its sole discretion) may engage an independent certified architect
or $urveyor to measure the Gross Leasable Area of the Premises (as defined in Article 1 above). If the
architect's or surveyor's measurement of the Gross Leasable Area of the Premises is less than the Gross
Leasable Area of the Premises set forth in Article 1 above by three percent (3%) or more, Base Rent and
Tenant's Pro Rata Share (as defined in Section 12.2 below) shall be proportionally reduced. If the
variance is less than three percent (3%), Landlord and Tenant shaJJ make no adjustments to this Lease.
Landlord acknowledges and agrees that Landlord shall not have the right to remeasure the Premises.

4.6 LANDLORD'S BUILDING PLANS. Landlord has secured all approvals and has
commenced construction of the Building. If Landlord materially changes Landlord's Plans as provided to
Tenant (whether or not the changes are being required by a governing authority), then Landlord shall re-
subm'rt Landtortfs Plans clearly mdreating ^he thariges ^"Landtoiftfs Ne'w Plans") to Tenant for Tenant's
review. To the extent the Landlord's New Plans represent a material change to the Premises or the drive-
through area, Tenant shall either approve (which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed)
Landlord's New Plans or request reasonable modifications to Landlord's New Plans. Landlord shall
reimburse Tenant for the actual cost for Tenant to redraw its plans for the Premises ("Re-draw Costs")
to correspond with Landlord's New Plans. If Tenant does not approve Landlord's New Plans or if
Landlord and Tenant fail to agree on accepfabte revisions to Landford's New Plans, Tenant may
terminate this Lease by giving written notice to Landlord. If Tenant does not terminate this Lease and
Landlord has not paid Tenant its Re-Draw Costs within thirty (30) days after Tenant opens for business in
the Premises, then in addition to any other remedies Tenant has. Tenant may offset the unpaid amount
against Base Rent and all other charges (at Tenant's discretion) until the Re-Draw Costs are fully offset.
Material changes as used herein shall mean any change that affects the Premises size, layout, drive
through size or configuration or outdoor seating area size or configuration.

5. USE.

5,1 USE. Tenant may use and occupy the Premises and drive-through tane/outdoor
seating area for: (a) a coffee store or (b) any other lawful retail or restaurant use, including without
limitation the sale of beer and wine provided that Tenant obtains all required licenses and permits for
same, that does not conflict with any written exclusive use presently granted to another tenant in the
Shopping Center ("Existing Exclusives").

Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant that Exhibit G contains complete and
correct verbatim excerpts of all Existing EKclusives and the name of the tenant which each Existing
Exclusive benefits. Landlord acknowledges that Tenant Is entering into this Lease in reliance upon its
ability to conduct the use described above in Section 5.1(a) without any limitation or restriction by reason
of any governmental zoning or use restriction, exclusive provision, contractual restriction or limitation
granted to any other party which applies to the Premises or Tenant's use thereof. Landlord
acknowledges that Tenant may use the Premises to accept returns of merchandi$e not purchased from
Tenant but purchased from other locQfions operated by Tenant.

5.2 COMPLIANCE WITH LAW. During the Term, Tenant, at its expense, shall comply
promptly with allTaws, rules, and regulations made by any governmental authority having jurisdiction over
Tenant's use of the Premises pertaining to: (a) the physical condition of any improvements constructed
by Tenant in the Premises; and (b) Tenant's specific business operations in the Premises. Tenant shall
not be required to make any seismic or structural upgrades, repairs, improvements or alterations to the
Premises or the Shopping Center in order to comply with the requirements of this Section. Landlord, at,
its sole cost and expense, shall comply with all other laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances made by
any governmental authority affecting the Premises, areas adjacent to the Premises, the Common Areas,

5 ©200-f S(ar(»ucks Corporation

RASfarbucta Coffee Co'iSBUX FORMS\To Be Convertcd\Commercin) Lease Form D7-2016 clean.docx Revis(



the Shopping Center, and the Property including, without limitation, all accessibility for the disabled
requirements.

5.3 OPERATIONS. Tenant may operate (or not operate) its business in such manner
and at such hours as Tenant considers proper in Tenant's sole business judgment. It is expressly
understood and agreed that Tenant makes no representations or warranties, oral or written, as to the
level of gross sates it may generate from the Premises or the number of customers that it will bring to the
Shopping Center. The parties acknowledge that Tenant has no obligation to open or operate at the
Premises.

The parties acknowledge that Tenant has no obligation to open or operate at the
Premises, but in the event Tenant elects not to operate at the Premises for a period of sixty (60)
consecutive days, e.xcludJng any dosure(s) due to any Force Majewe Event, casualty, condemnation,
inventory, renovation, remodeling, or assignment of this Lease or subletting of the Premises, then
Landlord may recapture the Premises and terminate this Lease upon thirty (30) days prior written notice
to Tenant unless Tenant resumes operation in the Premises prior to the expiration of such thirty (30) day
notice period, in which case, Landlord's recapture and termination notice shail be null and void. The
foregoing recapture right shall be Landlord's sole remedy in the event Tenant elects not to operate in the
Premises.

5,4 EXCLUSIVITY. Landlord shall not use or allow any other person or entity (except
Tenant) to use any portion of the Property for the sale of: (a) whole or ground coffee beans, (b) espresso,
espresso-based drinks or coffee-based drinks, (c) tea or tea-based drinks, (d) coffee or (e) coffee based
blended beverages. In the event of a violation of Tenant's exclusive use that remains uncured for a
period of more than three (3) business days after Tenant notifies Lancttord in writing of such violation, all
rent due under the Lease shall be reduced by fifty percent (50%), until the violation has been cured and
the competing tenant(s) at the Property cease the sate of any of the products protected by Tenant's
exclusive use described above. In the event that the violation continues for more than 180 days after
receipt of such written notice, Tenant shall have the right to terminate the Lease and shall be entitled to
reimbursement by Landlord of the unamortized amount of Tenant's Improvements to the Premises as of
the effective date of the early termination of the Lease, or Tenant may continue with rent abatement until
such violation is cured or Tenant elects to terminate the Lease.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in the event a "Rogue Tenant"
(defined below) violates the exclusive granted to Tenant hereinabove, then Landlord shall have one
hundred twenty (120) days after the date of Tenant's initial notice of breach in which to pursue legal
action against the tenant or occupant violating Tenant's exclusive rights; provided, however, if Landlord is
not able"to cause a cessation of the use causing such breach within.such one hundred twenty (120)day
period, Tenant shall thereafter have the right thereafter to abate all Base Rent by fifty percent (50%) for
so long as such breach continues. For purposes of this Lease "Rogue Tenant" means any tenant or
occupant of the Shopping Center which is prohibited and/or not permitted by its lease to use or occupy its
premises for any use which violates the excluswe granted to Tenant

Notwithstanding the foregoing, other tenants may sell brewed coffee or brewed tea which
is neither (i) gourmet, nor (ii) brand identified. For purposes of this Lease, "gourmet" shall be defined as:
(a) beverages made u$ing Arabica beans or (b) sourced from a gourmet coffee or tea brand such'as
Coffee Bean & Tea Leaf, Intelligentsia, Peets, Caribou or similar branding. For purposes of this Lease,
"brand identified" shati mean beverages advertr'sed or marketed within (he appffcabfe retaff space using a

brand name or served in a brand identified cup.

5.6 NEW CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY. Subject to the terms of Article 5.3, and
notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary (including, without limitation. Article 3), Tenant shall
not be obligated to pay Base Rent or any Annual Additional Rent, nor be required to open for business in
the Premises until such time as: (i) at least fifty percent (50%) of the Gross Leasable Area of the retail
portions of the Shopping Center, excluding Tenant, is occupied and operating for business for at least
eight (8) hours per day, six (6) days per week, and (ii) the construction of all Common Areas, including

6 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation

RAS^tavksCs!^C^BUXFOB^fyffaffeC<MtWaf^fmti!sems!LemeK^9^!^^^ Re\



(without limitation) all parking areas, are substantially complete, and all construction equipment and
debris have been removed so that Tenant can obtain its certificate of occupancy for the Premises (the
"New Construction Contingency"); provided, however, that Tenant may, at its option and in its sole
discretion, elect to open for business before the foregoing conditions have been satisfied, in which event
the Initial Term shall commence and Base Rent and Annual.Additional Rent shall be reduced by fifty
percent (50%) of the amounts otherwise due and payable commencing on the date that Tenant opens,
until the New Construction Contingency is satisfied. Without limiting the foregoing, in the event that the
New Construction Contingency is not satisfied for a period of six (6) months from the Scheduled Delivery
Date, Tenant, upon written notice, shall be entitled to terminate this Lease anytime thereafter (unless the
condition is satisfied prior to the effective date of termination) in which case, upon demand, Landlord shall
reimburse Tenant for its costs (including aliocable in-house expenses) incurred in developing,
constructing and operating its store in the Premises, Jncluding (wJthout limitation) site selection,
brokerage, legal, design, permitting and other fees and costs, as well as Tenant's costs of construction in
the event that Tenant has elected to accept possession of the Premises and constructed some or all of its
improvements therein. Nothing herein shall require Tenant to open for business in the Premises until the
New Construction Contingency has been satisfied, within the time periods referenced above,

5.7 ONGOING COTENANCy CONIiWGENOY. \n Ihe werA that at any time during the
Term of this Lease the occupancy of the retail portions of the Shopping Center is less than fifty percent
(50%) of the gross leasable area (including the Premises) of the retail portions of the Shopping Center
occupied by tenants or occupants who are operating at least six days per week and eight (8) hours per
day (the "Ongoing Cotenancy Condition"), Tenant's Base Rent and Annual Additional Rent shall be
reduced by fifty percent (50%) from the amounts otherwise due and payable until the Ongoing Cotenancy
Condition is satisfied. In addition to (he rental recfucfion, if the Ongoing Cotenancy Conciition remains
unsatisfied for 180 consecutive days, Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving written notice to
Landlord; In the event Tenant terminates this Lease, Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for the then-
unamortized amount of all of Tenant's expenses incurred in connection with this Lease, including, without
timitation, site selection and lease negotiation costs and expenses (excluding the allocated cost oi in-
house personnel) and all of Tenant's developments costs incurred in connection with the Premises. Such
costs shall be amortized on a straightline basis over a 10-year period. If Tenant does not elect to
terminate this Lease, Tenant shall continue to pay 50% Base Rent and Annual Additional Rent, until the
Ongoing Cotenancy Condition is satisfied.

6. MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS, AND ALTERATIONS.

6.1 TENANT'S OBLIGATIONS. Subject to the provisions of Sections 6.2 and 6.3 and
Articles 9 and 15, Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall keep the Premises in good order and repair,
including maintaining all plumbing, HVAC, electrical and lighting facilities and equipment within the
Premises and exclusively serving the Premises, and the store front, doors, and plate glass of the
Premises. At Tenant's request, Landlord shall transfer or assign to Tenant all warranties, express or

implied, under any contract or subcontracts relating to any improvements or equipment Landlord built or
installed within the Premises to serve the Premises exclusively, including, without limitation, the warranty
for the HVAC system. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, Tenant's obligations under this
Section shall not include making: (a) any repair or improvement necessitated by the negligence or willful
misconduct of Landlord, its agents, employees or servants; (b) any repair or improvement caused by
Landlord's failure to perform its obligations hereunder or under any other agreement between Landlord
and Tenant; or (c) any structural or seismic repairs, improvements or alterations to the Premises or the

Shopping Center.

6.2 LANDLORD'S OBLIGATIONS. Except for repairs, maintenance and replacements to
the Premises for which Tenant is responsible under Section 6.1 , Landlord shall maintain, repair and make
replacements to the Premises and the Shopping Center (including the Common Areas). Landlord shall,
at its sole cost and expense (subject to TenanYs pa-ymeril oUigatitfns, if aTvy, pursuant to Artide 12
below), make the repairs and replacements and perform such work that is necessary to maintain the
Building and the Shopping Center in a condition comparable to other buildings and shopping centers
located along Route 114 In Middleton. Such repairs, replacements and maintenance shall include

7 ©2001 Starbucks Corporation

R^Slarbucks Coffee Co\SBUX FORMS\To Be ConveneACommerciul l.casi! Form 07-2016 cican.docx ReviSi



(without limitation): (a) the upkeep of the roof, roof membrane and roof systems (gutters, downspouts
and the like), foundation, exterior walls, interior structural walls, and all structural components of the
Premises and the Building and (b) the maintenance and repair of all parking areas, sidewalks,
landscaping and drainage systems on the Property and all utility systems (including mechanical,

.electrical, and HVAC systems) and plumbing systems which serve the Building and/or the Shopping
Center as a whole and not a particular tenant's premises. Landlord may allocate the cost of such
maintenance and repairs equitably among all tenants, if and to the extent provided in Article 12. Landlord
shall not be required to maintain the interior surface of exterior walls, windows, doors or plate glass and
store fronts (except where maintenance of the same is caused by Landlord's negligence or failure to
perform its obligations under this Section}. Landlord shall make all repairs under this Section promptly
after Landlord learns of the need for such repairs but in any event within thirty (30) day$ after Tenant
notifies Landlord of the need for such repairs. If Landlord fails to make such repairs within thirty (30) days
after Tenant's written notice (except when the repairs require more than thirty (30) days for performance
and Landlord commences the repair within thirty (30) days and diligently pursues the repair to
completion), Tenant may, at its option, undertake such repairs and deduct the cost thereof from the
installments of Base Rent and Monthly Estimated Rent next falling due. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in
the event of an emergency, Tenant may give Landlord such shorter notice as is practicable under the
circumstances, and if Landlord fails to make such repairs immediately after being notified by Tenant,
Tenant may immediately undertake such repairs and deduct the cost thereof from the installments of
Base RwA ard M^wmaA Annual Rwit Tiextfeffiing due.

6.3 SURRENDER. Upon the expiration or termination of this Lease, Tenant shall
surrender the Premises to Landlord in broom clean condition, except for ordinary wear and tear and
damage caused by fire or other casualty, whether or not insured or insurable.

6.4 LANDLOBD'S RIGHTS. Ff Tenant farr$ fo perrorm renanfs oblfgattons under infs
Article, Landlord may, but shall not be required to, enter upon the Premises, after thirty (30) days prior
written notice to Tenant, and put the same in good order, condition and repair, and the reasonable costs
thereof shall become due and payable as additional rental to Landlord together with Tenant's next Base
Rent installment falling due after Tenant's receipt of an invoice for such costs. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Landlord's rights under this Section shall be subject to Section 23.14 In the event of an
emergency, Landlord may give Tenant such shorter notice as is practicable under the circumstances, and
if Tenant fails to make such repairs immediately after being notified by Landlord, Landlord may
immediately undertake such repairs and such costs shall be deemed to be Additional Rent hereunder.

6.5 ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS.

6.5.1 Initial Improvements. Tenant, at Tenant's cost. may install such fixtures, .
finishes, communications and internet services infrastructure and other initial tenant improvements in or
about the Premises as Tenant deems necessary or desirable for the conduct of Tenant's business therein
{the "Initial Improvements"). Landlord will have the right to approve only structural changes or changes
to the storefront proposed by Tenant. Tenant shail submit the plans and specifications (the "Plans") for
the Initial Improvements to Landlord for Landlord's review and approval of the structural elements.
Landlord shall have a period of fourteen (14) days (the "Review Period") to review the Plans. Landlord
shall not unreasonably withhold, condition or delay its approval of the Plans. Landlord shall be deemed to
have approved the Plans as presented unless, on or before the last day of the Review Period, Landlord
has delivered to Tenant a written description of the specific structural items in the Plans that are not
acceptable. The review and approval process described above shall continue until such time as Landlord
has approved the Plans in writing (the "Final Plans"). In addition, Landlord acknowledges and asrees
that Tenant intends to seek certification of the Premises through the then-current standards established
by the United States Green Building Council (the "USGBC") for the certification of green buildings,
commercial and retail interiors and other facilities ("LEED Certification"). Landlord acknowledges that
LEED Certification may be awarded at various certification levels as determined by the USGBC.
Accordingly, notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, Landlord agrees to cooperate with
Tenant for tenant's installations. o( its IriiUal lmprowment.'& and in Tenant's, efforts to achieve LEED
certification (in a manner and at a level which shall be determined by Tenant in its sole discretion) and to

8 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
RAStarbucks Coffee Co\SHUX FORMS\To Ss ConverteACommercial 1-ease Form07.2016clean.docx ReviSf



take all reasonable steps requested by Tenant to achieve such certification provided Landlord will incur
no costs as a result thereof. Further, Landlord agrees to assist Tenant in its efforts to maintain LEED
Certification for the Premises throughout the Term provided Landlord will incur no costs as a result
thereof.

6.5.2 Subsequent improvements. After the installation of the Initial
Improvements, Tenant may make such non-structural alterations, improvements and additions to or about
the Premises including, without limitation, improving or upgrading its communications and internet
services to the Premises, changing color schemes, installing new countertops, flooring, wall-covering and
modifying the layout of the tenant fixtures (the "Subsequent Improvements"), as Tenant deems necessary
or desirable without obtamng Landtofd's oanssn1... Motwiithstending Uw foregoing, Tenant shall not make
any alterations, improvements, additions or repairs in, on, or about the Premises which affect the
structure of the Building without Landlord's prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed. Landlord shall cooperate with Tenant for the installation of any
Subsequent Improvements and shall be deemed to have approved any subsequent improvement
proposed by Tenant unless Landlord disapproves of Tenant's proposal in writing within fourteen (14) days
of receiving Tenant's proposaf and request for consent Tenant shaft only hire licensed and insured
contractors to complete any Initial and Subsequent Improvements.

6.5.3 Liens. Before commencing any alterations, additions or improvements
using outside contractors, Tenant shall notify Landlord of the expected commencement and completion
dates of the work. Tenant shall not permit any mechanics' or materialmen's liens to be levied against the
Premises for any labor or material furnished to Tenant or to its agents or contractors; provided, however,
that Tenant shall not be required to pay or otherwise satisfy any claims or discharge such liens so long as
Tenant, in good faith and at its own expense, contests the same or the validity thereof by appropriate
proceedings and posts a bond or takes other steps acceptable to Landlord that remove such lien or stay
enforcement thereof.

6.6 OWNERSHIP AND REMOVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS. FIXTURES. EQUIPMENT
AND FURNISHINGS.

6.6.1 The term "Tenant's Property" shall mean all personal property,
furnishings, machinery, trade fixtures, equipment and improvements (trade or otherwise) which Tenant
installs in the Premises or in the dcwe-thjraugh area (including vuithaut limita.tion the faUQwing when
located in or serving the drive-through area: partitions, screens, art, plant walls along with the irrigation
and suspended plants, specialized lighting fixtures, movable boulders, menu boards, signage and other
nonstructural design elements). Until or upon the termination or expiration of the Term, Tenant may
remove Tenant's Property from the Premises no later than the termination or expiration date of the Term.
In addition, Tenant may remove from the Premises all items installed by Tenant that are indicative of
Tenant's business and may otherwise "de-identify" the Premises, as Tenant reasonQbiy betieves

necessary or appropriate for the protection of Tenant's interest in Tenant's trademarks, trade names or
copyrights. Tenant shall repair any damage to the Premises or the Building caused by such removal,
including patching and fitting holes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Tenant be entitled
pursuant to this Section 6.6^1 to remove, nor shall Tenant be required to remove, any restroom fixtures,
flooring, ceilings, walls or utility or electrical components located inside the walls nor any portions of the
HVAC~system(s), Landiord shall not have tine right to place or permit tiens or otiner encumbrances on any
of Tenant's Property, and Landlord waives and releases any and all liens, whether statutory or under
common law, on Tenant's Property which may be located from time to time in or about the Premises.

6.6.2 Any of Tenant's Property not removed from the Premises on the date this

Lease terminates or expires shall be deemed abandoned and shall thereupon become the property of
Landlord.

9 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
R:\Sta[bucks Coffee Cu\SBOX FORMSVIu Be Converted\Cummcrcial l.ease Form 07-2016 clcan.docx ReviS<



7. INSURANCE: INDEMNIFICATION.

7.1 TENANTS INSURANCE. As of the Scheduled Delivery Date through the expiration
or earlier termination of the Term of this Lease, Tenant shall obtain and keep in full force and effect the
following insurance which may be provided under blanket insurance policies covering other properties as
well as the Premises and shall be maintained with an insurance company with an AM Best Company
("Best's") rating of at least A- and a Best's financial performance rating of at least VII. Upon Landlord's
request, Tenant will provide Landlord access to an internet website that certifies Tenant's current
insurance coverage in a Memorandum of Insurance.

7.1.1 Liability Insurance. Bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
insurance, including by blanket endorsement insuring against claims of bodily iniury or death, personal
injury or property damage arising out of or in connection with Tenant's use or occupancy of the Premises,
Drive-Through and Tenant's outdoor seating area (if any). In the event that Tenant elects to sell beer and
wine from the Premises, Tenant's liability insurance required herein shall include liquor liability coverage.
Tenant's liability insurance coverage shall include an "each occurrence" limit of not less than One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000) and a general aggregate limit of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000).
Landlord and its managing agent shaji be included, by way of blanket endorsement, as additional
insureds under Tenant's liability insurance policies.

7.1.2 Property Insurance. Commercial property form insurance with a special
form endorsement providing coverage on a replacement cost basis for Tenant's trade fixtures, equipment
and inventory in the Premises and the Drive-Through. During the Term, Tenant shall use (he proceeds
from any such policy or poYicies of msurance for ftie repair or replacemerrt ot frie insured property unless
Tenant elects to terminate this Lease pursuant to Article 9 hereof. Landlord shall have no interest in any
insurance proceeds Tenant receives for Tenant's Property and Landlord shall sign all documents which
are necessary or appropriate in connection with the settlement of any claim or loss by Tenant. Tenant's
policies shall not be contributing with or in excess of any coverage which Landlord shall carry on the
Building and the Shopping Center. All of the motor vehicles, furnishings, fixtures, equipment, effects and
property of every kind, nature and description of Tenant and of all persons cfaiming by, through or under
Tenant which, during the continuance of this Lease or any occupancy of the Premises by Tenant or
anyone claiming under Tenant, may be on ttie Premises; shall in all cases be at the sole risk and hazard
of tenant and if the whole or any part thereof shall be destroyed or damaged by fire, water or otherwise,
or by the leakage or bursting of water pipes, steam pipes, or other pipes, by theft or from any other cause,
by vandalism, malicious conduct or terrorism, except to the extent same is caused by the negligence or
willful misconduct of Landlord, its agents, contractors or employees, no part of said loss or damage is to
be charged to or to be borne by Landlord, except that Landlord shall in no event be indemnified or held
harmless or exonerated from any liability to Tenant or to any other person for any injury, loss, damage or
liability to the extent prohibited by law.

7.2 LANDLORD'S INSURANCE. As of the Effective Date throush the expiration or
earlier termination of the Term of this Lease, Landlord shall obtain and keep in full force and effect, the
following insurance ("Landlord's Insurance") from an insurance company with a Best's rating of at least
A- and a Best's financial performance rating of at tea$t VII. Upon Tenant's request. Landlord will provide
Tenant with a copy of the certificate(s) evidencing such coverage and a premium bill for Landlord's
Insurance.

7.2.1 Liability Insurance. Bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
insurance (to include contractual liability) insuring against claims of bodily injury or death, personal injury
or property' damage arising out of or in connection with: (a) Landlord's and its agents', employees', or
independent contractors' conduct upon, in or about the Premises, Drive-Thru and Tenant's outdoor
seating area, if any, and (b) events occurring in the balance of the Shopping Center including (without
limitation) the Common Areas, with an each occurrence limit of not less tiian One Miltipn Dollars
($1,000,000) and a general aggregate limit of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000). Tenant shall
be named as an additional insured under Landlord's liability insurance policies. Landlord's Insurance
shai! be primary with respect to any claim covered by this Section 7.2.1.

10 © 2001 Sfarbucks Corporation
RAStarbucks Coffee Co\SBUX l;ORMS\To Be Converted\Commercial Lease Form 07-2016 clean.docx ReviS(



r.2.2 Property fnsurance. Speci'af Form commercfaf property insurance insuring
the Building and the Shopping Center (including all Landlord Work but excluding any property which
Tenant is obligated to insure under Section 7.1.2), for the full replacement value, as such value may
change from time to time. Tenant shall be named as an additional loss payee (to the extent of its interest
therein from time to time) under Landlord's property insurance policy(ies),

7.3 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Lease to
the contrary, neither Landlord nor Tenant shall be liable to the other or to any insurance company (by way
of subrogation or otherwise) for any loss or damage to any building, structure or other tangible property,
or gny resulting loss of income and benefits (even though such loss or damage might have been
occasioned by the negligence of such party its agents or employees) if any such loss or damage is
covered by insurance benefiting the party suffering such loss or damage, or which would have been
covered by insurance required to be maintained pursuant to this Lease. This waiver of subrogation
applies to covered tosses above or below the property deductible. Landlord and Tenant shall require their
respective insurance companies to include a waiver of subrogation provision in their respective policies in
accordance with this Section 7.3.

7.4 IMDEMNIFICA.TION BY TEMAMT. Providfid that Uand.toci naUttes Tenant in writing
of any such third party claims within five (5) business days after Landlord becomes aware of such claim,
Tenant shal! defend, protect, indemnify, and hold Landlord and Landlord's agents, officers, directors,
employees, holders of mortgages on the Property and contractors harmless from and against any and all
injuries, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, damages, injunctions, suits, actions, fines, penalties, and
demands of any kind or nature (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting in any third party claims
occasioned by or arising out of: (a) Tenant's use or occupancy of (he Premises, Oriws-Through and
Tenant's outdoor seating area, if any; (b) any intentional conduct or negligence of Tenant or Tenant's
agents, employees, or contractors; (c) any breach or default in the performance of any obligation on
Tenant's part to be performed under this Lease; or (d) the failure of any representation or warranty made
by Tenant herein to be true when made. This indemnity does not include the intentional or negligent acts
or omissions of Landlord or its agents, officers, contractors or employees; however, the foregoing to the
contrary notwittistanding, it shall remain subject to Section 7.3 above. TOs indemnity sMall survive tMe
expiration or earlier termination of this Lease only as to claims arising out of events that occur during the
Term and Tenant's occupancy of the Premises. Notwithstanding any provision of this Lease to the
contrary, the provisions of this Section 7.4 and Tenant's covenants to provide insurance as provided in
this Lease shall in no event extend to Landlord's independent liability.

7.5 INDEMNIFICATION BY LANDLORD. Provided that Tenant notifies Landlord in
writing of any such third party claims within five (5) business days afterTenant becomes aware of such
claim, Landlord shall defend, protect, indemnify, and hold Tenant and Tenant's agents, officers, directors,
employees, and contractors harmless from and against any and all injuries, costs, expenses, liabilities,
losses', damages, injunctions, suits, actions, fines, penalties, and demands of any kind or nature
(including reasonable attorneys' fees) by or on behalf of any person, entity, or governmental authority
occasioned by or arising out of: (a) events occurring in the Common Areas or any other portion of the
Shopping Center outside the Premises (excluding those events expressly covered by Tenant's
indemnification obligations set forth in Section 7.4 above, and only to the extent applicable); (b) any
intentional conduct or negligence of Landlord or Landlord's agents, employees, or independent
contractors; (c) any breach "or default in the performance of any obligation on Landlord's part to be
performed under this Lease; or (d) the failure of any representation or warranty made by Landlord herein
to be true when made. This indemnity does not include the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of
Tenant or its agents, officers, contractors or employees; however, the foregoing to the contrary
notwithstanding, it shall remain subject to Section 7.3 above. This indemnity shall survive the expiration
or earlier termination of this Lease. Notwithstanding any provision of this Lease to the contrary, the
provisions of this Section 7.5 and Landlord's covenants to provide insurance as provided in this Lease

shall in no event extend to Tenants mdeperidenrt. tiab^y.

11 © 2001 Sterbucks Corporation

RAStarbucks Coffee ColSBUX FORMSffo Be Converted'Commercia] [.ease Form 07-2016 clcaii.docx ReviSI



8. ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY.

8,1 ENVIRONMENTAL LAW. The term "Environmental Law" means any federal,
state, focal law, statute, ordinance, regulation or order and all amendments thereto pertaining to health,
industrial hygiene, environmental conditions or Hazardous Substances.

8.2 HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE. The term "Hazardous Substance" shall mean any
substance that is actually or allegedly harmful to human life, animal life, or vegetation or any other portion
of the enwown&rA', toxic subslanws and -^apois, wastes, CT poWutente-, a'ml hazairtious or dangerous
substances or vapors, including any substances defined, listed and/or regulated by any Environmental
Law or by common law decision including, without limitation, chlorinated solvents, petroleum products or
by-products, asbestos, polychlorinate.d biphenyl, and mold or substances which cannot be disposed of in
a common landfill or require special handling or permits in conjunction with disposal.

8.3 LANDLORD'S COVENANTS. Landlord warrants, represents, covenants and agrees
as follows:

8.3.1 To the best of Landlord's knowledge (other than as disclosed in the
Environmental Reports (as defined herein), no Hazardous Substance has been released, discharged or
disposed of on, under or about the Premises, the Shopping Center or the Property (or off-site of the
Property which might affect the Premises, the Shopping Center, or the Property) by any entity or person,
or from any source whatsoever. Without limiting the foregoing. Landlord represents that the following
constitutes ail information in Landlord's possession or control concerning any release of Hazardous
Substances on. under, or about the Premises, the Shopping Center, or the Property (or off-site of the
Premises that might affect the Premises, or off-site of the Property that might affect the Premises, the
Shopping Center, or the Property) jnduding, wjthout Jimitation, sampling data, environmental studies or
reports, environmental site assessments, building surveys, and historical use reviews (collectively,
"Environmental Reports"), all of which have been provided to Tenant:

Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment, dated April 13, 2018 prepared by Geological Field Sen/ices,
Inc.

8.3.2 Landlord shall require each of its employees, agents, contractors,
subcontractors, tenants, subtenants, or any other party over whom Landlord has supervision or control or
right of the same to comply with all applicable Environmental Laws.

8.3.3 Without limiting the foregoing and to the best of Landlord's knowledge,
except as may be set forth in the Environmental Reports, (a) there are no underground storage tanks on
the Premises, the Shopping Center, or the Property; (b) no underground storage tanks have been
removed from the Premises, the Shopping Center, or the Property; (c) there is no asbestos or asbestos-
containing material in or on the Premises or the Shopping Center; there is no asbestos or asbestos-
containing material in or on the Premises or the Shopping Center, and no asbestos or asbestos-
containing material has been removed from the Premises or the Shopping Center; (d) no facilities
involving the (nanufacture or disposal of any Hazardous Substance or the use or storage of more than
five hundred (500) gallons of any Hazardous Substance per year, including, without limitation, gasoline
stations, automobile repair facifities, dry cleaners, photo developing laboratories, Junkyards, lancifills,
waste treatment storage, disposal, processing or recycling facilities have been located on or adjacent.to

the Premises, the Shopping Center, or the Property.

8.3.4 LandiordshaWgrre prompt w^eflfKrt/ce to Tenant of: (a) any proceeding
or inquiry by any governmental authority with respect to the presence of any Hazardous Substance on the
Premises or the Shopping Center (or off-site of the Premises that might affect the Premises) or related to
any loss or injury that might result from any Hazardous Substance; (b) alt claims made or threatened by
any third party against Landlord or the Premises, the Shopping Center, or the Property relating to any
loss or injury resulting from any Hazardous Substance; and (c) Landlord's discovery of any occurrence or
condition on the Premises, the Shopping Center, or the Property (or off-site of the Premises that might

12 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation

R^Slarbucks Coffee Co\SDUX PORMSXTo Be Converted\Comme(cial Lease Form 07-2016 ctean.docx Revis



affect the Premises) that could cause the Premises or the Common Areas, if any, or any part of either, to
be subject to any restriction on occupancy or use of the Premises under any Environmental Law.

8.3.5 Subject to Tenant's obligations set forth in Section 8.5.1 , if any Hazardous
Substance is deposited, released, stored, disposed, discovered or present in or on the Premises, the
Shopping Center, or the Property, Landlord, at Landlord's expense, shalf promptly and dfdgently, to the
extent required by any applicable law, including (without limitation) any Environmental Laws, rules,
regulations and policies of any governmental entity with jurisdiction over the same, and in compliance
with such laws, remove, transport and dispose of such Hazardous Substance. Landlord, at Landlord's
expense, shall promptly and diligently investigate any reasonable claim from Tenant concerning the
presence or suspected presence of a Hazardous Substance on or in the Property or the Premises,
including (without Umitaiion) the saropting, moffltwing and anaiysjs of soU (both surface and subsurface),
groundwater and air quality (both indoor and outdoor). Such investigation shall be performed by
environmental contractors reasonably acceptable to Tenant. Landlord shall use Us best efforts to
minimize direct and indirect impact on Tenant, including its operations in the Premises and effective use
of the Common Areas, if any, during all activities related to remediation. Without limiting the foregoing,
prior to the Commencement Date, Landlord shall, at its sole cost and expense, remove all asbestos and
asbestos-conla'imng mateTteA ftom ^.he PrKmises. M arfy astaesAos OT asbestos-coTAennmg matenal is
discovered in the Premises during Tenant's inspection of the Premises, construction of its initial or
subsequent tenant improvements or at any other time during the Term, then Landlord shall promptly
remove the same or cause it to be removed at Landlord's sole cost and expense and if the foregoing
delays the construction or installation of Tenant's improvements, then the Rent Commencement Date
shall be extended for one (1) day for each day of delay. In the event that there shall now or in the future
exist any Hazardous Substances in, on, under or about the Premises, the Shopping Center, or the
Property (not caused by Tenant) that materially and adversely affect Tenant's use of or operations from
the Premises, access to or visibility of the Premises, Tenant's construction of its improvements or
Tenant's use of the Common Areas (collectively "Interference"), then: (i) Base Rent and all other
charges payable under this Lease shall be equitably abated in proportion to the effect of the Interference
on Tenant's operations; (ji) if Tenant, in its sole discretion, decides to cease operating in the Premises,
then all Base Rent and all other charges payable under this Lease shall abate until the date on which
Tenant is reasonably able to reopen for business from the Premises without any Interference and for
each day of closure, if the Interference was caused by Landlord, its agents, contractors or employees.
Landlord shall pay to Tenant as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum of Five Hundred
Dollars ($500) per day; (iii) if such Interference occurs prior to the Rent Commencement Date, then the
Rent Commencement Date shaJJ be delayed for one (1) day for each day of Interference (notwithstanding
anything in Section 3.1 of this Lease to the contrary); and (iv) if such Interference continues for more than
ninety (90) days, Tenant may terminate this Lease, in which event Landlord shall pay to Tenant within
twenty (20) days of the date Tenant vacates the Premises an amount equal to the unamortized portion
(based on a straight-line amortization over the Initial Term) of Tenant's store development costs incurred
in connection with the Premises, including (without limitation) attorneys' fees, design fees, consultant fees
(whether the foregoing fees are incwred by oytevie or in-house peTson'ne^, peimWing fees, site setection
costs, and construction costs, plus all other costs and expenses incurred by Tenant in connection with
this Lease and the Premises.

8.4 TENANT'S USE OF ANY HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE. The only Hazardous
Substances Tenant may use in its operations are cleaning solutions and other substances as are
customarify used in Tenant's busn-iess. Tenant wvW manage such use rrr accordance wfth (he

Environmental Laws.

.8.5 INDEMNITIES.

8.5.1 Tenant shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Landlord and
Landlord's employees, agents, parents, and subsidiaries from and against any and all toss, damages,
costs, claims, damage, expense, or liability, including, without limitation, attorneys' or other professional
fees, and the costs of repairs and improvements necessary to return the Premises to the physical
condition existing prior to undertaking any activity related to any Hazardous Substance ("Clanns")

•f3 © 200T Starbucfts Corporation
KAStarbucks Coffee Co\SBUX FORMS\To Be ConvertedVCommereiat Lease Form 07-2016 dean.doi-x ReviS^)flll



actually incurred by Landlord directly arising out of or attributable to Tenant's or Tenant's agents,
contractors, or employees use, manufacture, storage, release, or disposal of a Hazardous Substance on
the Premises or the Shopping Center. This indemnity shall survive the termination of this Lease.

8.5.2 Landlord shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless Tenant and its
agents, officers, directors, contractors, employees, parents, subsidiaries, successors and assigns from
and against any Claims directly or indirectly related to: (a) a violation of or responsibility under
Environmental Laws unless such Claims are directly related to Tenant's, or Tenant's agents, contractors
or employees use, manufacture, storage, release or disposal of a Hazardous Substance on the Premises
or the Shopping Center; or (b) a breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement
contained in this Articfe. This indemnity shall sun/ive the termination of this Lease. In the event that any
Environmental Law or any remedial or response actwity concemio.Q Haz.acdous Substances in, on, under
or about the Premises, the Shopping Center, or the Property (not caused by Tenant) adversely affects
Tenant's operations in the Premises or effective use of any Common Areas, in addition to all other
remedies provided in this Lease, Tenant may cease operating (if Tenant has elected to operate in the
Premises) and, in such event, Base Rent and all other charges shall be abated. If such Interference shall
continue for ninety (90) days, Tenant may terminate this Lease.

9. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION.

9,1 MATERIAL DAMAGE. If the Premises or the Shopping Center are damaged or
destroyed by fire or any casuaity which cannot, despite diligent, good faith efforts be repaired or restored
within one hundred eighty (180) days following the date on which such damage occurs, then Tenant may
elect to terminate this Lease effective as of the date of such damage or destruction. Within thirty (.30)
days after the date of such damage, the parties shall reasonably determine how long the repair and
restoration will take. After that determination has been made, Tenant shall have a period of thirty (30)
days to terminate this Lease by giving written notice to Landlord.

9.2 REPAIR AFTER DAMAGE. If Tenant does not give written notice of Tenant's
election to terminate as provided in Section 9.1. then LandJwd shall, subject to the provisions of this
Section, immediately commence and diligently pursue to completion the repair of such damage so that
the Premises and the Shopping Center are restored to a condition of.simitar quality, character and utility
for Tenant's purposes, including restoration of all items described on Exhibit C existing in the Premises
prior to such damage. !f Landlord fails to complete the restoration of the Premises within two hundred
forty (240) days of the date of damage , Tenant may terminate this Lease with no less than sixty (60)
days advance written notice, tf Tenant does not so terminate, Landtord shatt dffigentiy continueW restore
the Premises. In the event of termination, Landlord shall return any prepaid Base Rent and other prepaid
amounts to Tenant within thirty (30) days from the date of termination of this Lease.

9.3 UNINSURED DAMAGE, tf.damage or destruction is caused by a peril not required
to be insured against hereunder and for which insurance proceeds are not available, either Landlord or
Tenant may terminate this Lease by thirty (30) days written notice to the other of its election so to do and
this Lease shall be deemed to have terminated as of such date unless the other party agrees in writing to
pay for such repairs or restoration.

9.4 DAMAGE DURING FINAL TWO YEARS. If any damage or destruction occurs to the
Premises during the year of the Initial Term or any Extension Term and the cost to repair the damage
exceeds Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00), either Landlord or Tenant may terminate this Lease upon
giving the other party thirty (30) days written notice; provided, however, that if Landlord notifies Tenant
that it wishes to terminate this Lease, (hen Tenant may, if it has not already done so, exercise its n'ght to
extend the term of this Lease under Section 2.4 whereupon Landlord's election to terminate shall be null
and void.

9.5 INTENTIONALLY DELETED,

14 ©2001 Starbucks Corporation
RASUtbwA& Cot&a Cn»SaUK F08.U.yX<i, Ba C'smiw^Cafmsiwa.ih lAiii. l:™o.lH-'aHA dcan.rinn.v. R&1?



9.6 ABATEMENT OjLRENT. If Landlord is required to repair or restore the Premises or
the Shopping Center under any provision ofthi$ Article and Tenant's use of the Premises is affected, then
until Landlord completes such repair or restoration, Base Rent and Annual Additional Rent shall abate
from the date of destruction based on the degree of impact such damage and repairs have on Tenant's
operations within the Premises as measured by the proportionate reduction in Tenant's sales volume.

10. PROPERTY TAXES.

10.1 DEFINITION OF "REAL PROPERTY TAXES". For purposes of this Lease, the
phrase "Real Property Taxes" shall include general real estate taxes and assessments payable with
respect to the Property that are imposed by any authority having the power to tax any legal or equitable
interest of Landlord in the Property; provided, however, that assessments shall be prorated and divided
into the maximum number of insfaWmente permitted by (aw and only the current portion shall be included
in Real Property Taxes for any Lease Year. Nohwithstanding the foregoing, Real Property Taxes shall not
include: (a) any inheritance, estate, succession, transfer, gift, franchise, or capital stock tax; (b) any gross
or net income taxes; (c) any excise taxes imposed upon Landlord based upon gross or net rentals or
other income received by it; or (d) Real Property Taxes assessed against the Property for periods of time
prior to the Rent Commencement Date.

10.2 PAYMENT OP REAL PROPERTY TAXES. As Of the Rent Commencement Date,
Landlord represents and warrants that: (a) Landlord has paid in full all Real Property Taxes due as of the
Rent Commencement Date, (b) Landlord shall pay when due all future Real Property Taxes and (c) the
tax parcel number of the Property is set forth on Exhibit A. Upon written request by Tenant, Landlord
shall render to Tenant, promptly after the receipt of the tax bill applicable to the Premises for a given
period during the Term, a fu(t complete and tegibte copy of such tax fti'ff and a cfeiaftecf Statement showing
the amount of Real Property Taxes and indicating in reasonable detail the items Included in Real Property
Taxes and the computation of Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Real Property Taxes. For each Lease Year
during the Term, Tenant shall pay Landlord, as additional rent, Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Real Property
Taxes in the manner set forth in Article 12. Subject to making estimated payments pursuant to Article 12,
Tenant shall pay Real Property Taxes only as such taxes become due and payable during the Term (as
defined in Section 2.1), prorated for any partial assessment period occurring immediately before the Rent
Commencement Date and after the Expiration Date. If Real Property Taxes assessed against the
Property for periods of time during the Term are billed by the applicable taxing authorities following the
expiration or earlier termination of the Term, the parties agree that the Real Property Taxes for such
period during the Term shall be calculated based on the Real Property Taxes billed by the applicable
taxing authorities for the immediately preceding period during the Term, in full satisfaction of such
reimbursement obligation to Landlord. In the event the taxing authority offers a discounted tax rate or a
penalty rate based on the date of payment. Tenant's property tax shall be calculated at the lowest
possible discounted amount regardless of the date of Landlord's payment to the taxing authority.
Landlord will reimburse Tenanffor Tenant's Pro Rata Share of any refund of Real Property Taxes
received as a result of any tax contest or abatement request by Landlord.

10.3 PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES. Tenant shall pay, prior to delinquency, all
personal property taxes assessed against Tenant directly and applicable to its personal property located
in the Premises.

11. UTILITIES.

11.1 UTILITIES. Landlord shall pay all utility connection fees (including without limitation
all water and sewer connection fees), traffic impact fees and any other impact and extraordinary fees that
are associated with Tenant's use of the Premises. At Landlord's sole cost and expense. Landlord shall
ensure data communications infrastructure in the form of broadband cable or broadband fiber is located
on the PropeUy and available for Tenant's use at the Premises and as described on Exhibit C. Tenant
shall have the right to suffictent unties to support te intended use of the Premises. Without limiting the
foregoing, Landlord either (a) represents and warrants that the Building has sufficient electrical capacity
to allow tenant to draw 400 amps of service to the Premises without the need for an upgrade in utility

15 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation

R:\Starbuclc? Coffee Co\SBUX l-'ORMSM'o Be CanvertiKl\Commercial Lease Form 07-2016 dcan.docx Revis(



service; or (b) covenants to upgrade the electrical capacity of the Building prior to the Commencement
Date, at Landlord's $ole cost and expense, to allow Tenant to draw 400 amps of service to the Premises.
Prior to the Commencement Date, Landlord shall install separate meters for gas, electric, water and
sewer services at the Premises in such locations which are accessible to Tenant. Landlord shall install,
provide and maintain such meters at Landlord's sole cost and expense during the .Term of this Lease.
Subsequent to the Commencement Date, Tenant shall pay directly to the applicable utility provider the
any required deposits and utility charges for all water, sewer, gas and electricity used by Tenant during
the Term. In the event any utility serving the Premises is not separately metered. Landlord shall, at its
sole cost and expense, install a sub-meter prior to the Commencement Date, maintain such meters
during the Term and read such meters and submit a utility statement to Tenant at least once each
calendar quarter. Such statement shall show in reasonable detail the calculation of Tenant's utility charge
and shall be accompanjed with a copy of Landlord's ufUJty bjll for such period- Landlord shall not charge
Tenant a rate for any utility in excess of the lesser of the rate Landlord pays the supplier of the service or
the rate at which Tenant could purchase the services directly through an available supplier. Tenant shall
pay to Landlord a utility charge for any sub-metered utility used by Tenant in the Premises within thirty
(30) days after receipt of the documents described above. Landlord shall be deemed to have waived its
right to payment for any utility charge unless such charge has been submitted to Tenant within eighteen .
{\ 8) monftis o1 ^'fre date o^ LairidtoTd tecewea %uth Wi w tthar^e ITWTI t'rre; uti^y picwwleT. Tenant wiW ha-ve
no obligation to pay or reimburse Landlord for any utility charges that were incurred or billed before the
date that the then-current Landlord purchased the Property from the previous landlord. Landlord
acknowledges that the Tenant has the right to contract with and use its own energy service providers and
until it does so, Landlord may use its its own energy service providers to serve the Premise$. The
provisions in this Section 1 1.1 are subject to the provisions set forth in Section 11.2 below.

11.2, ALTERNATIVE ENERGY SYSTEM. Notwithstanding anything contained in
Section 11.1 or elsewhere in this Lease, Tenant or its solar contractors, suppliers or other alternative
energy agents ("AE Agent") shall have the right to install, utilize, maintain and remove a solar
photovoltaic or similar solar energy system including all related equipment, appurtenances, wiring and
meters or any other form of alternative energy system (collectively referred to as "AE System") on the
roof of the Building for use at the Premises^ subiect to Landlord's consent which may be withheld in
Landlord's sole discretion. The installation will include the right to make necessary penetrations through
the roof and/or walls of the Building for such use, subject to Landlord's consent as set forth above. At
Tenant's election the AE System shall be connected to the electrical/mechanical system of the Building in
lieu of (or as a supplement to) the standard electrical usage for the Premises set forth in^ Section 11.1
above. The AE System shall be in accordance with applicable law and the.approved AE Performance
Specifications and shaJJ ccunpfy with the proper roofing standards for such systems. Tenant shall be
permitted to make any necessary changes, alterations or additions to the AE System at any time during
the Term (including any extensions or renewals), subject to Landlord's sole consent. It shall be Tenant's
and/or its AE System Agent's sole responsibility (including all costs) to: (i) obtain all required related
permits; (ii) install, operate and maintain the AE System; and (iii) indemnify Landlord, its agents and
employees, from and against alt costs for property damage arising solely out of the installation, operation,
maintenance and/or removal ot the A>E System. Tenant andfor ite AE ^gent shaU be entitled to remove
the AE System at end of the Term, or at any time during the Term in its sole discretion, without Landlord's .
consent, provided Tenant repairs any damage caused by such removal. Tenant shall be entitled to the
exclusive use of the electricity generated by the AE System at the Premises, even if it is purchased from
its AE Agent. Tenant and/or'itsAE Agent are solely entitled the proceeds from the sale of any unused AE
System electricity generated at the Premises.

11.3 EASEMENT If requested by Tenant, Landlord shall execute and record an
easement consistent with the rights and obligations of the parties to this Lease at no additional rental
charge.

11.4 FINANCING^Landlord agrees that in the event Tenant's and/or the AE Agent's .
lender(s) or an AE System lessor (collectively "AE Lender") provides financing or a rental arrangement for
AE System, the AE System (regardless how it is attached to or incorporated in the Building and the
Premises) shall remain the property of Tenant, the AE Agent and/or the AE Lender. Any collateral

16 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
R.-lStartiucfcs Cofi-ce Co\SBUX SWUttSVi'a Se Coni-erti-d'Cummen.-iaf Legsf POT) »7.2ff;6 dom.AtCT- Re\



securing such financing wouid create a first prrority security interest fSecurrty fnterest"} in the AE System
in favor of the AE Lender to be perfected by the filing of a Financing Statement (Form UCC-1) under the
Uniform Commercial Code as personal property only, and not as a fixture upon the Building or the
Shopping Center. Landlord acknowledges and accepts the existence of such Security Interest and
agrees that the AE System shall at all times remain the personal property of Tenant, AE Agent and/or AE
Lender for which Landlord disclaims and releases any lien of Landlord in or to the AE System as a fixture
or otherwise. Landlord, to the best oi its knowledge, represents and warrants thai the insta)lat)on of the
AE System and the granting of the Security Interest wilt not violate any covenant, restriction, lien,
financing agreement or security agreement to which Landlord is a party. Upon the request of Tenant or
AE Agent, Landlord shall execute and deliver an acknowledgement, in a form reasonably satisfactory to
AE Lender, confirming the provisions of this Section 11 .2. Landlord disclaims and waives any right to
receive any and all savings, subsidies, credits, renewable energy credits, allowances, rebates, tax
incentives or other incentives based upon the installation and maintenance of the System, all of which
shall be for the exclusive benefit of Tenant, AE Agent and/or AE Lender (as the case may be).

12. TENANT'S PRO RATA SHARE OF COMMON AREA OPERATING EXPENSES,
INSURANCE AND TAXES.

12.1 GENERAL DEFINITIONS. The term "Operating Expenses" shall mean the
reasonable and necessary, out-of-pocket costs and expenses actually paid in any calendar year directly
attributable to maintaining, operating, and providing services to and for the Common Areas without
duplication, including the costs of utilities, maintenance, supplies and wages, and subject to the
exceptions set forth in Section 12.5. The term "Common Areas" shall mean all portions of the Building
and the Shopping Center (excluding the Premises and any other space in the Shopping Center designed
to be leased to another tenant for its exclusive use) including landscaped areas, parking lots, and
sidewalks. The terms "Landlord's Insurance" and "Real Property Taxes" shall have the meanings
assigned in Sections 7.2 and 10.1 respectively and shall not be included in Operating Expenses for any
purpose, including, without limitation, the calculation of any management or administrative fees.

12.2 DEFINITIQM OF TE.MA.MT'S PRO RA.TA. SHARE, Tenant's Pea Rate Share shall
be the ratio of the Gross Leasable Area of the Premises to the Gross Leasable Area of the retail section
of the Shopping Center (Tenant's "Pro Rata Share"). Tenant's Pro Rata Share is estimated to be
nineteen and one half percent (19.5%). Landlord represents that as of the date hereof, the retail section
of the Building contains eleven thousand, nine hundred (11,900) square feet of Gross Leasable Area. If
the number of square feet of Gross Leasable Area in retail section of the Building increases during the
Term, then Tenant's Pro Rate Share shall be adjusted accordrngly. fn no event shalf Tenant's Pro Rata

Share increase.

12.3 TENANT'S PAYMENT. Commencing on the Rent Commencement Date, for each
calendar year oftheTerm^prorated for any calendar year falling partially within the Term}, Tenant shall
pay to Landlord as additional rent Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Operating Expenses, Landlord's Insurance
and Real Property Taxes (collectively known as "Annual Additional Rent"). Prior to the Rent
Commencement Date and at least thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of each calendar year thereafter,
Landlord shall furnish to Tenant a written statement setting forth the following: (a) the amount Landlord
estimates Landlord will pay for Operating Expenses (broken down into reasonable categories). Real
Property Taxes and Landlord's Insurance for the then upcoming calendar year; (b) Landlord's estimate of
Tenant's Annual Additional Rent; and (c) a calculation of one-twelfth (1/12) of Landlord's estimate of
Tenant's Annual Additional Rent ("Monthly Estimated Rent"). Landlord's estimates of Tenant's Annual
Additional Rent shall be reasonably based on the actual amounts paid by Tenant for such expenses
during the previous year. Tenant shall pay to Landlord the Monthly Estimated Rent beginning on the
Rent Commencement Date and on the first day of every successive calendar month thereafter during the
Term. Monthly Estimated Rent for a period of less than one month shall be prorated on a daily basis
based on a three hundred sixty-five (365) day year. Notwithstanding any provision of this Lease,
Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Operating Expenses from the Rent Commencement Date through the end of
the first full calendar year shall not exceed four and 37/100 Dollars ($4.37) per square foot of Gross
Leasable Area in the'Premises,'Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Landlord's Insurance from the Rent

17 • © 2001 Starbucks Corporation

R:\Storbucks Coffee Co\SGUX FORMS\To Be ConvcncdVCommerCial I.ease Pomi 07-2016 clean.docx ReVIS(



Commencement Date through the end of the first full calendar year shall not exceed 65/100 Dollars
($0.65) per square foot of Gross Leasable Area in the Premises, and Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Real
Property Taxes from the Rent Commencement Date through the end of the first full calendar year shall
not exceed one and 96/100 Dollars ($1.96) per square foot of Gross Leasable Area in the Premises,
Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the portion of Tenant's Annual Additional Rent
attributable to Operating Expenses for any calendar year following the first full calendar year of the Term
shall not exceed one hundred five percent (105%), on a non-cumutative basis, of the portion of Tenant's
Annual Additional Rent attributable to Operating Expenses payable by Tenant for the previous calendar
year.

12.4 RECONCILIATION. For each calendar year of the Term, within one hundred
twenty (120) days after the end of each calendar year, Landlord shaU furnish to Tenant, at the notice
address provided for in Article 25, a statement in reasonable detail and certified as complete and correct
by an authorized representative of Landlord, including supportive documentation, setting forth (a)
Landlord's actual costs for Operating Expenses, Real Property Taxes and Landlord's Insurance for that
year by category and amount; (b) the amount of Tenant's Annual Additional Rent; and (c) the sum of
Tenant's Monthly Estimated Rent payments made during the year. If the amount of Tenant's Annual
Additional Rent exceeds the sum o< Tenanl's Monthly E^mate'cl Rent payments {and a atatement has
been received during such one hundred twenty (120) day period), Tenant shall pay the deficiency to
Landlord within forty-five (45) days after Tenant's receipt of such statement, provided that Tenant may
suspend payment of any amount which (x) it disputes in good faith, (y) was paid by Landlord in a calendar
year other than the year covered by the statement, or (z) it has not been provided with reasonable details
as set forth above, until resolution thereof. If the sum of Tenant's Monthly Estimated Rent payments
during the year exceeds the amount ofTenanfs Annuar Adcfiltonaf Rent, Landtord snaff pay tne excess to
Tenant at the time Landlord furnishes the statement, or, if the Term has not expired, may credit the
excess toward the payments of Base Rent and Tenant's Monthly Estimated Rent next falling due.
Landlord shall be deemed to have waived its right to payment for any amount which is understated or not
included in the statement for the year in which the work was performed or the cost was billed to Landlord.
Tenant shall not be required to reimburse Landlord for any amounts claimed to be due Landlord in
connection with any reconciliation not produced by Landlord within the time period referenced above.
Tenant will have no obligations to pay or reimburse Landlord for any expense included in Annual
Additional Rent that was incurred or billed before the date that the then-current Landlord purchased the
Property from the previous landlord.

12.5 EXCLUSIONS FROM OPERATING EXPENSES. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained in this Lease, Operating Expenses shall not Include: (a) the initial costs of any item
properly chargeable to a capital account (using generally accepted_accounting principles consistently
applied) nor the original costs of constructing the Building and the Shopping Center; (b) the cost of any
capital addition or replacement to the Building, the Shopping Center, or the Property (nor reserves
therefor); (c) expenses for which Landlord is or wilt be reimbursed by another source (excluding Tenant's
reimbursemert'for Opecating Ev-pensLes), including but not llmtted to repair or ceplacement oT any item
covered by warranty; (d) costs incurred to benefit (or as a result of) a specific tenant or items and^services
selectively supplied to any specific tenant: (e) expenses for the defense of Landlord's title to the Property;
(f) structural repairs and replacements; (g) depreciation and amortization of the Building and the
Shopping Center or financing costs, including interest and principal amortization of debts: (h ^charitable,
lobbying^ special interest or political contributions; (i) costs of improving or renovating space for a tenant,
or space vacated by a tenant; (j) any amounts expended by LancSor^ to comp)y w'tth any Enwonmental
Laws; (k) costs to correct original or latent defects in the design, construction or equipment of the Building
and/orthe Shopping Center;"(!) any repair, rebuilding or other work necessitated by condemnation, fire,
windstorm or other Insured casualty or hazard; (m) any expenses incurred: (i) to comply with any
governmental laws, regulations and rules or any court order, decree or judgment including, without
limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act; or (ii) as a result of Landlord's alleged violation of or failure
to comply with any governmental laws, regulations and rules or any court order, decree or judgment; (n)
leasing commissions, advertising expenses and other costs incurred in leasing or procuring new tenants;
(o) rental on ground leases or other underlying leases; (p) attorneys' fees, accounting fees and
expenditures incurred in connection with tax contests or negotiations, disputes and claims of other

16 © 200T Starbucks Corporation

RAStarbucks Coffee Ct?BUX FORMS\To Be ConvencdtCommercial Lease Form 07-2016 clean.docx ReviS<



tenants or occupants of the Building or the Shopping Center or with other third parties except as
specifically provided in this Lease; (q) cost of the initial stock of tools and equipment for operation, repair
and maintenance of the Building and the Shopping Center; (r) any duplicate expenses or costs; (s)
amounts billed (directly or indirectly) for salaries, overhead and expenses for office rent and office
supplies and (t) administrative or management fees (in the aggregate) which exceed ten percent (10%)
of the Operating Expenses. As noted in Section 12.1 above, Landlord's calculation of administrative
and/or management fees shall not be based on any charges related to Common Area utility costs,
Landlord's Insurance and/or Real Property Taxes.

12.6 RECORDS. Landlord shall keep records showing all expenditures incurred as
Operating Expenses, Landlord's Insurance and Real Property Taxes for each calendar year for a period
of three (3) yeare fallowing each year, and such recQtda shall he tnade avaitaJble for inspection and
photocopying by Tenant and/or its agents during ordinary business hours in the city in which the
Premises are located.

12.7 DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any dispute with respect to Landlord's calculations of
Tenant's Annual Additional Rent shall be resolved by the parties through consultation in good faith within
sixty (60) days after written notice by Tenant to Landtord. However, if the dispute cannot be resolved
within such period, the parties shall request an audit of the disputed matter from an independent, certified
public accountant selected by both Landlord and Tenant, whose decision shall be based on generally
accepted accounting principles and shall be final and binding on the parties. If there is a variance of three
percent (3%) or more between said decision and Landlord's determination of Tenant's Annual Additional
Rent, Landlord shall pay the costs of the audit and shaft credit any overpayment toward the next Base
Rent and/or Monthly Estimated Rent payment Taffing due or pay sucti overpayment to Tenant witriin thirty
(30) days of completion of the audit. If the variance is less than three percent (3%), Tenant shall pay the
cost of said audit. Each party agrees not to enforce any alleged reconciliation defaults during the period in
which the parties are exercising such good faith resolution efforts prior to a final audit determination.

13. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEFTING.

Tenant shall not assign, transfer or sublet any of its interests under or permit anyone other than Tenant to
occupy all or any part of the Premises voluntarily, involuntarily, by operation of law or change in corporate
control; except as set forth below.

Tenant may, without Landlord's consent, subtet all or any portion of the Premises or assign its interest in
this Lease to: (a) a parent, subsidiary, affiliate, division or other entity controlling, controlled by or under
common control'with Tenant; (b) a successor entity related to Tenant by merger, consolidation,
reorganization or government action; or (c) an entity that acquires not less than ten (10) of Tenant's
locations, operating under the trade name "Starbucks Coffee" or any other trade name then^ised by
Tenant (each a "Permitted Transfer"). For the purpose of this Lease, any sale or transfer of Tenant's
capital stock, redemption or issuance of additional stock of any class shall not be deemed an assignment,
subletting or any other transfer of this Lease or the Premises. Landlord shall not be entitled to any
consideration in connection with any assignment or subtet. Except in the case of a Permitted_Transfer.
prior to any assignment or sublet, Tenant shall first notify Landlord of its intent to market the Premises for
assignment or sublet. Upon receipt of such notice, Landlord shall have thirty (30) days to elect to
termfnate this Lease by notice to Tenant. Such termination shall be effective ninety (90) days after
Tenant's receipt of such notice. If Landlord does not elect to terminate this Lease within such thirty (30)
days, Tenant shall have the right to sublet all or any portion of the Premises or assign this Lease without
Landlord's consent. Tenant shall remain liable under the Lease following any transfer hereunder;
provided, however, that Tenant's obligations may not be enlarged or extended by any act or agreement of
any assignee or subtenant. Tenant's'tiability under this Lease for any particular defeult by an assignee or
subtenant shall be void if Landlord fails contemporaneously to provide Tenant with a copy of any default
notice that Landlord sends to the assignee or subtenan!. AS transferees hereunder sha!) expressly
assume the obligations and liabilities of Tenant hereunder and shall execute an agreement to that effect.

1Q © 2QQI Starhucks Cocporafon

R:<Siarbucfcs Coffee CriSBUX TOKMSl'l'o Be Converte(l<Commcrcial (-ease Form fl7-2016cfcan.doex Revisgd]ri^lj



U. DEFAULTS; REMEOTES.

14.1_ TENANT'S DEFAULTS. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events
shall constitute a default and breach of this Lease by Tenant-.

(a) The failure by Tenant to make any payment of Base Rent or any other
payment required to be made by Tenant hereunder, as and when due, where such failure shall continue
for a period of ten (10) days after written notice from Landlord to Tenant that it is due; it being understood
and agreed that Landlord shall not be required to give such written notice more than two (2) times in any
twelve (12) month period, and thereafter during such twelve (12) month period, it shall be a default if
Tenant fails to may payment of Base Rent or any other payment required to be made by Tenant
hereunder within ten (10) days of the date same is due;or

(b) The failure by Tenant to obsen/e or perform any of the covenants, conditions,
or provisions of this Lease to be obsen/ed or performed by Tenant, other than the payment of sums due
hereunder, where such failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after Tenant's receipt of
Landlord's written notice thereof; provided, however, that if the nature of Tenant's default is such that
more than thirty (30^ ciays are reasonab^ requwed for i-te, cure, then T&nant shaU not be deemed to be in
default if Tenant commences such cure within such thirty (30) day period and thereafter diligently pursues
such cure to completion.

14.2 REMEDIES IN DEFAULT. In the event of any such default which remains uncured
after the expiration of the applicable notice and cure period(s) specified above. Landlord may, in
accordance with procedures requrred by (aw, pursue one of the foftowrng remedfes:

(a) In the event of a material default. Landlord may terminate Tenant's right to
possession of the Premises by any lawful means, in which case this Lease shall terminate and Tenant
shall surrender possession of the Premises to Landlord within thirty (30) days after Tenant's receipt of
Landlord's written notice of termination. Landlord shall not be entitled to terminate this Lease during any
time that the parties are involved in a good faith dispute regarding the existence of an alleged material
default. In the event Landlord is permitted to terminate this Lease as set forth herein, Landlord shall be
entitled to recover from Tenant all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenant's default including,
but not limited to, the cost of recovering possession of the Premises, expenses of reletting (but excluding
necessary renovation and alteration of the Premises for use by a subsequent tenant or occupant), and
the Base Rent and Annual Additional Rent as it becomes due hereunder. Notwithstanding anything in

-this Lease to the contrary, in no event shall Tenant be liable for any consequential damages; or

(b) Landlord may maintain Tenant's right to possession, in which case this Lease
shall continue in effect whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises. In such event.
Landlord shall be entitled to enforce all of Landlord's rights and remedies under this Lease including the
right to recover the Base Rent and Annual Additional Rent as It becomes due hereunder.

Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, Landlord shall reasonably mitigate any damages incurred as
a result of Tenant's default hereunder. Landlord's duty to mitigate damages shall be deemed satisfied if
Landlord deals with any tenant prospects in a reasonable manner. In no event shall Landlord be required
to lease the Premises in preference to any other vacant space at the Property.

14.3 LANDLORD DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES. The occurrence of any one or more of
the following events shall constitute a default and breach of this Lease by Landlord: (a) Landlord's failure
to do, observe, keep and perform any of the terms, covenants, conditions, agreements or provisions of
this Lease required to be done, observed, kept or performed by Landlord, within lhirty.(30} days after
written notice by Tenant to Landlord of said failure (except when the nature of Landlord's obligation is
such that more than thirty (30) days are required for its performance, then Landlord shall not be deemed
in default if it commences performance within the thirty (30) day period and thereafter diligently pursues
the cure to completion); or (b) the failure of any representation or warranty to be true when deemed given
hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event Landlord's breach creates an emergency

20 ©2001 Starbucks Corporation
R:Kiar6ucks Coffee CoSRUX FORMSlTo He ConvertedVCnffimercfa) Lease Form OT-WI6 crean.dbcx ReVl'i



situation, or is of such a nature that impairs Tenant's ability to operate at the Premises (which shall
include by way of illustration and not limitation, obstructions or disruptions to: common areas, parking,
access to the Premises or the Shopping Center, visibility, utilities, roof leaks, health and safety and quiet
enjoyment), then Landlord shall be required to remedy such breach as soon as commercially reasonable
and in any event without delay. In the event of a default by Landlord, Tenant, at its option, without further
notice or demand, shall have the right to any one or more of the following remedies in addition to all other
rights and remedies provided at law or in equity or elsewhere herein: (w) to remedy such default or
breach and deduct the costs thereof (including attorneys' fees) from the installments of Base Rent and
Annual Additional Rent next falling due; (x) to pursue the remedy of specific performance; and/or (y) to
seek non-consequenfiaf money damages for toss arising from Landlord's faifure to discharge its
obligations under this Lease. In the event of a material default by Landlord hereunder, that is not cured
within an additional forty fwe (A&\ days. aftec wltten. notiGe, and tw wtv.ch there is no other reasonable
remedy hereunder, Tenant shall be entitled to terminate this Lease. Nothing herein contained shall
relieve Landlord from its obligations hereunder, nor shall this Section be construed to obligate Tenant to
perform Landlord's repair obligations.

Except as expressly set forth in this Lease, Tenant shall not have the right to offset or
abate rent or tennmate the Lease.

15. CONDEMNATION.

15.1 CONDEMNATION OF PREMISES. If any portion of the Premises is taken by a
government entity exercising the power of eminent domain, or sold to a government entity by Landlord
under the exercise of said power (the final judicial order that permits the taking is herein referred to as
"condemnation"), this Lease shall terminate as to the part so taken as of the date the condemning
authority takes possession of the condemned portion of the Premises (the "Condemnation Date"). If so
much of the Premises is taken that, in Tenant's reasonable business judgment, the Premises are no
longer reasonably suitable for Tenant's operations, Tenant may terminate this Lease. If the entire
Premises are condemned, then this Lease shall automatically terminate as of the Condemnation Date.
The party who receives the condemnor's notice of intention to take (the "Condemnation Notice") shall
immediately give a copy of such notice to the other party.

15.2 CONDEMNATION OF THE PROPERTY, If as a result of any condemnation of the
Property or any portion thereof (even though the Premises are not physically affected), if either (a) the
Premises, the Buildmg, th® Stva^ng C^ntw, w Property wo, no loi^et cwa&onafaly aulted for ttie conduct
of Tenant's business fn Tenant's reasonable business judgment, (b) the number of parking spaces on the
Property located within fifty (50) feet of the Premises is reduced by more than two (2) spaces and
Landlord does not provide alternative equally accessible parking, or (c) the drive-through lane
configuration and/or dimensions (including any turning radius or stacking lanes) are materially and
negatively affected, then Tenant may terminate this Lease at any time after Tenant receives the
Condemnation Notice by giving Lanctorof thwty (30) days wvrtten no(fo°.

15.3 CONDEMNATipN OF THE BUILDING AND/OR THE SHOPPING CENTER. If a
condemnation of any portion oftheBuildfng or the Shopping Center (even though the Premises are not
physically affected) renders the Building or the Shopping Center unsuitable for use as a retail building or
shopping center in'either party's reasonable business judgment, then either Landlord or Tenant may
terminate this Lease by giving the other at least thirty (30) days written notice. Ncrtwittistand'mg the
foregoing, Landlord may only exercise its right to terminate under this Section if Landlord terminates the
leases of all other tenants in the Shopping Center.

15.4 RESTORATION. If this Lease is not terminated, (a) it shall remain in full force and
effect as to the portion of the Premises remaining, provided the Base Rent and all other charges payable
hereunder shall'be reduced in the same proportion that the area taken bears to the total area of the
Premises prior to taking, and (b) Landlord shall use the condemnation award to restore the Premises
and/or the Shopping Center as soon as reasonably possible to a complete unit of the same quality,
character and utility'for Tenant's purposes existing prior to the condemnation. Notwithstanding anything

21 ©2001 Starbucks Corporation

R:\Start>ucks Coffee Co\SBUX FORMSYIolie Canverted\Cotnmercial 1-ease Form 07-2016 clean .docx Revisgd^fll}



contained herein to the contrary, if the restoration of the Premises and/or the Shopping Center is not
commenced -witinm tirnrty (30) days of Landliorti's TeceiTA of fte condemnalTCin award or is niA completed
within one hundred eighty (180) days from the Condemnation Date, then Tenant may terminate this
Lease at any time before Landlord completes the restoration. If this Lease is terminated, Landlord shall
return any deposits, all prepaid Base Rent and other prepaid sums to Tenant within thirty (30) days of the
date of termination of this Lease.

15.5 AWARD. Landlord and Tenant may each pursue any condemnation award to
which it is entitled by applicable law. Tenant may recover from the condemning authority or from
Landlord (if Tenant can show that such amount was included in Landlord's award) that portion of any net
award or payment attributable to Tenant's work or instaltetions in the Premises, including without
limitation, the unamortized value of improvements installed in the Premises by Tenant at Tenant's
expen$e based on straight-line depreciation over the Initial Term without regard to the condemnation. For
the purposes of this Section, a "net" award or payment shall mean the entire award or payment for such
taking, less the actual and reasonable expenses incurred in collecting such award or payment.

16. SIGNAGE. Tenant, at its cost, shall have the right to install or place signs, awnings, or
other advertising materials in, on or about the Premises, including all directional signs, menu boards, and
other signage associated whh the dme-through fad)'!ty, to Ihe maximum extent permitted by Jocat Jaw, as
shown on the plans attached hereto as Exhibit B-2.

Landlord's design and construction of the Premises will include a tower element as depicted on
the far left of Exhibit B-2 and labeled Retail One (the "Tower Element"), Tenant will have the exclusive
right to install and maintain signage on the Tower Element, as shown on the plans attached hereto as .
Exhibit B.2.

Tenant will have the right at no additional rent, to install a sign panel in the top position on both
sides of the pylon sign at the Property shown on Exhibit B-2. Landlord will pay for all costs associated
with the fabrication, installation and maintenance of such sign(s),and shall install same prior to Tenant's
opening for business at the Premises. Tenant will pay all costs associated with the fabrication and shall
reimburse Landlord for ad costs associated with the installation of Tenant's sign panels.

Landlord shall not vary or change the location, size or position of Tenant's signage, including but
not limited to the position of Tenant's signage on any pylon or monument signs. Notwithstanding
anything contained herein to the contrary. Landlord hereby consents to, and Tenant shall be permitted to
install, tenant's then-currenttrademarked name(,s^ colors. letters, font and logo in Tenant's signage as
depicted on Exhibit B-2, subject only to Tenant securing all necessary approvals from the Town of
Middleton. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, Tenant shall not be required to
obtain Landlord's consent for any promotional or advertising signs or displays within the interior of the
Premises. Landlord shall not allow any signage other than Tenant's to be erected on the exterior walls of
the Premises. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, Tenant's ability to install a sign on
more than one side of the Tower Etement sha» not be a condition of this Lease or result m any delay in
the Commencement Date. Tenant acknowledges that the Town of Middleton does not permit by right
more than one "wall" sign to be erected for any single tenant without securing a special permit or
variance. Accordingly, prior to installing a sign on two sides of the Tower Element, Tenant acknowledges
that it will be required to seek approval from the Board of Appeals.

If Landlord requests that Tenant temporarily remove Tenant's Exterior Signage after installation
for any reason and Tenant consents to such removal in writing Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for the
actual'cost incurred by Tenant to remove, store and re-install the Exterior Signage. If Landlord has not
paid Tenant those costs within thirty (30) days after Tenant re-installs its Exterior Signage, then jn
addition to any other remedies Tenant has, Tenant may offset the unpaid amount against Base Rent and
all other charges (at Tenant's discretion) until Tenant's costs are fully offset.

22 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
BASwhucks Coffee CtASBUX CQGM'iYttt Sn Cnn.VMteACaffltwjKlal Leasfi. 6'ica 11-!-?<11A cliiim.Ay.s. FifiW



17. PERMIT CONTINGENCY. Tenant's obligations under this Lease are conditioned on
Tenant's obtaining any permits and/or licenses (including but not limited to conditional use permits,
building permits, variances and other governmental approvals) (collectively, the "Government
Approvals") that are required by appJteable )aws to enable Tenant legally to; (a) construct Tenant's
improvements to the Premises in accordance with the Plans; (b) install Tenant's signage on the Premises;
and (c) conduct its business from the Premises,. Tenant shall, at Tenant's expense, file for such
Government Approvals by July 30, 3018 (provided that Landlord approves Tenant's Plans in the time
frame set forth in Section 6.5.1 or such July 30 date shall move forward day for day for each day of delay
by Landlord in approving same), and shal! diligently pursue each Government Approval. Landlord shall
execute any apptications and shati pTov^tte Tenant wiVn %uth ^n^heT assteAante and toopeTation as
Tenant may require in connection with applications for such Government Approvals. If Tenant does not
obtain such Government Approvals on terms satisfactory to Tenant.-or if any Government Approvals or
drive-through permits are not renewed or are revoked during the Term due to Landlord^ conduct, Tenant
shall have the right to terminate this Lease. In the event that Tenant has not sent notice to Landlord
confirming its satisfaction, waiver of, or inability to satisfy the contingency described in this Section 17,
Landlord shall have the right to send noh'ce to Tenant of Tenant's faffure to cfo so, ana snail (ncfuae (n
such notice the fact that Tenant has thirty (30) days to respond to Landlord's notice and reciting that
Tenant's failure to do so shall be deemed a termination of this Lease. Tenant shall have thirty (30) days
following its receipt of Landlord's notice to respond to Landlord, to either waive the contingency or to elect
to terminate this Lease, as provided in this Section 17. After a termination hereunder, neither party shall
have any rights or liabilities under this Lease, and Landlord shall return any deposits and prepaid
amounts to Tenant, if any; provided that, if such termination is based on Landlord's conduct, Tenant shall
be entitled to pursue such other rights and remedies as may be available at law or in equity. Tenant shall
vacate the Premises within thirty (30) days after exercising the option to terminate as provided in this
Section 17.

18. OUTDOOR SEATJISJG. Jf such seatjng is permitted by the local authorities. Tenant may
provide outdoor seating for its customers on property owned by Landlord adjacent to the Premises (the
dimensions and location of such area are set forth on Exhibit B-1. or otherwise as mutually agreed upon
by Landlord and Tenant) at any time during the Term of this Lease at no additional rental. Landlord shall
provide such outdoor seating in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit C. Tenant, at its cost, shall
comply with all relevant state, municipal or local laws, regulations, rules and ordinances applicable to its
operations m tiro outdoor seating atea. LardtoTd shaU be Tesponstbte, aA. ite aote ooali and expense,to
obtain site plan approval, if necessary, from the Board of Appeals for the Town of Middleton in
connection with the modification of the existing approved site plan for the Shopping Center showing the
outdoor seating area.Jenant shall pay for and obtain all necessary permits required by the Town of
Middleton for the use'and operation of the outdoor seating area, Tenant shall take reasonable steps to
keep the outdoor seating area exclusively serving its customers reasonably clean and neat.^Approval for
the outdoor seating area sha(( not be a condition oftdi's Lease or result in any delay fn ttie

Commencement Date.

19. TENANT'S RIGHT OF EARLY TERMINATION. Notwithstanding anything contained
herein to the contrary, Tenant, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to terminate this Lease as of the
Eariy Termination Date. The "Early Termination Date" shall be the last day of the sixtieth (60"') full
calendar month of the Term. In order to exercise this early termination right, Tenant must give Landlord
written notice no less than one hundred twenty (120) days before the Early Termination Date. Upon the
date Tenant specifies for the Early Termination Date, Tenant shall be fully and forever released and
discharged from any and all obligations, covenants or liabilities of whatsoever kind or nature in law or
equity or otherwise arising out of or in connection with this Lease or any other agreements by and
between Landlord and Tenant except any obtiQation or liability accrued before the Eariy Termination
Date. Should Tenant elect to terminate this Lease as permitted under this Section 19, Tenant shall pay
Landlord, on or prior to the Early Termination Date a termination fee (the "Termination Fee") equal to the
total of the following amounts: (a) three (3) months of Base Rent payable as of the date immediately
preceding the Early Termination Date; (b) the then-unamortized portion of the broker's commission paid
by Landlord in connection with this Lease (which the parties agree is $42,446.25, calculated by
amortfzing such amaun.t on a strslght-Une basis, ovec a ten ('10'^ year term and (c.^ th% then-unacnortized

23 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
RAStarbucks Coftee Co\SRUX FORMSVTo Be ConveKeACommereial Lease Form 07-2016 clean.iiocx Revis<



portion of the Tenant Allowance, calculated by amortizing such amount on a straight-line basis over a ten
(10) year term.

20. TENANTS USE OF COMMON AREAS. Tenant shaN haw me nghtto use any arrd alf
appurtenances and easements benefiting the Premises and the Shopping Center, along with sufficient
Common Areas and parking to support its intended use of the Premises, including such portions as are
necessary for Tenant's operation of the drive-through facility, including necessary stacking lanes as well
as areas necessary for Tenant's outdoor seating area. In addition to the foregoing. Tenant shall have the
right of access to such portions of the Shopping Center outside the Premises as are necessary to enable
Tenant to exercise its rigTits under this Lease. Landlord stiaTI not allow any permanent or temporary
kiosk, cart, or other obstruction to be constructed or placed on the Property within one hundred fifty (150)
feet of the Premises. Any changes, additions or alterations to the Premises, the Property, or the
Shopping Center shall not (a) impair access to, visibility of or frontage of the Premises; (b) materially
affect the conduct of Tenant's customary business therein; or (c) detract from Tenant's signage, create
confusion regarding the business conducted in the Premises.

21. PARKING AND ACCESS. At no expense to Tenant and/or its employees or customers,
Landlord shall provide all parking for Tenant's employees and customers (and Landlord shall apply for
and obtain all variances in connection therewith), as needed to meet all code and permitting requirements
for Tenant's anticipated use throughout the Term. Landlord shall not vary or permit to be varied the
existing means of ingress and egreas Co the Buitctmg, the Shopping Center, nor the Property. Landlord
shall not reduce the number of parking spaces below that which is required by law for Tenant to maintain
its permit to use and occupy the Premises or realign the parking spaces in a manner that makes them
substantially less accessible to the Premises. Landlord will provide Tenant with five (5) exclusive parking
spaces adjacent to the Premises. Landlord shall install signage indicating these exclusive spaces.

22. TRASH REMOVAL. Landtord shati prowde Tenant wfth a (awfui location on the Property
(as shown on Exhibit B-1) to store a four (4) cublc-yard trash container and a four (4) cubic-yard
recycling container, in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit C. The costs of trash and recycling
removal shall be included in Operating Expenses.

23. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

23.1 ESTOPPEL CERTIRCATE. Tenant shail, no more than twice in any Lease Year
and upon not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice from Landlord (addressed to Tenant as set
forth in Article 25), execute, acknowledge and deliver to any prospective purchaser or mortgagee, or to
Landlord on such party's behalf a statement in writing on Tenant's standard form or on such other form as
is acceptable to Tenant, (a) certifying that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or, if
modified, stating the nature of such modification and certifying that this Lease, as so modified, is in full
force and effect); (b) stating the date to which the Base Rent and other charges are paid and the amount
of any security deposit held by Landlord, if any; and (c) acknowledging that there are not, to the actual
knowledge of'the person executing such certificate, any uncured defaults on the part of Landlord
hereunder, or specifying such defaults, if any, which are claimed. Any such statement may^be.
conclusively relied upon by any prospective purchaser or encumbrancerof the Premi$es. Such
certificates shall not affect, prejudice or waive any rights or remedies of Tenant against Landlord.

23.2LANDLORD'S INTERESTS. Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant that as of
the Effective DateoHhis Lease, (a) Landlord owns and holds fee title in and to the Building, the Shopping
Center, and the PropeUy enabling Landlord to enter into an enforceable lease with Tenant on the terms
and condit/ons cwta/wd herein; {b) fhe fwil pwp^y /dsn^/wf on ExMbitA contams ihe Premises
described in Section 1.1; (c) there are no encumbrances, liens, agreements, covenants in effect that
would limit Tenant's rights or augment Tenant's obligations hereunder; and Landlord further represents
and warrants that it will not enter into any such encumbrances, liens, agreements or covenants that do
so; (d) Landlord is unaware of any impending condemnation plans, proposed assessments or other
adverse conditions relating to the Property. Landlord will indemnify and hold Tenant harmless if any of
the foregoing representations and warranties prove to be untrue. The term "Landlord" as used herein

24 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation

RASraibucks Coffee C<ASBUX FORMSVTo Be Converted'Commercial Lease Form 07-2016 cltaa.doex Revisgd]dflt(



shall mean only the owner or owners, at the time in question, of the fee title (or a tenant's interest in a
ground lease) of the Premises. In the event of an assignment or transfer of this Lease by Landlord for
other than security purposes, Landlord shall cause its assignee or transferee to assume the provisions of
this Lease and deliver a new notice address to Tenant and Landlord shall deliver written notice of such
assignment or transfer and a copy of the effective instrument of transfer to Tenant within fifteen (15) days
after the date of transfer. Tenant shall be entitled to continue to pay rent and give all notices to Landlord
until Tenant has received the foregoing from Landlord and notice information from Landlord's transferee.
Landlord sdall deliver all funds in which Tenant has an interest, including but not limited to Tenant's
security deposit, if any, to Landlord's purchaser or assignee. From and after a sale of the Premises or the
Shopping Center, Landlord shall be released from all liability toward Tenant arising from this Lease
because of any act, occurrence or omission of Landlord's successors occurring after the transfer of
Landlord's interest in this Lease, provided Landlord's purchaser or assignee expressly assumes
Landlord's duties and covenants under this Lease. Nothing herein shall be deemed to relieve Landlord of
any liability for its acts, omissions or obligations occurring or accruing up to and including the date of such
transfer.

23.3 AUTHORIPi^. Each of Landlord and Tenant hereby represents and warrants that
this Lease has been duiy authorized, executed and defjvered by and on ite behaJf and constitutes such
party's valid and binding agreement in accordance with the terms hereof.

23.4 SEVERABILITY. The invalidity of any provision of this Lease, as determined by a
court of competent jurisdiction, shall in no way affect the validity of any other provision hereof.

23.5 TIME OF ESSENCE. Time is oTHie essence to fte parties executing this Lease.

23.6 INTERPRETATION. Article and section headings are not a part hereof and shall
not be used to interpret the meaning of this Lease. This Lease shall be interpreted in accordance with the
fair meaning of its words and both parties certify they either have been or have had the opportunity to be
represented by their own counsel and that they are familiar with the provisions of this Lease, which
provisions Have been fully negotiated, and agree that the provisions hereof are not to be construed either
for or against either party as the drafting party.

23,7__INCQRPORATION OF PRIOR AGREEMENTS: AMENDMENTS. This Lease
contains all agreements of the parties as of the date hereof with respect to any matter mentioned herein.
No prior agreement, correspondence or understanding pertaining to any such matter shall be effective to
interpret or modify the terms hereof. Oral commitments or promises are not enforceable and shall not be
binding or made part of this Lease. Any revisions or modifications to this Lease must be in writing and
mutually accepted by persons with full and complete authority to bind the party, as designated by this
Lease. 'Landlord waives the right to claim or assert the existence of any other modifications to this Lease.
This Lease may be modified only in writing, signed by the parties in interest, at the time of the
modification. Landlord specifica'Uy acknowledges that Tenants employees at the Premjses do not have
authority to modify this Lease or to waive Tenant's rights hereunder.

23.8 WAIVERS. No waiver by Landlord or Tenant of any provision hereof shall be
deemed a waiver of any other provision hereof or of any subsequent breach by Tenant or Landlord of the
same or any other provision. A party's consent to or approval of any act shall not be deemed to render
unnecessanf obtemmg such party s tono<&n\ to OT a'ppfm^ cA an^ sufei-Sieque^ at,\. No wawev slna« be
effective unless it is in writing, executed on behalf of Landlord or Tenant by the person to whom notices
are to be addressed.

23.9 RECORDING. Landlord or Tenant may record a short form or memorandum of
lease at the requesting party's expense, substantially in the form attached to this Lease as Exhibit^:. At
Landlord's or TenanFs'request, the parties shaff execute a memorandum of lease in recordableform
giving notice of such non-monetary terms as Tenant may reasonably request, including Tenant's
exclusivity and option rights. If Tenant elects to record a memorandum of lease and Landlord requests in

25 <^WVi S'teibuditS CoipwaAion

R:\Starbucks ColRc Co\SBUX FORMS\To Ue Converted\Commercial Lease l:onn 07-2016 dean.docx ReVISf



writing the removal of same upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall (at
Tenant's expense), remove the recorded memorandum from the title records.

23.10 HOLDING OVER. If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises or any part
thereof after the expiration of the Term, with or without the consent of Landlord, such occupancy shall be
a tenancy from month-to-month at a monthly rental in the amount of one and one half times the Base
Rent payable in the last month of the Term, plus all other charges payable hereunder, and upon the terms
hereof applicable to month-to-month tenancies.

23.11 CUMULATIVE REMEDIES. Except where otherwise expressly provided in this
Lease, no remedy or election hereunder shall be deemed exclusive, but shall, wherever possible, be
cumulative with all other remedies at law or in equity.

23.12 BINDING EFFECT: CHOICE OF LAW. This Lease shall be binding upon and
benefit the parties, their personal representatives, successors and assigns. This Lease shall be governed
by the laws of the state where the Premises are located.

23.13 SUBORDINATION. NONDISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT. This Lease shall
be subordinate to ati existing mortgages and/or deeds of trust affecting the Premises as of the Effective
Date of this Lease. Tenant may require thai Tenant, Landlord and Landlord's lender execute and record
a subordmation, 'nQndtetwbance and att.omment agreemeTA <"SMDA>") in recoTdabte fQrm reasonably
acceptable to Landlord's lender and Tenant. If requested by Landlord, Tenant agrees to subordinate
this Lease to the lien of any mortgage or deed of trust subsequently placed on the Property after the
Memorandum of Lease is recorded and to attorn to Landlord's successor following any foreclosure, sale
or transfer in lieu thereof; provided that the mortgages, transferee, purchaser, lessor or beneficiary
("Landlord's Successor") agrees in an SNDA in form and substance satisfactory to Tenant that
Tenant's use or possession of (he Premises shaff not be disturbecf, nor shaft f(s obffgatrons be enlarged or
its rights be modified by reason of any such transaction. Notwithstanding any foreclosure or sale under
any mortgage or deed of trust (or transfer by deed in lieu thereof), this Lease shall remain in full force and
effect.

23.14 LANDLORD'S ACCESS. Landlord and Landlord's agents shall have the right to
enter the Premises upon seventy-two (72) hours prior written notice for the purpose of inspecting the
same, showing the same to prospective purchasers or lenders, and making such repairs to the Building
as Landlord is obligated to make pursuant to the terms of this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in
the event of an emergency requiring Landlord's entry into the Premises, Landlord may give Tenant
shorter notice in any manner that is practicable under the circumstances. When entering or performing
any repair or other work in, on or around the Premises or the Shopping Center, Landlord, its agents,
employees anct/or contractors: (a) shall identify themselves to Tenant's personnel immediately upon
entering the Premises, and (b) shall not, in any way, affect, interrupt or interfere with Tenant's use,
business or operations on the Premises or obstruct the visibility of, or access to, the Premises. In the
event of interference with Tenant's operations in the Premises, the Base Rent and Annual Additional
Rent shall be equitably abated if the interference continues for more than twenty four (24) hours. In the
event such interference shall continue for longer than sue (6) months. Tenant shall have the opUon to
terminate this Lease or continue to operate with rent abatement after such interruption has ceased for a
time period equal to the duration of such interruption.

23.15 ONLY LANDLORD/TENANT RELATIONSHIP. Nothing contained in this Lease
shall be deemed or construed by the parties hereto or by any third party to create the relationship of
principal ancf agent, partnershfp, fo'snt ^•entwerorsny assoGtatwn between Landlord and Tenant,
Landlord and Tenant expressly agree that neither the method of computation of rent nor any act of the
parties hereto shall be deemed to create any relationship between Landlord and Tenant other than the
relationship of Landlord and Tenant.

23,16 ATTORNEYS' FEES. if either party brings an action or proceeding to enforce the
terms hereof or declare rights hereunder, the prevailing party in any such action, proceeding, trial or

26 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
RAJil.irbucks Coffee CclSBUX TORMSffo Be ConrertetftCominerciaI Lt-ase Fomi 07-20!6 dean.docx Revis<



appeal, shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys' fees to be paid by the losing party as fixed by the
court.

23J7 FORCE MAJEURE, In the event that either party shall be delayed or hindered in
or prevented from the performance of any covenant, agreement, work, service, or other act required
under this Lease to be performed by such party (a "Required Act"), and such delay or hindrance is due to
causes entirely beyond its control such as riots, insurrections, martial law, civil commotion, war, fire, flood,
earthquake, or other casualty or acts of God (a "Force Majeure Event"), then the performance of such
Required Act shall be excused for the period of delay, and the time period for performance of the
Required Act shall be extended by the same number of days in the period of delay. For purposes of this
Lease, the financial inability of Landlord or Tenant to perform any Required Act, including (without
limitation) failure to obtain adequate or other financing or Landlord's failure to become the fee simple
owner of the Property, shall not be deemed to constitute a Force Majeure Event. A Force Majeure Event
shall not be deemed to commence until ten (10) days before the date on which the party who asserts
some right, defense or remedy arising from or based upon such Force Majeure Event gives written notice
thereof to the other party. If abnormal adverse weather conditions are the basis for a claim for an
extension of time due to a Force Majeure Event, the written notice shall be accompanied by data
substantiating: (i) that the weather conditions were abnormal for the time and could not have been
reasonably anticipated and (ii). that the weather conditions complained of had a significant adverse effect
on the performance of a Required Act. To establish the extent of any delay to the performance of a
Required Act due to ab'normal adwise wea^hw, a tompanson wU be •made o^ fri& 'weather for the Ume o<
performance of the Required Act with the average of the preceding ten (10) years climatic range based
on the National Weather Service statistics for the nearest weather reporting station to the Premises. No
extension of time for or excuse for a delay in the performance of a Required Act will be granted for rain,
snow, wind, cold temperatures, flood or other natural phenomena of normal intensity for the locality where
the Premises are located.

23.18 CONFIDENTIALITY OF LEASE. From and after the date (ease negotiations were
entered into and throughout the Term of this Lease, the parties shall not disclose any of the terms,
covenants, conditions or agreements set forth in the letters of intent or in this Lease or any amendments
hereto, nor provide such correspondence, this Lease, any amendments hereto or any copies of the same,
nor any other information (oral, written or electronic) which is communicated by or on behalf of Tenant or
on behalf of Landlord relating to Tenant's proposed development of the Premises (including, without
limitation, architectural plans, specifications, site plans and drawings) or Tenant's business, to any person
including, without limitation, any brokers, any other tenants in the Shopping Center or any affiliates,
agents or employees of such tenants or brokers except as set forth herein, without Tenant's written
consent or except as ordered by a court with appropriate authority provided Landlord seeks available
protective orders. Landlord hereby acknowledges that the disclosure of the foregoing to any third party
wouSd cause material damage to Tenant, and LsndJord agrees to indemnify, save and haJd Tenant
harmless from and against any and all damages suffered by Tenant which are attributable to any
disclosure by Landlord in violation of the terms of this provision. Notwithstanding the foregoing. Landlord
may disclose the terms of this Lease to those of its partners, employees, consultants, attorneys,
accountants, current or potential mortgagees, lenders or purchasers of the Property who agree to be
bound by the terms of this Section and Tenant may disclose the terms of this Lease to those of its
partners, employees, consultants, attorneys, accountante and GUTrent or potential tenders, assigns or
subtenants who agree to be so bound.

23.19 BROKERS. Landlord agrees to pay a brokerage commission to Atlantic Retail
Properties for services provided in connection with this Lease in accordance with the terms of a separate
commission agreement. Except as specifically identified in this Section, Landlord and Tenant each
represent to the other (hat they have no( cfeaft, cfirecffy or indirectfy in connection w«h fhe teasing of the
Premises, with any other broker or person entitled to claim a commission or leasing fe^es, In no event
may this Lease be construed to create any express or implied obligation on the part of Tenant to perform
this Lease on behalf of any broker (or any person claiming a commission or leasing fee) as primary
obligee or as a third party beneficiary. Landlord and Tenant each shall indemnify and hold each other
harmless from any loss, liability, damage, or expense (including without limitation reasonable attorneys'

27 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
RAStarbucks Coffee Co\SBUX I'ORMSVTo Be Converted\Commen:ial Lease Form 07-2016 dwn.docx Revii



fees) arising from any claim for a commission or leasing fee arising out of this transaction made by any
unidentified broker or other person with whom such party has dealt.

23.20 CONSENTS. Whenever (he right of approvaf or consent te given to Q party
pursuant to this Lease, that party shall not unreasonably withhold, condition or delay its consent unless
this Lease expressly provides otherwise,

23.21 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. With respect to any litigation arising out of or in
connection with this Lease, Landlord and Tenant hereby expressly waive the right to a trial by jury.

23.22 OTHER STORES. Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, under
no circumstances do the parties to this Lease intend to limit or otherwise affect in any way the ability or
right of Tenant and Tenant's affiliates to open, operate, merchandise or close any stores anywhere,
regardless of the proximity to the Premises or the potential or actual effect of the opening, operation,
merchandising or closing of such stores, and further regardless of any obligations or rights based on the
sales generated at the Premises expressly set forth in this Lease. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the parties confirm that neither Tenant nor its affiliates are subject to a so-called "opening
covenant", "continuous operation clause", 'operating covenant",'"radius restriction" or similar limitation in
favor of Landlord or its affiliates or other tenants in the Shopping Center.

24. QUIET ENJOYMENT. Without limiting any riahts Tenant may have by statute or
common law. Landlord covenants and agrees that, so long as this Lease is in full force and effect, Tenant
shall lawfully and quietly hold, occupy and enjoy the Premises during the Term of this Lease without
disturbance by Landlord or by any person having title paramount to Landlord's titte or by any person
claiming through or under Landlord.

25. NOTICES. Whenever a (H-ovision is made under this Lease for any demand, notice or
declaration of any kind (even if the provision does not expressly require notice in writing), or where it is
deemed desirable or necessary by either party to give or serve any such notice, demand or declaration to
the other party, it shall be in writing and served either personally or sent by United States mail, certified,
postage prepaid, or by pre-paid nationally recognized overnight courier service, addressed at the
addresses set forth below or at such address as either party may advise the other from time to time. In
the event a party Tetusesto accept de'nveTy of a propeTYy issued ncAice, tiie date of rejeclion shall be
deemed the date notice has been received. Any such notice, demand or declaration which does not
comply with the foregoing requirements above shall be ineffective for purposes of this Lease.

To Landlord at; 7 River Street LLC
Attention: Warren Kelly
10PerkinsRoad
Middleton,MA01949
Phone: 978.423-3843

To Tenant at:

by mail at:

or by overnight delivery to:

Starbucks Corporation
Attn: Property Management Department
RE: Starbucks Coffee Company Store iB^YfyW^

Mailstop S-RE3

P.O. Box 34067
Seattle, WA 98124-1067

2401 Utah Avenue South, Suite 800
Seattle, WA 98134
Phone: (206) 447-1575

28
R:\Staibucks Coffee Co\SBUX l:QHMS\'l'o Be ConvertedVCommerdal LL'aseFomi 07-2016 cleun.tlocx

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation

R9VWffiB3CKS



Notices, demands, or declarations given under this Lease will be deemed to have been given when
received or when receipt is refused.

Landlord shall send a duplicate copy of any notice given under Article 14 to the attention of the Law and
Corporate Affairs Department at the same address, Mailstop S-LA1.

26. EXHIBITS. The following exhibits are attached to this Lease and by this reference are
incorporated herein:

Exhibit A - Legal Description
ExWitait B -Slnoppmg CenterS'rte Plan tdenVrtying PTem'ises
Exhibit B-1 - Diagram of Premises, Drive-Through Lanes, Parking, Trash Locations

and Outdoor Seating Area
Exhibit B-2 - Signage
Exhibit C - Construction Requirements
Exhibit D - Delivery of Possession Letter
Exhibit E - Landlord Work Modification Letter
Exhibit F - Date Certificate
Exhibit G - Existing Exctusives
Exhibit H - Deleted
Exhibit I- Deleted
Exhibit J - Deleted
Exhibit K- Deleted
Exhibit L - Memorandum of Lease

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease as of the date first above written.

LANDLORD:

7 RIVER STREET, LLC
a Massachusett§Jtftift§a liability company

Landlord's Federal Tax Identification
Number: o% -^^'^3cP/

TENANT:

STARBUCKS CORPORATION,
a Washington COQ;

vice president

29
RASlnrbucks Coffee Co\SBUX FQRMS\To Be ConveneACummcrcial 1-easc Form 07-2Ql(i clean.dacx

© 2001 Star&ucks Corporation
Revis



) ss.

STATE OF _^2^_)

COUNPi'OF &i^ !

On this ^ day of CA/yii 20 /(fc before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for the ^<TfW7 of _(mi'?i^- ' , duly comnu.ssiQned and sworn-, personally appeared

(j^^(rt,nHz.lTi
_, the

Instrument to be the
free and voluntary act and deed of said L U— for the uses and purposes therein mentioned and on
oath stated that he/she is authorized to execute said instrument.

^-_ ,
(^^.(rt-nHz'lT^ _, to me known as, or providing $atisfactory evidence that he/she is the
'l-ms n&i^r"^ of 7 "7}^tr\S^r^ L.L.C-' . a /i'm/^ /Mi'^ 6(/h.hSou. \

i^LC-v __ that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the'saiel-ins

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year in this certificate above
written.

^yv^</t-^— _ (S-
NOTARY PUBLIC mind for the ^//fof
^WA- realms at _^/^ ^r^T^, UJ&,-'k^^ , -
l(ly commission-^xpires _S> ^/ /^&^S_
Print Name: "h^mA//2. 'V^rw-&n

30 ©2001 Starbucks Corporation
R:\Starbucks Coffee Cu\SHUX FQRMSVfo Be ConvertuACommeroial 1-cnse Fom 07-2016 duan.dacx ReviSgd^filj



STATE OF WASHINGTON )
ss.

COUNTY OF KING )

On thiso-W 'day of Apri! 2018 , before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared Ray Silverstein , to
me known to be the vice president _. of STARBUCKS CORPORATION, a Washington
corporation, the corporation that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the said
instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said corporation for the uses and purposes
therein mentioned, and on oath stated that he is authorized to execute said instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seapte^etp affixed the day and year this certificate above written.

'^ffU^Cl^hS^/l
NOTARY PUBLIC, in an'd for the State

astiington, residing at Seattle, WA
Commission expires: 02/19/2022
Print Name: Sarah C VanVlietrT<PMTi

\^\ ^^ /gi%^"^B9^//'^'^I'l"11"^*^^0-?
X°^S€^

31 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation

R:\Starbucks Coffee CdiSBUX FORMS\To Be ConvcrtedlCoinroereia] [.ease h"orm07-20l6clean.docx Revis<



EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

The land with the buildings thereon situated in Middleton, Essex County, MA and being shown as Lot 32
on a pfan prepared for P.T.S. Enterprises as drawn by Dana F. PerKins, [nc. d/E>/a Robert E. Anderson,
Reg. Prof. Engineers and Land Surveyors, with said plan recorded with Essex South District Registry of
Deeds at Plan Book 355. Plan 32 (the "Plan").

Containing approximately 3.05 acres as shown on the above-mentioned Plan,

For title reference see Deed recorded with said Registry of Deeds in Book 35686, Page 356.

A-1 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
Revised 0(



EXHIBIT B

SHOPPING CENTER SITE PLAN IDENTIFYING PREMISES

'SL.
7~C

frH3AnOD -133UA6 NIW Hin08 •̂u

Exh. B, Page 1

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation
Revised OgopARBUCKS



EXHIBIT B

SHOPPING CENTER SITE PLAN IDENTIFYING PREMISES

Exh. B, Page 2

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation

RevisedcSA®CKS



EXHIBIT B-1

DIAGRAM OF PREMISES. DRIVE THROUGH LANES, PARKING.'TRASH ENCLOSURES AND
OUTDOOR SEATING

~-c^

ftt ainoy -i33Uia NIW Hinos

Exh. B-1, Page 1

I
©2001 Starbucks Corporation

Revised Of



EXHIBIT B.1

DIAGRAM OF PREMISES, DRIVE THROUGH LANES. PARKING, TRASH ENCLOSURES AND
OUTDOOR SEATING

E.xh.B-1,Page2

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation

Rev'sedo§TA™CKS



m
x
3-

CD
M
-D
M

U3
0)

STARBUCJtS
QStQ

co

0
z
>
0
m

s
a:
co
—I

03
M



EXHIBIT B-2

SIGNAGE

18" CHANNEL LETTERS - REMOTE
SBC.S11395-SB
Qty.2

©

FionlWw

Scalo: 3/8'= l • (H xl 7 Paper)

SPECIFICATIONS
A Internally iluminated ehannellettersfo be fabricated from .040/3003

aluminum with pre-painted White interiors and painted satin finish Black .
potyurethane exteriors. Letter backs to be aluminum
pop-riveted to sidewalb and seated.

B Faces to ba 3/16" (5mm) White actylfc with 1 • (25mm) Black trimcap
retainer edghg. Center of faces to be first surface 3M Scotchcal
#3630-76 Holly Green vhyt with White show-through sa-alch borders.

C Letters iluminated wl "LumificiBnt t-ED's w/remote power supply.

D Letters to be installed flush to wall.

Bth.B-2,Page2

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation

Rev'se<lo§TAmCKS



Q§ s

mx
03
_^

i<a
CD
u>

M00
w
s-

s) r1&IIi^r§
I.

|OS o'
iC5 ="
JO
]??
icn

I_LJ|!^

s-i.

--A-^l_^te.

R
<ft
m

u>

s
IS

te
1@

Crt
0
z
>
n
m

mX
ac
ro
=t
0°
N



E"

ro
M
.5'
%
-1^

^
I

I0
0

I
u»

s
to
•A
A••

s w
0
z
>
0
m

m
x
3:
03
-4

d
IM



mx
a?
^
s
1
yi

@

0̂
co
s

n£. "yCrt

J?11?
.°?3§ 3

(§§'

,!s5

'.

g B B3*i
Sljfinijfi5
'w'

•

??^ »
3?!li i*lilP~ I
'3-2??

s
co
-f

s



m
x

00
M

r
<Q
(D
en

@

0̂
0)
s

v ?ic C
s. ".
fC' V-

2. <"
0i°li

^i.
02 o'
iCE) =>
!o
1^

PRE-MENU BOARD - FREE3TANMNG
a,.i

G

4EL WENU .FREEST^MEMa oos a OCB cmi POST

|tun«*fmig«u

w9"i

*<felu<uwaM-tium».t»t'i-"»nfcart

DTE . PHE-MENU ffiEESrAW)ING
faa^vr'nwfMwj

S-4^W J ^ 'i:

^ss-.^-..— —^ ^ ^

(HE .no* coOTnct noawinna
*.w"Tpwr—^rt

UuSou

•a!uuc*Ht)»<ia»"-»*iar i*> •"•*<"

DTE-MENU 5 PANEL FREESTANDING

ftChT-rtCr

wuctoaittLiJtuinmm



m
x

OD
M
-D

so
<a
CD
-^

@
s
0
Crt
s

i?l
II.
s ^
^0

0ii81\cs ='
10

io§,

a?

ẑ
:>
5?
m

HI
xz
03
_j

co
^

So")



31
£

EXHIBIT B-2

SIGNAGE

j!iii all

Sffl

in
LU

ĥ-
03

E
0
V)

CM
csi

<
2

I
Q
Q

lli
IL IliijI!Ui

S t
iI"911!?ta^Esi*

00

Exh. B-2, Page 8

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation

Revised(^™CKS



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

LANDLORD WORKLETTER

EXHIBIT C-l
TENANT'S DRIVE-THRU CONSTRUCTION REO.UIREMEMTS

srre^fAME:

.S1TU ADDRESS:

TIA:

MIUCLETON.MA

aiS-MAINSTKtBT

sio,<oo

1. Landlord Construction

Tenant has provided Landlord with Tenant's Requirements for Landlord Workletter, which is a
package of Information, that Includes Tenant's standards, specifications and other details or

documents pertaining to Landlord's Work (deflned be(aw) in the leased premises (the "Tenant's
Requirements"!. Additionally Landlord wi!l be required to coordinate certain aspects of the work
with Tenant and/orTenant Requirements Document as defined In this Workletter.

Landlord will provide the Tenant with a copy of Landlord's construction schedule, mduding the
name, phone number and address of Landlord's contractor and project manager, and copies ot

all Tenant and governmentally approved landlord's Plans (as defined In the Lease, or. If not
defined iflthelewe, "taRd?ord*s Plans'* ?<H mean the TertantandgotWftmeiTtirf^y approved plans

for Landlord's configuration of the leased premises and any other portions of the building and
the shopping center of which such leased premises are a part, coordination of Landlord's Work,
Tenant's drive-through facility, if any, and the parking area, If any), and copies of all changes to
such Plans as shall have been approved by Tenant. The foregoing shall be provided to Tenant by
the delivery date for such items as set forth ta the tea&a ^w, ? no such <tel?»w/ date (& sat forth
in the lease, at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the Scheduled Delivery Date as
defined in the Lease, or, tf the Scheduled Delivery Date is not defined In the lease, the date set

forth In Landlord's construction schedule for completion of all Landlord's Work, which date shall
be referred to herein as the "Scheduled Delivery Date". The construction schedule must include

completion dates for key construction milestones, which milestones shall include completion of

access/egress, completion of Tenant parking field, tnstoHation of permanent utility services, and

a Certificate of Occupancy for the building and the shopping center of which the leased premises
are a part, all of which must occur prior to the Scheduled Delivery Bate,

The Tenant's Requirements, <ogather with the provisions of the Lease governing Landlord's

Work, this Landlord's Workletter, and the Landtotd's Plans, ate retened to hsreln, collectively,

as the "Landford's Work Documents."

If not otherwise deilned or expressly described in the Lease, "Landlord's Work" shall mean all
Items described in the Landlord's Work Documents and any work necessary to bring the leased
premises and the building and the shopping center of which the leased premises are a part, in
each case, ln? tfte cond^ton re^ufr-tfd wder the tandtord's Wari; Oocuments; together with

^

C-1 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
RevisedogWBICKS



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

;S S'l.\;';i":i:St"Ot'K-:-•"f.'MC-AMY I <i!,ii,n.. "Vinld^ f.T

obtaining, at Landlord's sole cost, al) approvals to finalize a master sign program (if required or
necessary) acceptable to Tenant by the date that Landlord delivers Landlord's Plans to Tenant;

together with. If applicable to the leased premises, obtaining, at landlord's sole cost, ati permlis
and/or government approvals for the construction and operation of Tenant's drive-through
facility.

landtord's Work shall be compteted in compliance with the Landlord's Work Documents,

standard construction practices, and all applicable Federal, Stale and local laws, rules, codes and
regulations. Landlord shall provide Tenant with a weekly construction status report with digital
progress photos. During construction of all Landlord's Work, Tenant's project manager, or its

designated representative, may enter upon (he leased premises and the building and the
shopping center of which the teased prsmteei are a part to inspect progress, tafce pragfess
photos, and to determine If Landlord's Work is being completed in accordance with the
description of Landlord's Work and the Landlord's Work Documents. Upon the completion of

landtord'sWork, landlord shall prwldeTenant with completed as-buihs for the leased premises.

2. Parties Qblieaticn.s upon Delivery and possession

landlord shall notify Tenant In writing at least ten (10) days (if not otherwise set forth in the
Lease) prior to the date that landlord anticipates that the leased premises will be ready far
Tenant's occupancy and Tenant shall arrange promptly to inspect the leased premises to

determine whether Landlord's Wo«k has been completed In accordance ^f^f'rth the Landtord's Work

Dacuments. At the time of Tenant's inspection. Landlord shall demonstrate that all of Landlord's
Work and aH mechanfcaf systems of the feased premises are (n good worfifng order; Drovided,
however, that If electrical service is not connected at the time of Tenant's inspection, then,

notwithstanding anything to the contrary In any other Landlord's Work Documents, Tenant's
inspection shall not be deemed complete and Landlord shall not be deemed to have satisfied all
conditions to the delivery of the leased premises until such electrical servics ts completed and

Landlord shall have datnonstiatedthat all of Laiullord'sWttTkthatcequli&s cwv.pltt.t.yd elecutail

service is In good working ordeir, including, without limitation, HVAC, the Drive Thru Window, if

applicable, and rooftop fan,

Upon completion of Tenant's Inspections, Tenant shall deliverto Landlord a written punch list of

alt Incomplete or faulty Items of construction or mechanical installation, and any necessary
mechamcaj aditistments and fwfish wofSc iweded to brSffg the teased pfwnfses and Hie hulhiing

and the shopping center of which the teased premises are a part Into the condition required by
the Landlord's Work Documents. Except as expressly provided to the contrary in the lease,

Landlord shaft repair all punch list items as a condition to Tenant's acceptance of the leased
premises, or if Tenant chooses to accept delivery of the teased premfses prior to completion,
within fourteen (14) days of the date Tenant delivers the punchlbt to Landlord» unless another
date is specifted in the Lease. Upon Tenant's acceptance of delivery of possession of the
Premises, Landlord and Tenant shall execute the delivery of possession form in accordance with

the Lease or a written acknowledgement of delivery and acceptance If a delivery of possession

form is not a part of the Lease.

If on the Scheduled Delivery Date^ leased premises and the bulletin^ of which the leased premises
are a part are not in the coi]dltlon required by the Landlord's Work Documents, and/or if Landlord

^) Datd//lT//} Tenant IniUals ^ Date l^fpU. Initials.

Page 2 of 10

C-2 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
Revised(TORm<s



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

l.l Afiiit l'.Kii I'.'Off-M: i:f:»M^;i;-}-: i..)»(ilyisi Wo;t; I...-,;.

fails to repair all punch ti$t items at the time and In the manner described In the preceding
paragraph, and ?, In ^thercase,Tenant elects to accept possession ot the leased premises, then,
In addition to any remedy provided In <he Lease and without limitation thereof, and except as

expressly provided to the contrary in the Lease/ Tenant is hereby authorized to complete all or
any portion of the outstanding Landlord's Work and/or punchiist Items necessaiy to bring the
leased premises Into the required condition and Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for the actual
cost of such work plus an admtnistratjvfi swcharge of fifteen pereent (35%) or the amounl-

otherwise due Tenant, to compensate Tenant for its employees' time, within thirty (30) days of
receipt of an Invoice for such sums. Landlord agrees that the Tenant's and Its contractor's

determination of the scope of all work that Is necessary to bring the leased premises into the

required conditton Is deemed appropriate and the cost thereof plus the surcharge referred to

above shall be final and binding on landlord. If Landlord does not reimburse Tenant as required
by this Landlord Workletter then in addition to any remedy provided In the Lease and without
limitation thereof, Tenant may offset such sum against the monthly base rent and all other
charges payable by Tenant under the (.ease until such sum has been fully recouped. Nothing
herein shaB limit or impair any af Tenants rightsand remedies set forth in the Lease or Landlord's
obligations thereunder, including, without limitation. requirements for the condition of the

(eased premtstfs and (he fatrifcdng and the shopping center of whteh the teased premfscs arc a

part and Landloid's obligation to construct and complete all Landlord's Work.

3. Incorporation With lease

This landlord Worktetter Is attached to and forms a part of the Lease and is Intended by the
landlord and Tenant to be Interpreted In all respects In a manner that Is consistent with the
terms, conditions and provisions of such Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the expres$

terms, conditions and provisions of the Lease (Including, without limitation, those terms,

condiUans and provisions of the Lease, if any, gowning deliver/ dates and the rights and
obligations of the parties In the event that on the Scheduled Delivery Date, the premises are not
delivered to Tenant In the required^conditlon} shall control In the event of any conflict or
inconsistency between the express terms, condltfans and provfstons of the Lease and thts
Landlord Woiktetter.

EXHIBIT C-2

DESCRIPTION OF LANDLORD WORK

IL Initials IA^-^ Date lll^Ill Tenant Initials ^<-<--" Date

page 3 o(10

C-3 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
Revisedo^mcKs



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

s i ,\» iSI.K't.s n.>|:».i: t '.;(..>i\-lpAf.;-' l.irnjii'fn y/'^ik i.c<i<->

NEW AND/OR EXISTING CONSTRUCTION

STANDARD DRTVE. THRU COMPONENTS

^t^^
icategorB

Furnish and inflaH one domestic water (DW] service aiz<d per local codg (minimum I '/&"}, and a
meter initependenrty designated for Tenant's use. stulbed via copper piping into the Pircmises with
shut cff'vstyc in a Jotarion jipproved ty Tenani.

014g Domestic
Water

Dtsa'JbuiIon

Penntt and distribute all ondtr-slab domestic water tints per Tenant's undtr-sleb penetration drawing?
ond/or Tenant Rcquirtments Document, Notify Tenant a minimum of two weeks prior tu slab pour far
cronlinaiton.

The DW service mud be capable of providing a minimum optrating How rate efSO gallons per
intnuie [gpm]; at a minimum opejBt'tng pressure of 50 psig and a maximum of 80 psig dynamic
ymsaraat all ttow. W Bow nto w ptisswfc lamn OTiKifciwii, Lonttoid AuU tingimcr, fumiih tnd

install a booster pump In a location agreed upon with theTaiart.

Fumtsh and tmtall an approved, tested and certlfled teckflow prevention osscmbly, if required by
applicable codes, in o location jdcotified on ttie landlord's coasttuctiofl documents. Landlord sliall

. select backflow prewntion BsscnAly wifli a maKiraum water pressure drop of 13 psl^at 50 gpm.

tfpcnnanenl utility acrvicc is nut available at Ac Schsduled Delivery Date as dtflned In the tease,
(eaiponuy servfce must de providMf by Landfoid. Pcnnanont watet acTVlca miut be (mv{dcd by no
Idler (tuui two (2) wealu into Tenant's ccusuuctton in(hc spaM,

Bldg Elec&icnl
Distribution

Bldg Electrical
Panels

Provktc ft ssparatety mctercd utility, including the euirent traitsfonner (CTj Mode, mtier (Mse,
distribution panel, meter, properly siad conduit and property stzed tcad wirt from the utility service
point to Tenant's main electrical service panel. Location of the switch Bear shall b* EpeoiHod by (ha
TtnanL

Parniit and disttibutts all under-slab eltttrical dhtributton Itnci ptf Tenani's undcr-slab penetralion
drawings anil/OfOonslruction documents. Nodfy Teiuni a minimum of two weeks prior to slab pour

foreoflrA'nnlign,__._.^__.._._. ^ . _. .,

Service drop from the utility company shall be a minimum of 400 amps, 120/208 wit 3 ptwo A wto
power service connected toTenant's main electrical puiel. If only 120040 Volt strvice i» available,
adviss Tenant immediaKly.

irpcntituiunt electrical service is noi available at the SchtddcdDetlvery Daic as defined in ttel68ifl,
lemporoiy service must ba provldtd by Ltmdbrd. Pcnnancnt Electrical aervEce must be piovIdNl by
no later than two (2) wwks into Tenant^ constiuction In the spice.

Fumnh »nd instal] hvo (2) each •Square-D1 nr equal (wifli prior e()(>roVBl by Tenant) WBMA PB1.
Type t, 400 Amp rated panels with locbibie, hinaeti door-m-dcor eonstraction, Main pnnets shall
include fecd-thru lugs to serve dawnsnrcam panel.

Mitin panels stall Include fced-thru lugs to ssrve downsneam pand.

All panels shall be mounted flush with wall, in a location idtntiRcd by tiis Tenant.

Each elsctrlcal panel ihall ba fumislied with 42 poles and breakers (GPI if rode requtics) per Tenant's
construction documents and panel schedule.

Punch shall have Amps Inturupting Cuncnt (AIC) rrtmg iufRticnl to wilhsland avuilublc fautt
current al the electricat senice entry.

Furntth and inrtall pole lights in the paricing !ol and at sile inpess and tyw to pTOvide » minimum
llahtSng level of 1.5 foot candles at gtada.

LL initials \\]^y Date Tenant Initials^. _Date. .7

Page 4 of 10

C-4 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
Revised CT^TOKS



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

< I '\KtSHC t.;i C^tr|:£ i:(.ti\.!r,M-.jY L,'.r,,-|ti:n! \';'or!-. Lrllci

STANDAftD DRTVB - TWtU COMPONEN'ra

Bldg Exterior
and Sits
Lighting

Any parking lot lighting dedicated to Tenant occupancy shall require conduit and win Gtub-up to
within five feet (5") of the buildina pad at the rearseivice doorforintefiiation wilfa Tenant's liehting
control system.

Fumisti and install exterioi li^iling ftxturcs to provide ev«a iliummationi with no daik oreas and light
levels per Tenant Requirements Document

Anywmriar fiuiMng K&farfng dedicated (o Yteiaw occupancy iftaff requfic controtwilfiilt TtnaitlS
space.

Prnvtrte batlciy back-up within exterior building tight fiitture* percodt to provide omcrgenfty
ilhimt'iution of the exterior cgrcss discharge,

Bldg Fire
! Alarm

BklgFire
? Fmtectma

BldgOM
Dishibutlon

If required by applicable codes (br Ttnanfs ua. Permit, fumtsh and Install B building moniioring and I
fire protection atsrm fn Tenani's space.

The system mast be programmed, functional and tied into thcliuilding smoke detectors. Londlord
shall proviile centrcl station nionitoruig,

frovlde all coordination, tesling and [nspecdons for a fidly (tmctianal ntc alann system abls to obtnm
Tenant's teaporaiy or permfUtent CwtHicale of Occupancy and to meet Tenant's opening sebedule.

Ifrequired. pamit. funrishand install a primaiy fire sprinkler Qistem tnTenant*!i spnce. Include an
qstem oompoirente, wA the cxwptwn ofntotfifieatwtu tttquimd (o acwitimodato Tenant's design.

System must bsprcaure (Btcd, fully operational, inspected and approvtd by any local aaeireies
j havingjuriidiction.

Furnish and install one &as lini? to n aeparate nitlw per Tenant Requiieinentii DocnmBnt,

Bldg Oypsum
1 Wall Boari

Provide demised and perimeter walls finished (a tavel 4 finish (him floor to undereide of roof deok
with mkilmum 5/8" gypsum wall board (GWB) per Tenuit Retiulremcnis DocBment. DcmiMng wails
to be fire rated if required by local jurisdiction.

OW8 wall lUBembllo shall be ihmlated and fiamed. Tenant's wait snte shall tw |irovided wilh (3WB;
fire (ap<d and bedded, plumb and square, sandsd and primed, ready to accept Tenant^ wall flniahss
Itonl floor to unders'tde ofioof deck per Tenant Reqtiiremenis Document.

j Gypmm wall board (OWB) wall asscmbKcs sliall be tramed with 6" minimum nominaL ?.0 gauge
studs -16" o.c.> insulated (R-19)and GWB. !

J Tenanrt wall side shall be provided with 5/8" Type "X" OWB; fice taped and bedded, plumb end ;
syistt, ready for Tenant wall ffnlshcs ftom floor to undersEdccftuOfdisck. Oypsuro bosnl wall
system to meet the I hr. or2 hr. fire rating, pei applicable cod®,

Seal top and bottom joists, and dt penttrations atrttfiht with projxrly rated fire stoppae matoriul es |

i per applicable codes- ___^
If required by local jurisdictions and if necessary 10 secure Tenant's ccrtiHcitc of occu])8ney, tilt
Land'loid shall complete the asscmtoly by (inisliing UB opposit.e side of the wall according to the
appticable code.

Seal around Joists and all pcnetraitons sirtlghl.wiih properly rated fire slapplna niaterttth BS requlnBd. ;

LL Initials.

Ifrequiicd by Local Jiuisdiction to secure Tcnanft CertiftcateofOceupuicy. Landlord shall complete
J (Ac a^mWy 6y fimshK^tho^pposfta^ tfom tits TenBnfs space.

All CMU walls must be fuired-out, insulated ad GWB finished in accordance with Tenant's
Requirements Document.

» Luidlorisliallcootdinaiethe inslatlation offiWB with TcnnnintwallrMigbm.

Tenant Initials <^L__Dab\V Date 1
Page 5 of 10

C-5 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
Revised ^mCKS



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

<! f'MWi •J» IXV^i <0;-;U'AMV l.,)s!'l!..;nl 'A'urk L::(iei

STANDARD ORWR -TWRU COMPONENTS

BtdgHVAC j Famnh and install ati rigid ductwork per Tenant's HVACAaunngsand/orconstmrtion documents,
Ductvwric s sized at a minimum 12" In (tiametw (I ] 3sq.m cross section area) or greater m sin, fnctuding but not

limittd to the main HVAC service (ronk linss. mate-up air (MUA) and fresh air intaka (PAI). Terant
will furnish and tnsialt ati remaining duawork and difliucra.

LanSsTS h to ^i^^HVAC^Gsm^w/htStSeSectcrswd Itst ^ilrift"sj^atljW';l)My« cc>d±_J

Fumuh and install inotoruttd Uampcis per Tenant Rt^uiKHiBnts DOCUHIBIII. I

Finnish and install all tcstroora exhaust fans and curt»-_ _.^_^.^...^_.„___._.J

Ptoperly sul around any and all penetrations, including but not limited to, roof or exterior wall
j penetrations.

Fwnish uvjt mtSaU HVAC System feriudift& HV^C UnU®. dl atectmtl «wweti»&, au
connections and tunporary thennoitats/UVAC controls in accordance with Tenant Rtquiremems
Document and Sizing and Efficiency Malrix.

Provide outside air in accordance with Tenant Requirements Document,

BUtgHVAC ';
System |

StructUTal fiBppnrt for Ac HVAC System shall te provided, mcluding ati etmctural tnglnaering design
and permitting.

Fumuh minimum of two (2) HVAC units -(1) •7,5 ton R.TU to 5ttvl« thft Clffi/rctllt area and (t) 5
ton RTU (o senict the back bar and vwkroom area. If store Is larsw than 1^01) I.A HVAC
capacity not to be len Ihaa I ton per 120 operafate and one year manufacturer's wairanty Ehdll be
supplledftrflpsferred to Tenant. ___^^ ____ __|

HVAC Unit(a) shBlt be (wtcd en'd openiblo. Cowlinatc inittal mBthanlial stort-up and balaneing per
manufactuKt's rcCTmmro(l»tion and providg Ttnant with validation/documentalion ofMechanical
start-up t$ needed to support TenanrsComffilssforiing requitements.

Tfccmostats/HVAC controls shall comply with Tenant's conslmction documenls and any/all code
requirements; minimum one (1) (harmostat (1) C02 monitor {nndio/vitua)) for each uatt with nmaa
sensors to be kaated acoording to the Tenant's conslnietton documents.

BIdgLEED
Ceitified
Building

Ifroof-top uniUacEJieleuinot-te installed, the Landlord dtdll ptovldea ehiihat water (CEIWS/R) loop
and hat water (HWS/R) loop system with water supply (uid return line stubbed into tli» Premises.
Chilled and hot water must he supplied 24 houn per day, 36S dayt pBT year. Cliilicd andhcaced wler
How and tcmpcratnre requkemcnte shall be coacdmatwl wtlh Tenant's MEP consultaat and shall bt
suflicient loseivice spaes u required, System to include all air handling equipmeat and VAV boKes
perTtnant's ccnsluction documenfe. Landtoni does not htend to install (ppf (MI unite.

Provide fempqrary heat to the premises ifspsce is nottempatd at start orconstniciionordelivcry.

Provide ippropriate tcpair and mahtenance documentation fnctudiogtnitnot limited to unit
specIGcations.'operations manual, testing and btlaaciag doeumCTtotion and eqidpmcnt snisl number. |

if.[,e^(<^^gi»tf^frw^iBswnrtrac(^a4i^B<eEWe^^tdiflgrI:iM«»tK'^^
pravide<ert^atte^^unwiitet^to-T<inmtrpw-Si.tibuckt-liEEDProeiaifrDoB»B«WT

T<iwit^to^t&iiMthi^acuBienMk»ifc-iR<<njunvtion^-itb^enants<tmUE4Mo6um^(i(^^
suppo(^f^n?EWWunii?®tHti{4TO0<CT^catteu-^gfBm^i<b^

B14s^ut"t>!iia i
Futures ;

Provide iscesstd lockablB atteriorlinsa Uhfe) ptr StaAuaks cdtflria. I
Furnish and install grease interceptor/Bease trap sized and locatod pet TBiart's criteria and for in
ftccordanw wHhJurisdictional water/waslc nianBgcmcnt board,

Furnish and Inslatl enclosed map sink ifrequitedby tocalcotto.^ ^_ _.^......_ -,„ _ _I

]flio» bib(s) aie (fcdfcated to Tenant. Landlord shall ran waterusaee IteoufihTtnafits water meter. I

LL Initials _|j^_-Date. Tenant Initials Cu^..Oate. n
Pagti 6 of 10

C-6 © 2001 Sfarbucfcs Corporation

RWI"d<§iM3cKs



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

M.At'muo.:; coff.'tf. t':<)i!.if',ii'-/v i,U;f(l!'Fi' ?.nl,it-'H;;l

STANDARD DRIVE. THRU COMPONENTS

j BUg Rear
' Service Door

Furnish and instsll a comnwrclal grade 42" v 84" Bxierw Holtow Metal rear service door EaelBding }
dirashoM. wtather sripgine, dnoc sweep and drip eds.e in aecorriance vfSQf Tenani'S eriteriB.

i Fiumlsh ani{ insiali door hardware mtluijine alarmed pante hanlwtre, dnnr cfosore system. ISO degree
f peep hole and renovable lack cotc per Tenant's Ssav Door Hardware Spccificrtioas.

Bldgftoof

' Bldg Samtnry
Scwcr

! Distribution

; Bldg Selective
' Dcmolttion
i New

Combraction

i

\ Bldg Sioreftom
1 Windows and
I Doors

1 BldgSuMIwr

Provide all nccwaary penotratfoiu. curbl, slccpera, and/or pads to accommodtttc rooftop nniclmnwBl
equipment

Provtdo flashed roofpen«t(trtions for all Tenants veniing requirements per Tenant Ruiuirements
OOCUItttttt.

Feroilt and distribute all undcMlab anitary snvei wtste llnfts perTKiant's under-slab drawings and/or
cenmicluM) (fticumHils, anj ?n(s) per Tenant Requlreflients OoMroiwtf. Notify TeaaBta mjnimnm
of two weeks prior to slab pour for coordtnttion.

Provide a min. 4" sanitary sewer waste line to the premises dedicated to the tenants iw. Tht invert
elevation at tht fiirtheat point ofconneclion shall tw » mfnimum depth of2T' below lintshcd rioor (ff)
and moinlain a minimum slope of V'" ptr lincat foot (nd thall be per local code and vent to a tocolion
designated by Tenant Requirements DowmsnL

TeiiaM^aN&Httf^i^eatBHd^wosai-pfflpcf^i^iis^FemdiHind'htffwwded^fiorta
dwtflWtteih

?mBM5h,-?iriWw«^^l^i5eaff^^fiil«Mndteti^>g4fflp?Vflffl?t^^
op8rattefM)M"maii('A^>win»sriHoh^in^4Hrt^w^BHte^^WMrd«iMiA!i»nw5T«i<)ewoU^
sile^ofliM!mHSrtai>A(^mgrpart}tiwih-<w(tB^,-lluuM^
(Hiildin^w<fatioi?r«H!ru^rtHetHiirei^!^'!wltta<!-ceiiihi{b-plumMflgr»wfii^qulpBWttTB^^
wd6tmg-fu(tur>;s-BttdiMjnipffit)nl,.poi:Te!!anl-K((][((?Mmefii9^ocwnenfe _____j

^»^\RAttawaUm^iyai^ n(CTM,B<twtf«^ft^it^<B*(tUOT-^^ and inapi

{fiterior-»p(loC!W!hall-ba^aft4B-a-2b(e<tm<tl(inn'"onndition<

ftovtdc exterior dooK and w^ows In a^

Siorefront glflzine is to be clear, non-tinlcd. non-reflcctivc. double glazed and tow-e willi U-value
complying with the dppropriate cISmatio zone bi tlie hternBtlonal Energy Conservation Code (tCC) or
p» local Jutistticllond requitcineniii, wliichever is greater,

Lsndlard is to provide asmooth, (eve! snb-fl&or sfructurt "ifldyto rosdve Tedani's floorins. Landlord
shall coordmate with Tenant on typsof noorine Tenant will be inslBlling.

All sub-flooring must meet nppticable dead and live toad code requirements. Ati translltons shail

comply with accessibility ngMtaiums.

j Drive-Thm j
i Awningsand •
1 Canopies }

I

Rimtsh and (nstatl an exterior Bwning 01 canopy above the drivc-tftru wmdow BI a rafnfmum (10')
clear above UIB drive lane, witli a (St) projection fiom tfit banding pa- Tenant Redulremenu
Document. Juhjaijojmii^BaLu>B£a^=J^iadlBriJ^SB5^CTim?»nitwliu^
Wjlljmrstie 5* awiiott, ___._.„._„._.„_._____-._„-.„_„.—..

II Initials A/ Date! Tenant InttlalA _0ate 7
Page?of 10

C-7 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation

RWISM<MlCKS



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

SIAI;;UI;. >.?. •.,01 K-;: Hii\!tl.\HV I.Hiiil>;r.l*.'/Oi': l.,:U;..t

STANDARD DRIVE . THRU COMPONENTS

Drive-Thm
Electrical

Distribution

Fumi-sh and install a I and 1/2 inch conduit with pull string from Tenant's Electrical Panel stubbcd-up

to s location <tesignated by Tenant and/<» Tenant's Site Electrical Drawings, for its'Drive-Thfu
electrical sub-panel (akaOigital Control Box)

1) One (I) I" conduit to pre-ordermenu board to el«tiical panels
2> Ofie (I) I" conduit ftixn ihe menu board to cleciriea) panels,
3> O)B(I) 1" conduls ttnm OCS/spcaker board tothe electrical panels
4) Two (2) 1" conduits from OCS/speaker board to (Ie eitorlor of the drive ihru tiump.

out
5^0ne(l) I" conduit far Ihctfctector loop from the OSC/Spcaterhoud to the interior

of the drive thni bump-out

6) OBC (I) 1" conduit for the dstector loop from center of the <lrive rtnu window to Uie
interior of the drive Him bump-out,

7) One(l) r'conduit fTomaUdkcctiotUtl signs toel«»lcnlt»neis

(Note: up to 3 dirwtional si&ci$ can bo served by a single circuit.
Additional signs shall be provided with a naw dedieattd circuit and
conduit.

8) One (1) (" conduit from Tenant'silcdicitted inoniiiitent/pylon sign to

electrical panel.
9) T\ro(2) l"rare&iftB(o fee nm (bocg^ ftaitrfirim mtVto fiwtoffauJWagm (ho patio

for cmttys on tho patio scaling ana
Vtrify location* for stub up with Tenant's nprescBtativc,

IQ)Thrt6(3)spart I "conduits to bo mn through
foundation wall out rear of building, all conduits to be (enntn&led

_a^ov»cea(n^w^qcatwns_farstubu^wiA^

Driw-Thm
Component

Footings

•j-

I
I

.i

Driw-Thni
Conctcce Pad?

Purokh and install concrete footings and nnehnr hnlt.f RIT tlie following itemt:

1) Pre-McnuHoaid

2) Ord» Menu Board
3) Otdei Conflnnaliun Syswn (OCS) os SpeiAw Pusl, irjurKdicttonally ceiuired.

4) Dircctionat Signal
5) CtearaooB Bar

6) T?asS'sMenwi?MSifflSfi<llwPy)mS)ao
7) Tenant's driw-lhm tlcctricnlsub-pancl (A& digital conhol tox), ai applicable

8) Proicctton and Illumination hoUaris

Landlord shall coordinate this woric with Tenant and Tenuil's Signagc vendor, Tctiant and Tcnuit's
sismgp vcadorwiU jwvldc footlBg iacaiions nnd anchor boH patterns to Lamliord. LandlunJ b
expected to provito peimitted drawings «ftha faotinB? to Tenaat's Elenagt! vendor.

Provide pad/drive thru lane catatnicted of 6" thick, reinforced with wietdcd wire mcsb. siampcd
concrete Pad's shall bs 24' long and centered ateadi locuton perTcnimtR'equ&cments Document.

The width of (he pid shall be tte width oflho drive.ttou Kuic or no leffi tfian 12' wide and ths laig,(h |
shall extend &<jmcnhy to drive thro lane-12 fcct from die CCTleriineoflhe menu board- (as
indicated on Tmant'sdesian (trawings) •o f2' toyondthe centertioe ofthe (trivs thru 'sviratow.

Ailernntivcly, install conu-eie pgdt at themenu bo»rd and diivcthiu wndow.

Install two W Tenant provided detector loop conduits. One coaduit at rtw wdtr point and one wnduil
at ibs drive ihni window prior to Installatton of the drive lana surface, per Tenant Requirtnwnts
Document.

LI Initials^z- Dateillt^ Tenant NtlaH5^_ _Date. w
Page B of 10

c^ ©2(W Starbucks Corporation

""""srmcKs



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

?•! .UiUUCKS CUt ?i C>.'MP^?-iV l.j.i.'!t<";i \V,irI; l.MtCii

STANDARD DRIVE. THRU COMPONENTS

Dnve-Thru
Window

J-J

Htitfeing Tenanft approved vendor »nd pirfcing, funnuh and instai! tho rfrivs-tiau seiwee wnA>w,
traiuoms and sideliebts, air curtain/fiy fan. exterior $he|fand dcctrical servicts, p<r Tenant-
ReqHEnmtnts Document.

ftwyfrAhe-Hmi4ittn^-oaH?ai?-'I'eBant Riqu!rtfaen(43ecinn<!nk

. Height ofircrvtca window sill must be 361' above Intemat flntshcd floor and 42° nbavt the exterior
drlvB-thruIans surftco.

Site IiTiaailon
Systems

Furnish and tastall an irrigyion system that tsderigncdto maximize delivefy ofwatCTto pbntad areas
aad m'mSmisos nwd<?par Tenant R<iqu{flimente Doomnanft

If a pcnnanett irrigation »ystcm is NOT rcsiuircd dus to laadstapc type (lien a lompwafy system can
be Installed unfit plants ax established.

Cover drip im^ition systems with two inches (2")ofmulet».

Landscaping controls sNI be so to mn a( optimal times of the day to minimitt evaporation loss and
business disniption. Broadcast sijstems should not be tun Airing. Tcnaafs connal business liours.
Landscaping <
business disni

Site
Iflnitscaping

Site Patio

Pf^A^n4se8pi(»g-nhb^my$ltM<rfatifflt^nd/or^atiw^wgeatibn a&.appt0priato4wth»^>»ayit
ragieft-pfflf-TMant Roqnin?m>«nte [locum<)n(.p?rTC>w1 '"IRISSSiApJSiL

Provide a Bnhiaum-Bfe^frSP-nfoutdoDr seating area. per Landlord's ptiui. atfjaeenKo Tenant's spaca
designated as ocoupiabte and accessible. Patio suiface raust he broom finished and seated.

ffrequucd by (fit focal Juristti'clfon, Unifford stair etso oblaih BD ouictoar BC&ffng ptrmft.

Provide a toss bib adjacent to Ac patio area p&r reoant Requirements UucumenL

Provide adequate separatton and bantcis from vehlcular tnflic per Tenant's Driv( Tliru Dcsl&n
Guidelines, Incluillng bui not ilmlted to. a retltng to enclose the patio seating area as approyed by

I Tenant, and wheel stops nt all paiking spaew adjacent to the gidewalk and paito.

J_ ^""tdft ll^Ahi&tia tha. s.umlu yWf.t,

Site Paving and j Landlord shall construct all piivlng <m the premises outttdt the building arta perjUTisdlcttOnaHy
Slriping j appKived Civi] EngiReering plant.

I Landloid dull provide paiking lot sripinft includlne nceesiilile stalk. pedcslrian access mBkings and
I wheelstopijtl all pa-ktng spaws adjacmt to Tenints sidewalk and/or pBti^

In (ucatioas where pnrking tots aud ttiij»ii% aheady exitt. landtonl iihHll reconfigure parkug Joe
1 (?fl!o flow as nwtsiiuy to Bcsommodate Tenant ncwgs.

\ SitoPrimuy '
J Utilities' j

E -r- •l^—::-}:
>i SiteSidcwallc ':
! and Curbs

Site Storm
Water

Design, pennit and distribute alt utititifts fiom theSCTTOO point to a jcpuate meht to a locilion
desiyuted hy Tnwnt conslniction doctimente nnd in accotdance wtth Tcoant Requirementt

Docunwnt. ____^..^^^___^..-»^-.^.-^_..

Landloid shall provide and ins»tl aU curbs and sidswalks includhigsito perimeter curbs and
sidewalks, Side'waltu are lu slope away (hjm ati points pfbuiyiagcntty^ ..._._._.._.

All curbs and gullcra are to ba fonntd concrete. Bxtiudtd asptialtor extruded eoncrcse curbs and
gutters may not bo usftd_l:arI^lotd\llllu<l<.l?ramlc.S"AM!&_

Sidewalks and curbs sliall te provided perjurlsdictionalty approved! cngmBcring plans.

Landlord rfiftll fumith and instttH a bike rack for the premites. Loeftiion to be coordinated with

Tenant.

Provide a new or relocate txistine storm water system to atcommodate Tenant's bulkHnfc
configuraltai and site cireufation. '-T-Ziy^ _^ff^AJ€i_&-"^ —.. -.-..-. -.'.,,^,.

Location ofslonn waiei detcntloii/retetUion ponds, if required, shall bacoonHnatEd wflh TEnant,

LL Initialsc- ^Oate. Tenant Initials -Date.•-W
Page S of TO

C-9 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation

"""-'grmcKs



EXHIBIT C

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

Sl;'";1!.';: );A CWHt COA-it^MV I ji'.),i(i:-i;t lA''sil; L'-"-;I>.II

STANDARD DRIVE. THRU COMPONENTS

Site Telephone
andDaSfi
Systems

Landlonl to initiate inaiallation oftelftphone facilities with Local Exchaitge Gamer (LEC) or
telephone asrvicB provider.

Provide one conduit pathwiy for telephone wiring and one conduit fbr broadband calling from
<tem*refltion point to Tenant's (pace, Tenn'mafB ooniiuit in Teiwfs spaos at As cei'ling ebova (he
,Mana&CTISW°'kstota'onJn the Ba^ °f!HoiuCt i>r» olh®m'» dMignatedbyTmant__

j WKw iD'imawm 3" ccwwhjit, crsSM ffeffwfuwmate. nf the latal sarelct fBovUfln- Pratfya lalaeled,

; end to end pull sftinfia tn all condutts.

Site Trash '[ Provide a trash cnclosum sized M least (o 2&* x 12' to a&commodate a A cubic yinl trash coniainer and
Erolosiue ; a4 cubic ytnlrecyclingcontaher and acoatflhierfotcompoatingstrvice. Provide enough clearance

{ in the enclosuie for tiie waste removal vdiicltt (a safety pick-vp and reptace contalntrs to limit
damage (a the enclosure.

) Thftteuh<»totU?AiUbt^ya^Uyla<i»^<w^a<^wepa8^ {
Tenant's premises fn a location depicted on the aite pten and muhaUy sgfcsA upon by Tenant and

TliB enclosure shall be atad to pr&vtde proper accsss and cteiTuiw far waste Mmoval vehicles
including a 90 degree turning radiui.

Provide a hose blb accesible to the trash enclosyw. |

If Tenant u nquinal (y stvsev tneih rcmuval oD'ecycliugcuatatncrt wtttt uUtiir (enimtii, sueli shsred
contdnw shtilbe adtquatdy dzed and wrvictd to handle Tcnantts uasli, ncycltng and composting
requuiements, equivalent to a 4 ciAi&ynnl trash container, 4 cubic yard recycling conlamBr and a
container for composting scmco.

Lmidlord:

PrintNwnc: ^^^ZSS-
Title;

Date;
<w^&_
J^'3S2S

Tenant: f ^
Print Name:€-~y^ {'Ol^tk^

Tiiie: ^rSy^
Date: i.-a/4|ri

U. Initials. -Oate. Tenant Initials. Date_

Page 10 of 10

C-10 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation

""""gmcKs



Project Name:

EXHIBIT D

DELIVERY OF POSSESSION

. Store #;

Tenant: Sterbacks ConrortatfgTt

Landlord: 7 River Street,
LLC

Premises Address; Unit -221 South Main Street, Middleton, MA
01949

Square Footage:

Without limiting any of Tenant's rights and remedies expressly set forth in this Lease, and without limiting
Landlord's obligations thereunder including, without limitation, requirements for the condition of the
Premises, the compterfon of Lanoltorrf's Work, and the deadlines for compSet'son of Lendlord's Work gnd
other items, Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that:

Tenant
Accepts/Rejects
Possession of
the Premises:
Tenant Acceete
Possession of
the Premises
Tenant Accepts
Possession of
the Premises

Tenant Rejects
Possession of
the Premises

Tenant Rejects
Possession of
the Premises

^
Status of Landlord's Work:

Landlord's Work is COMPLETE subject to the
minor punchlist items listed below, or otherwise
communicated to Landlord, and latent defects.
Landlord's Work is NOT COMPLETE. Tenant
elects to complete the unfinished items of
Landlord's Work at Landlord's expense subject
to the terms and conditions of Landlord Work
Modification Letter.
Landlord's Work is NOT COMPLETE. Tenant
may enter the Premises to begin performing
Tenant's unprovem.ents. Landlord shall
complete Landlord's Work at Landlord's
expense^

"Landlord's Work is NOT COMPLETE. Landlord
shall complete Landlord's Work at Landlord's
expense.

Possession
Date:

NA

NA

Landlord's
Work
Complete
Date:

NA

NA

NA

If Landlord's Work is NOT COMPLETE and Tenant REJECTS Landlord's delivery of possession,
Landlord and Tenant shall re-execute this Delivery of Possession agreement once Landlord's
Work is complete In accordance with this Lease requirements and Tenant's accepts possession of
the Premises.

Incomplete ttemsofLandioTd'sWork: (Attach additional pages If necessary) Landlord's Target
Completion Date;

Landlord: Tenant:

Print Name:
Title:
Date:

Print Name:
Title: Project Manager
Date:

0-1 ©2001 Starbucks Corporation

""'"tmcKs



EXHIBIT E

LANDLORD WORK MODIFICATION LETTEE

Project Name: _ _ Store #

Date: _ . Square Footage:

Tenant: Starbucks Corporation Landlord:

Premises Address'-

The scope of work outlined below will constitute an agreement between Landlord and Tenant.
This agreement allows Tenant to complete the following scope of work for Landlord with the
understanding and agreement that Landlord will be responsible to reimburse Tenant for the
following:

Scope of work to be completed by Starbucks:

(Description) - (item cost)
(Description) - (item cost)
(Description) - (item cost)

Total;

This letter serves as an agreement between Landlord and Tenant. Landlord agrees to pay
Tenant the amount of __ dollars and cents ($
) within ten (10) days of receipt of invoice, for the completion of Landlord work as noted above.

From and after the date hereof, all notices shall be given to Tenant as required by this Lease,

LANDLORD: TENANT:

By:_ ByL
Print Name: _ Print Name-. .

Title; .___ Title:.
Date;^ Date_

E-1 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
RevisettMsi.clXSO.l'



EXHIBIT F

DATE CERTIFICATE

Date

Attn: Name
Company Name
Address
City. Slate, Zip

Re: Starbucks Coffee at
City, State
Starbucks Store #

Dear Name:

Please confirm the following list of dates pursuant to the Lease by and between

and Starbucks Corporation [or Starbucks Coffee Canada, Inc.] for the above referenced location:

Possession Date: / /
Permit Date: / / [if referenced in the Lease}
Commen.c.ement Date; I I
Starbucks Store Opening Date: / / _
Rent Commencement Date: / /
Expiration Date: __/_/-

Pursuant to Section of the Lease, the Base Rent schedule shail be as set forth below:

/ / - / / $ _ Pro'rated:$_-_days x_day(s)
/ / . / / $_ Per month
/ / . / /_ $ _ Per month

[If applicable:]
Optionl __!'_!_ • _/__/. $_ Per month

Option! I I - _/„/___ $_ Per month
Optiw3 _/__/__ - _/_/_„ $^- Per month
Opt'ion4 J_J _ - __LJ__ $_. Per month

Please have both copies of this letter signed and dated by Landlord and return one (1) of the
originate in the envelope provided. tf you have any Questions TQpardinathe above infQrmation
please contact Name at (ohone number).

Agreed to this _day of ^200_,by and between:

Landlord-. Starbucks Corporation;

By; __ By:ture Name
title

printed name and title

F-1 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
Revised October 2010

STARBUCKS



EXHIBIT G

EXISTING EXCLUSIV.ES

1. Salon Vero -
"Tenant shall have exclusivity within the retail plaza for Ihe business of hair styling provided Salon
Vero is not in default of the lease."

2. Middleton House of Pizza. "Exclusive right to sell pizza."

3. Salem Five Bank - "Tenant shall have the exclusive right within the retail plaza to operate a banking
institution and to operate and maintain ATM machines provided Salem is not in default of the tease."

G-1 © 2001 Starbucks Corporation
Revised QftetiSX



10
|m
tm
|m
Id

§
n

7>°"



EXHIBIT I

DELETED

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation

"""""SMcKs



10
lm
|m
|m
10

mx
X
0

®
1-J
00
_a.

co
i
3-

,CQg

0_
w' ?T

i!>
2' °

•ill^ I3 5'

!"53
I??ico



EXHIBIT K

DELETED

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation
K Revised October 2010

SIARBUCKS



EXHIBIT L

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

WHEN RECORDED RETURN BY MAIL TO:
First American Tjtje Company
National Commercial Services
1790 Hughes Landing Blvd., Suite 110
The Woodlands, Texas 77380
ATTN: SharonP.MorK

Vice President/Manager
ST. CwiwnwAeA E.SCTQW 0^w.aT

THIS DOCUMENT PREPARED BY:
Robert K. Brown, Esq.
Opus Law Group PLLC
1325 Fourth Avenue, Suite 1800
Seattle, WA 98101

On Behalf of:

Starbucks Coffee Company
2401 Utah Avenue South, Suite 800
Mailstop: 8-LA3
Seattle, Washington 98134

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation
L-2 Revised October 2Q10

smjcKs



EXHIBIT L

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

This Memorandum of Lease ("Memorandum") is entered into by and between 7 River
Street, LLC, a Massachusetts limited liability company ("Landlord") having its principal
place of business at 10 Perkins Road, Middleton, MA 01949, and Starbucks
Corporation, a Washington coTpwati<w having an office at 240-^ Utah Awenu% South,
Seattfe, Washington 98134 ("Tenant"), Landlord and Tenant having entered into a
commercial lease having an Effective Date of _, 20_ (the "Lease"}.

1. The Lease covers certain commercial property located at 221 South Main
Street, Middleton Massachusetts, consistinfi of approximately 2.310 square feet of Gross
Leasabte Area (the "Premises") all as more particularly described in the Lease. The
legal description of the Shopping Center and-Property on which the Premises is located
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference,

2. The Lease provides for the rental of the Premises by Tenant for a term of
ten (10) years {the "Initial Term").

3. The Lease grants to Tenant the right to renew the Initial Term for up to
four (4) consecutive five (5) year period(s) (the "Extension Term(s)") under the same
terms and conditions contained in the Lease, provided Tenant exercises the applicable
Extension Term m accordance w? the applicable terms of the Lease. Base Rent during
any Extension Term(s) shall be as specified in the Lease.

4. Tenant may use and occupy the Leased Premises for (a) a coffee store or
(b) any other lawful retail or restaurant use including without limitation the sale of beer
and wine provided that Tenant obtains all required licenses and permits for same, that
does not conflict with any written exclusive use presently granted to another tenant in the
Shopping Center as set forth in the Lease.

5. This Memorandum shall not, under any circumstances, be deemed to
modify or change any provisions of the Lease, the provisions of which shall in all
instances prevail.

6. The Lease grants to Tenant the exclusive right to sell in the Shopping
Center (a)ground and whole coffee beans, (b) espresso, espresso-based and coffee-
based drinks, (c) tea or tea-based drinks, (d) brewed coffee, and (e) coffee based
blended beverages. Other tenants ma*sf seM brewed coffeo OT bTffwed tea whkih te neither
(i) gourmet, nor (ii) brand identified. For purposes of this Lease, "gourmet" shall be
defined as: (a) beverages made using Arabica beans or (b) sourced from a gourmet
coffee or tea brand such as Coffee Bean & Tea Leaf, Intetligentsia, Peets, Caribou or
similar branding. For purposes of this Lease, "brand identified" shall mean beverages
advertised or marketed within the applicable retail space using a brand name or served
in a brand identified cup.

7. This Memorandum may be signed in two or more counterpart copies with
the same effect as if the signature to each counterpart copy were on a single instrument.
Each counterpart shall be deemed an original as to any party whose signature it bears

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation
L-3 Revised.OAqter.SO.I!



EXHIBIT L

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

and all such counterparts shall constitute one document. Facsimile or electronically
scanned copies shs!i be deemed ongmais.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE(S)]

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation
(_-4 Revised October 2010

STARBUCKS



EXHIBIT L

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Lease this

day of_, 20_.

LANDLORD:

7 RIVER STREET, LLC

By:_
Name:,

Title:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF LANDLORD

STATE OF_ }
) SS.:

COUNPCOF_ }
On the ., day of_, in the year 20_, before me, the
undersigned, personally appeared _, personally known to
me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is
subscribed to the within this Memorandum of Lease and acknowledged to me that he/she
executed the same in his/her capacity as . ..^__. ^ of

_, and that by his/her signature executed the instrument on behalf
of said

Notary Public for the State of.
Commission expires:.

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation
L-5 Reviij



EXHIBIT L

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

TENANT:

STARBUCKS CORPORATION,
a Washington corporation

By:_
Name:
Title:_

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF.STARBUCKS CORPORATION

STATE OF WASHINGTON )
) SS.:

COUNTY OF KING )

On the _ day of_, in the year 20_, before me, the undersigned,
personally appeared , personally known to me or proved to me on the
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same in his/her capacity as

of Starbucks Corporation, and that by his/her signature executed
this Memorandum of Lease on behalf of Starbucks Corporation.

Notary Public for the State of
Commission expires:

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation

"•lamRs



EXHIBIT L

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

EXHJBJTA TO MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

The land with the buildings thereon situated in Middleton, Essex County, MA and
being shown as Lot 32 on a plan prepared for P.T.S. Enterprises as drawn by
Dana F. Perkins, Inc. d/b/a Robert E. Anderson, Reg. Prof. Engineers and Land
Surveyors, with said plan recorded with Essex South District Registry of Deeds at
Plan Book 355, Plan 32 (the "Plan"}.

Containing approximately 3.05 acres as shown on the above-mentioned Plan.

For title reference see Deed reconted wfth said Rogteffy of Deeds m Book 35686,
Page 356.

© 2001 Starbucks Corporation
L.-7 Revised October 201 0

STARBUCKS



Andrew Sheehan

From: Ilene Twiss [_)

Sent: Thursday, August 09, 2018 1:13 PM

To: Andrew Sheehan

Subject: FW: By-Law Committee

From: IleneTwiss

Sent: Tuesday, April 10, 2018 10:00 AM
To: Andrew Sheehan; Ryan Ferrara

Subject: FW: By-Law Committee

Gentlemen:

Please see the correspondence below from Richard Cardinale regarding his interest in the Bylaw Review Committee.

Thank you,

, '̂ene

Please note my email address is now

ilene.twiss@middletonma.gov

Ilene B. Twiss

Middleton Town Clerk

Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MAO 1949
ilene.twiss@middletonma.Rov

PH: (978) 774-6927
FAX: (978) 774-6167

From: Rich Cardinale [mailto:richardacardinale@gmail.com]
Sent: Friday, April 06, 2018 7:28 AM
To: Ilene Twiss
Subject: By-Law Committee

Good morning,

Please consider this email as my Letter of Interest for appointment to the Bylaw Review Committee. If there is further information needed, please feel free to email
me at the above address, I look forward to the opportunity to serve our community in the future.

Regards,

Richard Cardinale



Andrew Sheehan

From: Ilene Twiss

Sent: Tuesday, September 11, 2018 4:16 PM

To: Andrew Sheehan

Subject: Appointment- Board of Registrars

Hello Andrew:

I'd like to ask that the Board of Selectmen appoint Sarah B. George to the Board of Registrars at their next scheduled

meeting on September 18, 2018.

Thank you for your anticipated attention to this matter.

Kindest regards,

le/ne

Ilene B. Twiss

Middleton Town Clerk

Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MAO 1949
ilene.twiss@middletonma.gov

PH: (978) 774-6927
FAX: (978) 774-6167



6 Old South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949
September 12, 2018

Middleton Board of Selectmen
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949

Dear Members of the Board,

I am writing to request consideration of my appointment to fill the vacancy on the Board of Registrars of

Voters. I am hopeful that my election experience and knowledge of election laws could be of some

assistance to the Town in this capacity.

Sincerely,

S^li
Sarah B. Ge6rge



Andrew Sheehan

From: Chief Tom Martinuk (MFD) <tom.martinuk@midfire.com>

Sent: Friday, August 17, 2018 10:09 AM
To: Andrew Sheehan; Belinda Young; Sarah Wood

Subject: Fire Department AFG Grant

Good morning,

Received notification that we are being awarded $168,800 for the FEMA-Assistance to Firefighters Grant to replace

S.C.B.A.

I will let you know when to keep an eye out for it. They send it electronically and usually not well identified.

Have a great weekend.

Thank you.

Tom

Please note my email address: tom.martinuk@midfire.com

Thomas J. Martinuk
Chief of Department
Middleton Fire Department
4 Lake St.
Middleton,MA01949

(Office) 978-774-0700
(Fax) 978-774-0709

NOTICE: This message and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may contain confidential or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient,

you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination, distribution or duplication of this message and any attachments is prohibited. If you have received this communication in

error, please notify us by reply email and immediately and permanently delete this message and any attachments. Email transmission may not be secure and could contain
errors. We accept no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email. Please do not send to us by email any information containing personally identifiable
information without appropriate encryption. Thank you. Please note the Massachusetts Secretary of State's office has determined that most emails to and from municipal

offices and officials are public records. For more information please refer to: htto://www,sec.state.ma.us/pre/oreidx.htm. Please consider the environment before printing this

email.



BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Town of Middleton

48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts

01949-2253
978-777-3617

www.middletonma.gov

FRAUDULENT FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES POLICY
ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 18, 2018

1. Policy Statement & Principles

This policy is established to protect the assets and interests of the Town ofMiddleton, to increase overall
fraud awareness, and to ensure a coordinated approach toward resolution of financial fraud.

The Town must identify and promptly investigate all instances and allegations of fraudulent activities
regarding Town funds, documents, and equipment involving, staff, volunteers, elected officials, vendors,

agencies or other parties. Good business practice dictates that suspected defalcation, misappropriation or
other fiscal irregularities be promptly identified and investigated. We believe that it is everyone's
responsibility to report any possible fraudulent activity.

All persons found to have committed fraud relevant to Town financial affairs shall be subject to punitive
action by the Town and investigation by law enforcement agencies when warranted.

Fraud in any form will not be tolerated. This policy applies to all Town employees and affiliates and will be
enforced without regard to past performance, position held or length of service.

2. Scope & Definition of Fraud

Fraud generally involves a willful or deliberate act with the intention of obtaining an unauthorized benefit,
such as money or property, by deception or other unethical means. All fraudulent acts are included under

this policy and include such things as:
• Embezzlement, misappropriation or other financial irregularities

• Forgery or alteration of documents (checks, time sheets, contractor agreements, purchase orders, other

financial documents, electronic files)

• Improprieties in the handling or reporting of money or financial transactions
• Misappropriation of funds, securities, supplies, inventory, or any other asset (including furniture, fixtures

and equipment)
• Authorizing or receiving payment for goods not received or services not performed

• Authorizing or receiving payments for hours not worked

3. General Protocol - Reporting Procedure

Anyone who believes fraud has occurred should report such incident. Employees are protected under

Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 149, section 185, from retaliatory actions by the employer.

Use the channel of communication with which you are most comfortable. Accordingly, you may

report your concerns to your immediate Supervisor, Department Head, Committee/Board Chair, Town

Administrator, member of the Board ofSelectmen, or Police Department.



Immediate Supervisors, Committee/Board Chairs and Department heads must report all apparent cases

of fraud brought to their attention to the Town Administrator. In the case the fraudulent activity

involving the Town Administrator; the individual should report the incident to the Board of Selectmen.

4. Responsibilities

All levels of management are responsible for establishing and maintaining proper internal controls that

provide security and accountability for the resources entrusted to them. Managers should be familiar

with the risks and exposures inherent in their areas of responsibility and be alert for any indications of

improper activities, misappropriation, or dishonest activity.

Responsibilities of management and non-managerial staff for handling fraudulent activities include the

following:

• Insure that notification promptly reaches the Town Administrator, and if, appropriate the Police

Department. Refer to item 3 General Protocol - Reporting Procedure, above.

• If the situation warrants immediate action - for example, obvious theft has taken place, security

is at risk, or immediate recovery is possible - management and non-managerial staff receiving

reports should immediately contact the Police Department.

• Do not contact the suspected individual to determine facts or demand restitution. Under no

circumstances should there be any reference to "what you did", "the crime", "the fraud", "the

forgery", "the misappropriation", etc.

• Managers should consult with the Town Administrator to determine if any immediate personnel

actions are necessary.

• Do not discuss the case, facts, suspicions, or allegations with anyone, unless specifically

directed to do so by the Town Administrator, Board of Selectmen or Police.

• Direct all inquiries from any suspected individual, his or her representative, or his or her

attorney to the Town Administrator. Direct all inquiries from the media to the Town

Administrator.

Great care must be taken in the dealing with suspected fraudulent activities to avoid any incorrect

accusations, alerting suspected individuals that an investigation is under way, violating any person's

right to due process, or making statements that could lead to claims of false accusation or other civil

rights violations.

The Town Administrator may coordinate investigation of any suspected dishonest or fraudulent

activity, which, in his/her opinion, may represent risk of significant loss of assets or reputation to the
Town. The Town Administrator may work with internal or external departments, such as Town

Counsel, the Town's independent auditors and the Department of Revenue, as circumstances may

require. The Town Administrator is available and receptive to receiving relevant information on a
confidential basis and may be contacted directly whenever a fraudulent activity is suspected.



Town management will support administrative responsibilities and will cooperate with the Auditors

and law enforcement agencies in the detection, reporting, and investigation of fraudulent acts,
including prosecution of offenders. The administration and auditor has full unrestricted access to all

records and personnel of the Town. Every effort should be made to effect recovery of Town losses

from responsible parties or through Town insurance coverage.

The Town Administrator will review the results of any investigations with responsible management

and administrators as necessary, making recommendations for improvement to the systems of internal

control.

5. Non-Fraud Irregularities

Identification or allegations of acts outside the scope of this policy, such as personal improprieties or

irregularities, whether moral, ethical, or behavioral, safety or work environment related, or complaints
of discrimination or sexual harassment, should be resolved by the respective area management in

conjunction with Administration. Examples include but are not limited to employee misconduct, sexual

harassment, and the M.GL Chapter 268A conflict of interest law.

MIDDLETON BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Kosta E. Prentakis, Chairman Richard Kassiotis, Clerk

Timothy P. Houten Brian M. Cresta

Todd Moreschi



BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Town of Middleton

48 South Main Street

Middleton, Massachusetts
01949-2253

978-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY
ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 18, 2018

I. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures for authorizing travel and training expenses

by Town employees, elected officials, and appointed officials for Town business, and to establish

procedures for the reimbursement of the cost of authorized travel and other expenses.

II. General Policy

Training shall be defined as those conferences or sessions that provide certification or learning

opportunities for employees, elected officials and appointed officials pursuant and relevant to

their current positions.

It shall be the general policy of the Town to allow board members and employees to travel to
training sessions, seminars and meetings of professional associations under the following

guidelines.

All travel is contingent upon the availability of fands in the proper budgetary account.

The Town expects employees and board members to act responsibly and professionally when
incurring and submitting costs. The organization will reimburse employees and board members

for reasonable expenses on pre-approved business. This includes, for example, travel fares,

accommodations, meals, tips and telephone and fax charges.

III. Approval Authority

The responsibility for keeping within the travel budget of each activity lies with the approving
authority. The authorization of all trips involving budgeted funds is as follows:

A. Town Administrator shall authorize travel and training by the Department Heads and

appointed officials. This includes all requests for reimbursement.

B. The Department Head shall authorize travel by employees within their department. This

includes all requests for reimbursement.



IV. Procedure

All travel and training outside of IVIassachusetts must be authorized in advance. Only those

expenses allowed by this policy will be reimbursed.

A. General Procedures

1. Travel request and approvals are to be made on the Travel Request Form

(attachment A).

2. Travel Request Forms shall be submitted to the authorizing party (see part III).

3. The authorizing party will sign and return the employee copy to the employee and
will forward the signed original to the Town Accountant's office.

4. Upon completion of the trip, the traveler will complete the Travel Expense Report

(attachment B) as explained in sections V and VI, and route it back to the

authorizing party for approval of the expense reimbursement.

5. The Travel Expense Report and attached receipts will be sent to Accounting to be

processed for payment.

V. Reimbursable Expense Guidelines

A. Travel/Transportation

1. Air Travel
Travelers are encouraged to fly coach class with the lowest available airfare for

non-stop travel. The passenger's portion of the airline ticket or the original
transportation receipt must be submitted with the traveler's Expense

Reimbursement Form; boarding passes alone are not sufficient.

2. Car Rentals

If a car rental is required, travelers are requested to rent mid-sized or compact

vehicles. Travelers will be reimbursed for the fuel costs associated with renting a

vehicle. Rental receipts must be submitted with the expense report for

reimbursement.

3. Personal Vehicles

If an employee is using their personal vehicle for travel, they are entitled to

request reimbursement for mileage at the IRS standard mileage rate. Charges for

gasoline, repairs, depreciation, towing, vehicle maintenance, insurance and other

similar expenditures will not be allowed. These are considered operating costs of

the vehicle and are covered in the IRS mileage rate.



Mileage to and from the event is to be budgeted and requested for reimbursement
by using the Travel Expense Fomi as a portion of the reimbursement for the total

event cost. These costs should not be submitted for reimbursement as part of

routine business mileage.

In addition to mileage, the following expenses may be reimbursed:

• Reimbursement for tolls at the established rates. The employee should
include receipts or identify the date, location and amount of the toll paid.

• Reasonable and necessary parking charges, including airport parking fees
at the long-term reduced parking rate.

• Reasonable valet parking services, if self-park is not available.

B. Accommodations

Travelers will be reimbursed for reasonable hotel accommodations. Discounted room

rates should be requested at the time of room booking. Travelers are entitled to
accommodations that are suitably located and meet reasonable standards for safety,

cleanliness and comfort.

Charges caused by failure to cancel guaranteed reservations are not reimbursable.

Attending travelers should:

• Ask about the hotel's cancellation policy at the time of booking,

• Notify either the hotel or the organization with whom the reservation was made to

cancel a room reservation,

• Remember that cancellation deadlines are based on the local time at the

destination hotel, and

• Request and record the cancellation number in case of billing disputes.

C. Meals

Per Diem rates for meal and incidentals will be provided; receipts are not required. The

per diem rate is established by the IRS and varies by location. Per Diem rates will not be

paid or will be adjusted where other meal arrangements are provided, such as when a

meal(s) is included with an event. See https://v\-\\-\v.gsa.gov/portal/content/l 04877 to
calculate the per diem rate for Meals and Incidental Expenses (M&IE) for the destination.

If the employee would rather be reimbursed for all actual meal expenses incurred,

itemized meals receipts must be submitted with the Travel Expense Report. Taxes will
not be reimbursed. Gratuities not exceeding 20% are eligible for reimbursement. No

alcohol purchases will be reimbursed at any time for any circumstances.

If a meal is included in the registration fee for a conference, the overall registration fee
will be reimbursed.



D. Other Travel Expenses

In-room movies and other charges billed to the traveler's hotel room that have no bearing

to the legitimate nature of the travel are the responsibility of the traveler and will not be

reimbursed by the Town.

E. Non Reimbursable Expenses

The following are examples ofnon-reimbursable expenses:

Personal travel insurance In-room movies or video games

Childcare Sporting activities, shows, etc.

Expenses incurred by spouses. Alcoholic beverage purchases
children, or relatives Sales tax

VI. Vacation and Spouse Travel

A. Combining Business and Vacation

If an employee wishes to combine a business trip with a vacation:

1. The proper approval authority (section II) must approve the arrangement

2. The Town will provide only the reimbursement that covers the actual expenses of the

business portion of the trip

3. The employee must specify on the Travel Authorization Form the dates of the

conference or meeting and the total days of the trip in order to compute vacation time.
A Request for Leave Form must also be submitted with Payroll to the Treasurer's

Office for all time taken as vacation.

B. Travel with Spouse and/or Family

Spouses and/or family members may accompany an employee on official trips. However, the
Town will provide reimbursement for only those expenses which the employee would normally

incur if traveling alone.

VII. Travel Expense Report

The Travel Expense Report should be used in order to receive a reimbursement from the Town.

Travelers should submit their expense reports no later than 1 0 working days after return from

the trip. Expense report lodging receipts must reflect no more than single accommodation rates

for the employees/officials. The employee will complete the expense report and attach original

bills and receipts to support the following expenditures:

4



• Lodging
• Transportation costs

• Support of mileage calculation (Google Maps or MapQuest printout)

• Registration fees

• Car rental

• Vehicle Expenditures (parking, tolls)

If the actual expenses considerably exceed the original estimate on the Travel Authorization

Request, a justification statement must be attached.

A. Approval and Processing of Travel Expense Reports

1. Reimbursement Requests will be submitted to the authorizing party for approval

(section III). After approval by the authorizing party, the Travel Expense Form will
be forwarded to the Accounting Department as part of the bi-weekly warrant

package.

2. The Town Accountant/CFO will determine that the reimbursement form has been

properly approved, that it is mathematically correct, that the requested

reimbursements agree to the submitted receipts, and are within the limits set forth by

this policy. If an error is found in the reimbursement request, the requesting party
will be informed and the error will be corrected before payment is made.

Before the reimbursement is made, the Accounting Department will determine that there is sufficient

unexpended appropriation in the expenditure line item or that an amount sufficient to pay the request

has been encumbered.

MIDDLETON BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Kosta E. Prentakis, Chairman Richard Kassiotis

Timothy P. Houten Brian M. Cresta

Todd Moreschi



TRAVEL REQUEST FORM

Name of Traveler

Department

Trip Purpose (list specific titles of all conferences/events/meetings you are attending)

Comments (please specify ifany/all meals provided; additional travelers; who is paying; etc)

Destination(s)

Departure Date_/_/_ Return Date

Munis Account

Estimated Travel Expenses

Airfare

Lodging

Mileage

Parking

Per Diem Meals

Registration

Rental Vehicle

Other

Total

Department Head/Town Administrator Approval:

Please complete three copies 1) Employee 2) Authoring Authority 3) Accounting Department



OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
Town ofMiddleton

Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949

978-777-3617

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
PRIORITIES, GOALS, AND OBJECTIVES

FY19
ADOPTED: SEPTEMBER 18, 2018

Introduction: This document is intended to guide the Board of Selectmen, Town Administrator,

and departments in setting priorities. This is intended to provide a broad framework within which

we operate and direct our efforts. Many of these goals will extend past the identified time

horizon.

NEW GOALS

1. The Town will strive to identify and procure real property of adequate size to accommodate
the needs of its public facilities and will take steps to build or acquire a new or renovated Fire

Station, Police Station, Senior Center, and Memorial Hall. The Town will identify methods

of funding these projects, including through the property tax levy. Community Preservation

Fund, State assistance, and other sources.

2. The Town will develop a means of gauging constituent satisfaction and tracking constituent

feedback.

3. The Town will develop and implement a plan to modernize its information technology,

including but not limited to hardware, software, security, and support.

4. The Town will begin to implement the recommendations ofplamiing and land use studies,

including the master plan, bicycle/pedestrian master plan, and complete streets policy.

5. The Town will strive to exceed the requirements of public integrity laws and build public

trust by being an example for other communities.

6. The Town will encourage professional development throughout the organization and support
educational opportunities for employees at all levels.



CARRYOVER GOALS

7. The Town will aspire to conduct its business in a transparent manner. Every reasonable effort

will be made to make its processes and operations visible to the public.

8. Working with decision makers, the Town will develop policies that guide normal operations

without being a hindrance on progress.

9. The Town will develop succession plans for known and anticipated transitions. The Town

can expect a number of retirements in the next several years. To the extent possible, the

Town needs to have plans in place to make these transitions as seamless as possible.

10. Community Development: The Town will promote responsible economic development while
retaining the characteristics that the community identifies as important.

11. The Town will continuously explore and evaluate opportunities to regionalize or share

services with other entities where such efforts can reduce costs and/or improve service

delivery.

12. The Town will continuously search for and evaluate revenue enhancement opportunities to

lessen the reliance on the property tax.

13. The Town will work diligently to execute projects in a timely and expeditious process.

14. The Town will explore ways to increase participation in the local democratic process.



Ken Gibbons
Superintendent of Public Works

TOWN OF MIDDLETON

Public Works Department
195 NORTH MAIN STREET

IVHDDLETON, MA 01949

Tel (978) 777-0407
Fax (978) 774-0718

MEMORANDUM

To: Town Administrator
Board of Selectmen

From: Ken Gibbons

Date: September 10, 2018

RE: Signage request on Peabody Street

A request for a sign has been made for Peabody Street before the intersection of Circle Street
coming in from Liberty Street.

I recommend a W2-2R Graphic road right at 30" and a W16-9 Ahead sign at 24". This spec
will satisfy the requirements of the MUTCD.



Dear Chief of Police,

I am requesting a road sign be installed on Peabody st facing south, so that drivers
coming from Liberty Street can see the intersection before they reach the hill and before
descending just before Circle St. It should be seen in time for them to slow down before
cresting the hill. The sign needed is a "Side Road T-Junction symbol (right) with large
letters SLOW below the symbol. The DMV stocks these signs. The intersection of Circle
St. (the second Circle St, coming from Liberty St) is hidden from view and has been the
scene of many accidents, lucky that most all were not serious enough for police calls
but some with injuries and many close calls, as I can hear the loud screeches from my
window and see the near misses. When a car leaves Circle St, especially going towards
Liberty, it always is at risk of being hit sideways as the cars come over the hill. When I
pull out going towards East St, not too slow and carefully checking that no cars are
coming down the street, all of a sudden a car is on my bumper and braking hard as they
had flown over the hill, not expecting a side road. Our nice wide dirt street (approved
road but the residents don't want it paved as this porous surface absorbs rain and
prevents pavement run-off into the creek) is also a common turn around for large
delivery trucks, working vehicles, and unloaded school buses. I don't want to see a
collision as these vehicles exit slowly onto Peabody St.

This intersection is always at its worse and most dangerous from September to June
20th, when Masconomet students are driving or being driven to school by their parents.
Traffic cuts over from Forest St to avoid Middleton Square so this road is very busy.
Often distracted, often throwing out their morning drink cups as they descend the hill,
drivers are going fast. I do think the flashing speed limit sign is helping to slow down
people at the other end of Peabody St., but they don't slow down until it flashes at them!
Our beautiful street will also be more congested when the new development on the
corner of Arrow and Mill is completed; very soon as foundations are in and trees all
cleared. I do not want to wait until a serious accident occurs. I think this sign will provide
some warning that cars will be exiting and cannot be seen until the last minute, so slow
down NOW!

Thank You for your consideration and I will await your response as you move my
request through the proper town boards and departments.

Sandy Rubchinuk
3 Circle St

Middleton, Mass



(Mufdleton foKce ^Department
65 Worth Main Street

Mid'd'Ceton, X^ 0.?949

T:d: (97 S) 7 7 4-4424 TajQ (978)774-4466
'E-maiC: chief@midd(etonvotice. corn

James^i. (DiQianvittono

Chief of (police

To:

From:

Date:

Subject:

Board of Selectmen
James A. DiGianvittorio
September 5, 2018
Roadway Signage

Attached you will find a copy of a letter sent to me from a concerned citizen who resides on Circle Street.
This letter is a request for signage on Peabody Street as you enter from Liberty Street facing in a southerly direction.
I can attest to the fact that this has been an area of many accidents over the years, and we all remember recently a

crash that took the lives of two men in a Ferrari in that same general area. I would be so inclined to agree with the
residents that some type ofsignage would be appropriate in an effort to slow traffic and pre-wam the drivers of the
blind roadway that being Circle Street.

I would ask the DPW to provide the Board with a variety of sign options that they have available to address this
issue.

Thank you.

Visit Our Website: wvvvv.middletonpolice.com


